EFFECT OF RESILIENT LEADERSHIP ON SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE THROUGH ENTERPRISE INNOVATION AND THE MODERATING ROLE OF EXECUTIVE INCENTIVES



A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY PROGRAM IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI ACADEMIC YEAR 2023 COPY RIGHT OF RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI

EFFECT OF RESILIENT LEADERSHIP ON SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE THROUGH ENTERPRISE INNOVATION AND THE MODERATING ROLE OF EXECUTIVE INCENTIVES



A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY PROGRAM IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FACULTY OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI ACADEMIC YEAR 2023 COPY RIGHT OF RAJAMANGALA UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY THANYABURI

Dissertation Title	Effect of Resilient Leadership on Sustainable Business		
	Performance through Enterprise Innovation and the		
,	Moderating Role of Executive Incentives		
Name – Surname	Mrs. Nan Shuhua		
Program	Business Administration		
Dissertation Advisor	Assistant Professor Kanokporn Chaiprasit, Ph.D.		
Academic Year	2023		

DISSERTATION COMMITTEE

(Assistant Professor Krit Jarinto, D.B.A.)

S. Ngrolgratske Committee

..... Chairman

(Associate Professor Sungworn Ngudgratoke, Ph.D.)

Nastrapher Taucho Committee

(Assistant Professor Nartraphee Tancho, Ph.D.)

0

(Assistant Professor Duangporn Puttawong, Ph.D.)

KN Ir. Committee

(Assistant Professor Kanokporn Chaiprasit, Ph.D.)

Approved by the Faculty of Business Administration, Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

(Associate Professor Khahan Na-Nan, Ph.D.)

5 November 2023

Dissertation Title	Effect of Resilient Leadership on Sustainable Busines			ness	
	Performance thro	ough Enterprise	Innovation	and	the
	Moderating Role of	f Executive Ince	entives		
Name-Surname	Mrs. Nan Shuhua				
Program	Business Administration				
Dissertation Advisor	Assistant Professor Kanokporn Chaiprasit, Ph.D.				
Academic Year	2023				

ABSTRACT

Leaders' resilience plays a significant role in organizational competitiveness, yet no scholars have proposed a definition of resilient leadership in the manufacturing industries. Therefore, the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance in the manufacturing industries has become a new topic for research.

Accordingly, this study sampled 500 manufacturers operating in Jiangxi - a large manufacturing province in China. A questionnaire was administered to collect the data, adopting a stratified sampling method. A structural equation model was developed to empirically examine the relationship between variables. In particular, path analysis and decomposition effect methods were used to examine the direct impact of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance; and the indirect effect of introducing enterprise innovation as a mediating variable. This study used the hierarchical regression analysis method to test the moderating effect of executive incentives.

The research results revealed that: (1) resilient leadership had a significantly positive impact on sustainable business performance, (2) enterprise innovation played a mediating role between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance, and (3) the moderating effect of executive incentives was established. Findings of the study are beneficial for practitioners and will allow their strategies to reflect sustainable competitive advantages and sustainable business performance.

Keywords: resilient leadership, sustainable business performance, enterprise innovation, executive incentives

Acknowledgements

I would like to express greatly appreciation to Assistant Professor Dr.Kanokporn Chaiprasit, who really supported and gave me valuable inspiration to proceed with this dissertation during hard times till its completion. In addition, I wish to express my appreciation to Associate Professor Dr.Sungworn Ngudgratoke, Assistant Professor Dr.Nartraphee Tancho, Assistant Professor Dr.Duangporn Puttawong and Assistant Professor Dr.Putthiwat Singdong for their valuable suggestions. I am extremely grateful for comments and suggestions in statistical analyses from Associate Professor Dr.Sungworn Ngudgratoke and Assistant Professor Dr.Putthiwat Singdong. I wish to express my appreciation to Assistant Professor Dr.Duangporn Puttawong and Assistant Professor Dr.Nartraphee Tancho for her valuable suggestions and encouragement. Besides, I would like to thank the staff members from Faculty of Business Administration,Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi.

I was very fortunate to have many help from classmates at the Faculty of Business Administration at Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi. I wish to express my appreciation to GuiMei,Yang, YiFan Li, BingLing,Liu,NianZi,Liu and TianBai.Li for their suggestions and assistance. I also appreciate Assistant Professor Dr.Sukontip,not only for English improvement but for constructive guidance in my dissertation as well.

I gratefully acknowledge to my parents and my friends for all their support throughout the period of this research.

Finally, I would like to thank for everyone who helped me to complete this dissertation.

Nan Shuhua

Table of Contents

Abstract	(3)
Acknowledgements	
Table of Contents	
List of Tables	(7)
List of Figures	(8)
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION	10
1.1 Background and Problem Statement	10
1.2 Research Questions	15
1.3 Research Objectives	15
1.4 Research Hypothesis	15
1.5 Research Scope	16
1.6 Definitions of Terms	16
1.7 Significance of the Study	18
CHAPTER 2 REVIEW OF THE LITERATURE	19
2.1 Key Concepts	19
2.2 Related Research and Hypothesis Development	
2.3 Summary of the Literature Review	60
2.4 Conceptual Framework	61
CHAPTER 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	67
3.1 Research Design	67
3.2 Quantitative Sampling	68
3.3 Data Collection	72
3.4 Questionnaire Instrumentation	72
3.5 Reliability	73
3.6 Data Analysis	74
3.7 Interview Method	78
3.8 Interview Sampling	80
3.9 Interview Outline Design	81
3.10 Ethical Issues	81

Table of Contents (Continued)

Page

CHAPTER 4 RESEARCH RESULTS	82
4.1 Questionnaire Distribution and Recovery	82
4.2 Validity Analysis	82
4.3 Measurement Model Fit Evaluation	84
4.4 Descriptive Statistics	90
4.5 Path Analysis and Hypothesis Testing	93
4.6 Indirect Effect	94
4.7 Analysis of Moderating Effect	95
4.8 Summary of Hypothesis Test Results	99
4.9 Findings of qualitative Data	100
CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	107
5.1 Conclusion	107
5.2 Discussion	108
5.3 Implications	114
5.4 Limitations of the Study	116
Bibliography	118
Appendices	146
Appendix A Letter of Introduction for The Delivery Questionnaire	147
Appendix B Results of PROCESS Regression Assumptions Testing	162
Biography	164

(6)

List of Tables

Table 2.1	Corporate environmental performance assessment standards	25
Table 2.2	Summary of the hypothesis	60
Table 2.3	Summary of the literature review and theory (1)	62
Table 2.4	Summary of the literature review and theory (2)	64
Table 2.5	Summary of the literature review and theory (3)	65
Table 3.1	Population category	69
Table 3.2	Sample selection	71
Table 3.3	Reliability test results	73
Table 3.4	Qualitative sampling	80
Table 4.1	Confirmatory factor analysis results	83
Table 4.2	Discriminant validity analysis	84
Table 4.3	Fitting indicators of the confirmatory factor analysis of the	
	unrevised model	89
Table 4.4	Fitting indicators of the confirmatory factor analysis of the revised	
	model	90
Table 4.5	Descriptive Statistics	90
Table 4.6	Direct Effect analysis and hypothesis testing	93
Table 4.7	The mediation effect analysis the indirect effect analysis	94
Table 4.8	Test of moderating effect of executive initiative in the influence of	
	resilient leadership on enterprise innovation	96
Table 4.9	Test of moderating effect of executive initiative in the influence of	
	resilient leadership on sustainable business performance	98
Table 4.10	Summary of hypothesis test results	100

List of Figures

Page

Figure 2.1	Conceptual framework of the study	61
Figure 3.1	Research Design	68
Figure 4.1	Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (1)	85
Figure 4.2	Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (2)	86
Figure 4.3	Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (3)	87
Figure 4.4	Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (4)	88
Figure 4.5	Structural equation model	95
Figure 4.6	Moderating effect test (1)	97
Figure 4.7	Moderating effect test (1)	99



List of Abbreviations

RO	Realistic Optimism
CF	Cognition and Flexibility
ITB	Inspiration, Team and Building
IC	Innovation Capacity
CSR	Customer Supplier Relationship
PSI	Product Service Innovation
SI	Strategic innovation
TI	Technical Innovation
MI	Marketing innovation
ECP	Economic performance
ENP	Environmental Performance
SOP	Social Performance
EI	Executive incentives

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

The first chapter of this study presents a brief background of the role played by resilient leadership in sustainable business performance, factors that affect this relationship as well as formulates the research problem that would be the focus of the current study.

Furthermore, this chapter will introduce the purpose and objectives of the study, as well as the two research questions that researchers will attempt to answer that the researchers will attempt to answer. Chapter 1 concludes with a discussion on the significance of the resilient leadership in a corporate setup as well as the study contribution to the existing body of literature. The present chapter is partitioned as follows:

- Background and Problem Statement
- Research Questions
- Research Objectives
- Research Hypothesis
- Research Scope
- Significance of the study

1.1 Background and Problem Statement

Civilizations have devolved into chaos throughout history owing to a lack of competent leadership. As gregarious social creatures, people play different roles in society (King et al., 2009); some are leaders, while others are followers. On the other hand, societies with exceptional leaders often deteriorate into chaos. This highlights the need for strong leadership in every society's capacity to function, progress, and thrive. Similarly, although businesses and organizations need skilled leaders and managers to operate well on a smaller scale, it begs the issue of what are the implications of to be a successful leader. According to Holsinger (2018), Self-reliance, independence, decisiveness, ambition, and risk-taking are all essential qualities associated with

leadership. In fact, many leaders have these characteristics, but different leaders will choose different leadership styles according to the different external environment.

Resilience is one of the most critical characteristics of a leader in the modern world (Holsinger, 2018). Today's leaders are bombarded with setbacks, disappointments, and unsuccessful efforts at achievement. While many executives and researchers are aware of this, we continue to avoid discussing the importance of resilience in the corporate world. Perhaps resilience is a quality seen from a personal standpoint. When we think about resilience, we see a person who has just finished an ultramarathon with two prosthetic legs. We do not imagine a leader who went through a tough year and emerged a stronger leader. Personal resilience is crucial, but it is also a necessary component of good leadership. The genuine grit of a leader is shown not by how well they perform in good times, but by how well they showcase emotional strength, fortitude, and professionalism in difficult times. It is hard to display resilience until you have experienced adversity. For example, a leader who leads a team amid a leadership change, a period of significant turnover, an organizational reorganization, or a season in which surveys show low performance. The more difficult the leadership task, the simpler it is to cultivate a resilient leadership stance.

Many people feel considerable unease in an uncertain and changing environment; Business companies and managers are equally troubled by these pressures. Leading a company requires dealing with many issues in a constantly changing and fluid business environment. Managing stakeholders and internal politics, resource competition, economic fluctuations, legislative changes, technology and data security, new market competitors, and finding and maintaining qualified and dedicated personnel are only part of the challenge. Southwick, Litz, Charney, & Friedman (2011) believe that as leaders and organizations often encounter difficulties and crises, their processes and resources will be tested. Will they be able to withstand the strain, or will they snap? Southwick et al (2011) also argued that it's very difficult to be a successful leader in a time of rapid economic development and change. However, the unique stressors facing organizations around the world today have inspired a new interest in studying individual and organizational behavior that focuses more on what constitutes practical and adaptive leadership. Surprisingly, there are some leaders and organizations that not only survive but thrive in this environment, but others come close to failing under the changing pressures. A lot of study and attention have been put into comprehending the elements that underpin these variances Recently, Transformational business models emphasize the importance of resilience in leadership and organizational performance. This chapter will look at the dynamic process of the resilience of people as leaders and how leaders engage with organizations to impact stability, development, and sound change during a crisis. What are the characteristics of resilience, and why do confident leaders adapt and, in some cases, become even stronger in the aftermath of a crisis? The solution is complicated and diverse, including various domains and mediating variables. This chapter is split into two parts. The first part gives a brief overview of the resilience construct; it defines resilience and discusses numerous key psychological, biological, and social domains and mediating elements related to individual resilience. The second half of the chapter focuses on resilient leaders' traits and how these attributes might promote the formation and maintenance of resilient organizations.

Resilient companies have leaders who agree to their goals. These people can develop a good vision for the company, effectively communicate strategies to others, and establish a strong attachment to the path of action by setting an example. This dedication makes it more tolerant and resilient to ambiguity in the face of danger. Bass and Avolio (1994) argue that in their transformational leadership paradigm, having a clear vision is one of the main criteria for measuring superior leadership performance. Covey (1991) also pointed out that having a vision, starting from goals, deeply understanding goals, values, and desired outcomes, and striving to apply this understanding to every task are one of the seven habits of successful people. When the purpose is clear and strong, people in the organization feel that their work is important, which not only increases job satisfaction but also reduces job turnover, thus making it easier to help the organization withstand adversity.

Resilient executives often have a positive outlook on their company. They believe in a bright future, can overcome obstacles, and believe in light at the end of the tunnel. However, it must be emphasized that resilient leaders must sincerely express their optimism (Reivich & Shatte, 2003) in the corporate climate. Realistically optimistic leaders recognize that underestimating danger and overestimating capabilities may lead

to failure (Kruger & Dunning, 1999). Resilient leaders, like pessimists, not only should risks be assessed, but areas of vulnerability and potential threats be closely monitored; but unlike negative people, they can easily get rid of negative information and broaden their focus, with greater creativity and better decision-making. (Fredrickson, 2001) Realistically optimistic executives don't raise the alerts too soon, nor do they indulge in confirmation biases or dismiss evidence that does not fit with the projected business strategy. Confirmation biases pose a problem when an excessively optimistic leader first sees evidence indicating that business estimates are incorrect but then seeks to interpret the facts in a manner that still fits a rose-colored perspective. Businesses waste time and money by failing to take remedial action to discount warning indications before evaluating findings or possible consequences. Resilient people learn to handle their worries. The ability to face fear greatly broadens a person's choices and types of choices, while being unable to face fear is a serious limitation. The fear of change is one of the most common fears that leaders and organizations must face and overcome. Modern leaders, especially those in rapidly expanding areas, must understand how to support creative transformation. This transformation typically occurs in matrix organizations, where changing concepts need to be unified across departments with different professional areas and teams. Regrettably, what is often scary is the change in the organizational structure, and there are some team members who are not able to respond to this change in a resilient way. Influential leaders feel afraid inside the company and actively try to alleviate it. Common scenarios might lead to low morale and reluctance to change: (1) fear of failure respectively if previous actions were practical, fear of poor performance might cause resistance to change; (2) perceived loss of self-mastery respectively routine often promotes a feeling of control Some team members may experience a loss of control due to change; (3) unfamiliarity with change respectively operational changes need individuals to step outside of habits imprinted in memory and uncharted ground; (4) rigid or rigid outlook, namely knowing and following procedures might be a complex challenge, and some team player might object exploring new approaches after deciding to stick with their tried and true method. These impediments to change are motivated by fear or perceived danger. A resilient leader looks for reasons to

resist change, actively supports capacity development in response to change, and strives for collaboration to get organized.

Current global changes such as globalization, digitization, COVID-19 pandemic and greater global rivalry provide significant difficulties for organizational leaders. Leaders are always challenged with change; they must deal with essential developments while also responding quickly to unforeseen situations. In this context, leaders' resilience has shown to be critical not just to leaders' health and well-being, but also to that of their followers, and so plays a significant role in organizational competitiveness. The global economy has reached a high-speed growth track as economic integration deepens and advances, and a new phase of technological revolution has started. Faced with increasingly fierce market competition and the demands of current economic development, particularly under the influence of the epidemic, scholars have expressed concern about resilient leadership, specifically how leaders respond to various disasters and challenges, how to remove intervention factors and respond to the situation, and how to revitalize the team after the crisis. In the context of economic globalization, Jilong and Rong (2020) argue that improving leadership flexibility is critical to the long-term viability of businesses. Giustiniano, Cunha, Simpson, Rego, and Clegg (2020) note that the COVID-19 pandemic is both known and unknown, and countries have different ways of responding to it, highlighting the importance of Resilient leadership. Furthermore, for contemporary firms, innovation has become an essential core competitiveness and driving force for long-term growth, and national strength competition is strongly portrayed as an independent innovation war. Not much is known about organizational leadership resilience impact on sustainable business performance in Chinese-owned large and small to medium enterprises and the role of enterprise innovation in this process (Zaharna, 2016, 2018). Moreover, executive incentive is another aspect that was found to have an impact on the relationship between organizational resilience and sustainable business performance (Kalay & Lynn, 2015; Teece, 2010; McGrath, 2010; Yu & Hang, 2010;) as well as innovation (Yun, Faraj, & Sims, 2005; Lorinkova, Pearsall, & Sims, 2013; Faulkender et al., 2010; Copeland et al., 2005). This provides a great opportunity for the researcher to investigate the impact of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance through innovation the moderating role of executive incentive on the Chinese companies (Shenglan, 2015; Yu & Hang, 2010; Lorinkova et al, 2013).

1.2 Research Questions

The present study advances the following questions:

Q1. Does resilient leadership influence sustainable business performance in manufacturing enterprises located in Jiangxi province in China?

Q2. How resilient leadership effect sustainable business performance, when enterprise innovation make as a mediating variable and executive incentive make as a moderating variable?

1.3 Research Objectives

The primary objectives of the present research are as follows:

Objective 1: To study the influence of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance in manufacturing enterprises located in Jiangxi province in China.

Objective 2: To research such effect, by considering the mediation effect of enterprise innovation and the moderation effect of executive incentive.

1.4 Research Hypothesis

There are six hypotheses of this dissertation:

H1: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.

H2: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

H3: There is a positive correlation between enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance.

H4: Enterprise innovation mediates the effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

H5: Executive incentive has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.

H6: Executive incentives has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

1.5 Research Scope

To focus on investigating the effect of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance through enterprise innovation the moderating role of executive incentive on 500 manufacturing enterprises located in Jiangxi province in China.

1.6 Definition of Terms

Sustainable business performance: the focus on profitability to ensure survival and financial efficiency such as ROI ROA, and sales growth used as an ultimate outcome and the most important drivers of business sustainability, and the need for a comprehensive approach is emphasized. (Lozano and von Haartman 2018);Sandvik& Sandvik,2003).

Economic performance: (also known as financial performance), which is often used by shareholders and/or investors to gauge corporate performance, in general, denotes the degree to which a firm's financial objectives are being reached or have been met (Rafuse, 1996; Padachi, 2006; Lazaridis, 2007).

Environmental performance: including resource use, pollution control and governance, and environmental investment. (Xuan and Weide 2009).

social performance: the accountability to meet society's expectations and duties on businesses at any particular momen(tCarroll 1979).

Resilient leadership: leaders can cultivate this tenacity by engaging in challenging past experiences in their personal and professional lives, and learning from these challenges, in order to address these constantly changing and disturbing issues.(Patel 2010;Faustenhammer and Gössler 2011).

Realistic Optimism: A forward-thinking attitude that implies executives have an optimistic attitude that events will turn out well, even to being certain that they will (Southwick & Charney, 2018).

Cognition and Flexibility: one of three basic cognitive control (or execution) processes, inhibition, and working memory. This includes overriding learned routine behaviors (such as braking when a traffic light turns red). (Diamond 2013).

Inspiration and team building: The integration of resources and inputs, coordinating work to achieve organizational goals, assigning responsibilities to each organization member, fairly resolving difficulties, and seeking incremental improvement on a continuous basis. (Fajana 2002).

Innovation capacity: the ability to recommend products, process or new ideas of employees in organizations (Damanpour, 1991). It is a selection of ideas or behaviors related to company policies, programs, systems, processes, products or services that are new to an organization(Zaltman, Duncan, & Holbek, 1973).

Product innovation: products that are developed d and commercialized to customers who acquire and use them (Sandvik& Sandvik, 202003).

Process innovation: an introduction to some impo ortant modifications in the production process such as new machines or new methods o of an organization (Nieto & Santamartia, 2010).

Statigic innovation: According to Hamel (2000), strategic innovation is a source of competitive advantage ideal for firms seeking to succeed in the new economy and creatively refresh their strategy.

Technological innovation: In the existing production management system through the introduction of new combinations of various factors of production, its basic features are mainly through the introduction of new technological products, the introduction of new technologies, the development of new markets, and the control of the sources of new products and raw materials. It is necessary to rely on advanced technology, according to the market situation with the new products, and ultimately gain benefits. (Schumpeter 1934;Mansfield 1971).

Marketing innovation: Deliberate acts by market players that result in a distinctly new or changed kind of market (Nenonen et al., 2019; Read et al., 2009, Santos and Eisenhardt, 2009).

Executive incentives: A company can take some effective incentives or measures to establish a mechanism to strengthen the work consciousness and enthusiasm of the whole

enterprise's top management, and then in order to let the executives make a greater contribution to the enterprise's better and sustainable development (Lin Minghao 2020).

1.7 Significance of the Study

China's manufacturing business has limited overall innovation capabilities, and it is an economy with high investment, high rewards, and high risks. In the turbulent and changing environment, how to cope with diverse crises and difficulties, how to minimize intervention elements and adapt to the new environment, and how to rejuvenate the post-crisis team, among other things, have raised researchers' concerns about resilient leadership. In the context of economic globalization, improving leadership is critical to the long-term viability of manufacturing firms. Chinese manufacturing businesses must develop their independent innovation and core competitiveness in order to compete more effectively in foreign markets.

Jiangxi is a large manufacturing province in China. No scholars have proposed the definition of resilient leadership in manufacturing industry before. Therefore, the research on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance in manufacturing industry has become a new topic.

So, this study provides a theoretical framework suited for Chinese manufacturing businesses and further expands the original theory based on the idea of elasticity and innovation, in conjunction with the Chinese cultural backdrop. As a result, this study may be described as a preliminary and exploratory study, which can allow researchers conduct indepth research on team adaptability in the future. Using questionnaires to conduct empirical research, a resilient leadership scale appropriate for Chinese manufacturing businesses was developed, which may be utilized as a reference for future study work. It promotes the quick development of business executives in the face of a changing environment and a crisis. When a crisis happens, the leader's ability to take appropriate steps swiftly will encourage the organization's healthy development and avert huge losses. In a nutshell, by understanding the notion of resilient leadership, we may discover leadership flaws. Leaders may avoid these critical flaws in advance based on the current scenario, preventing the onset of a crisis, promoting organizational structure and a healthy company environment, and realizing longterm enterprise growth.

CHAPTER 2 REVIEW OF THE LITERATURE

The major goal of this chapter is to provide the educational setting in order to examine important ideas. Previous research that is relevant to the primary and subvariables of this study. This chapter is broken into the following sections:

- Key Concepts
- Related Research and Hypothesis Development
- Summary of the Literature Review
- Conceptual Framework

2.1 Key Concepts

2.1.1 Sustainable Business Performance

2.1.1.1 Definition of Sustainable Business Performance

Corporate business performance is generally defined as a company's initiatives, which are voluntary by definition, indicating the integration of social and environmental issues into the company's operations and relationships with stakeholders. Lozano and von Haartman (2018) conducted recent research that identified the most important drivers of business sustainability, and the need for a comprehensive approach is emphasized. In fact, the way to achieve sustainable development of enterprises requires establishing long-term environmental, social, and economic benefits through strategies, business models, investment, and management tools that focus on sustainable development. In general, sustainability awareness is crucial in using sustainability management techniques. Some researchers have proposed that the correct use of performance evaluation and management control systems may help plan execution and drive organizations to achieve long-term goals. Lueg and Radlach (2016) reviewed the literature on the types of controls companies use to implement sustainable development and concluded that it seems necessary to combine formal and informal controls to reinforce each other and address many sustainability factors. This article discusses the Balanced Scorecard for Sustainable Development (SBSC), which is a multidimensional performance evaluation and management control tool that may play an important role in

the sustainable development of enterprises, and has received increasing research attention.

The BSC enhances standard financial performance indicators through indicators based on three additional perspectives of causality (customers, internal processes, and learning and growth) and provides them as drivers of long-term shareholder value. SBSC is one of the main methods used to evaluate the sustainability performance of enterprises. It combines the four perspectives of BSC with sustainability aspects, explicitly including environmental, social, or ethical considerations (Küçükbay & Sürücü, 2019). According to the literature, SBSC may be a viable tool for meeting various management needs related to corporate sustainable development issues, such as assisting companies in implementing sustainable development strategies, promoting sustainable development management standards and decision-making, supporting regulatory data needs, and meeting the information needs of stakeholders (Schalteger & Wagner, 2006). To incorporate sustainability into the balanced scorecard, there are three main options:

- integrate social and environmental impacts into the four viewpoints;
- add a non-market perspective; and
- create a separate environmental or social scorecard.

According to Searcy (2012), balanced scorecard research (BSC and SBSC) can be divided into four stages: design, implementation, use, and evolution. Therefore, future research on sustainable performance evaluation and control should pay more attention to the current framework and its related advantages and disadvantages.

2.1.1.2 Business Sustainability Balance Scorecard

The original form of the Balanced Scorecard for Business Sustainability (BSC) was developed by Kaplan and Norton (1992, 1996) to reduce accounting measures such as translation-based positioning, focus on the past, lack of consistency with changes in business value, and widespread use of financial results control systems and short-termism. BSC measures performance in a multidimensional manner. Although it still emphasizes traditional financial performance indicators as indicators of corporate success, it combines these indicators with three additional perspectives based on causality. It is often the driving force for creating long-term shareholder value -

customers, internal processes, and learning and growth. The BSC framework includes setting goals, selecting relevant indicators, setting goals, and implementing consistent activities to achieve the goals of each perspective.

Although financial indicators give the results of previous actions, the other three perspectives include non-financial indicators that allow companies to track progress in creating the capabilities and intangible assets needed for future development and financial success. BSC is an open system that combines the interests of many stakeholders, balances short-term and long-term concerns, leading and lagging indicators, and serves as a source of information for feedforward control. BSC was originally considered as a performance evaluation tool, but now it is increasingly linked to strategic planning and execution, serving as a management framework that helps identify the fundamental value drivers that companies can use to optimize their strategy (Kaplan and Norton, 2001). Based on these four perspectives, top management uses a balanced scorecard approach to transform their strategy and vision into performance measures that people can understand and take action on. This perspective makes it easier to combine strategy with the activities and goals of employees (Davis & Albright, 2004). In addition, performance measures should be created based on causal relationships, and managers must make assumptions based on their thoughts and assumptions, and consider organizational contingencies. Managers should best evaluate activities (strategies) to produce expected results (Bukh & Malmi, 2005). The concept of causal relationships between indicators included in various perspectives is crucial because non-financial measures should be adjusted to predict future financial performance (Norreklit, 2000). When establishing a balanced scorecard system, causal relationships should be used to help managers identify the relationship between long-term resources and capabilities, including sustainability issues, and short-term financial results; A multidimensional approach will enable leaders to address environmental and social issues. Therefore, the SBSC concept evolved from the standard BSC, combining the four perspectives of the BSC with sustainability aspects to incorporate environmental, social, or ethical considerations, and including sustainability related goals and performance measures. SBSC may be a viable tool for meeting various sustainable development management needs, including assisting companies in implementing sustainable development

strategies, promoting sustainable development management standards, decision-making, and reporting, supporting regulatory data requirements, meeting stakeholder information needs, and raising employee awareness of sustainability issues.

Figge et al. (2002) described and discussed three main ways to incorporate sustainability into the balanced scorecard framework. The first step involves environmental and social issues from the four BSC perspectives. Environmental and social factors complement other important strategic aspects through their core strategic components or the need to establish goals, lagging and leading indicators, as well as performance drivers for goals. The second option requires the introduction of a new non market perspective into the balanced scorecard. Although the traditional BSC perspective reflects market logic, environmental and social issues are often external and do not fully incorporate business interactions through pricing. However, they can affect the performance of all four aspects of the balanced scorecard. Therefore, the strategic fundamentals and leading indicators of non market perspectives must be recognized, translated into appropriate indicators, and linked to other perspectives. The third approach involves creating environmental and social scorecards. Once the strategic importance and location of environmental and social components in the causal chain have been determined using the two techniques described above, the scorecard should further distinguish between environmental and social components. Therefore, it must be developed and used together with one of the other two options. According to Searcy (2012), BSC and SBSC research can be divided into four stages: design, implementation, use, and evolution. Hansen and Schaltegger (2016) focused on the design phase, emphasizing that companies may envision SBSC architectures in various ways to connect performance views, strategic goals, and logical links between these components. In general, the architecture can vary based on two criteria: the nature of the hierarchy between individual performance perspectives and strategic goals affected by the company's value system, and the allocation of economic, environmental, and social performance, which refers to methods used to embed sustainability into the SBSC. The following section discusses three SBC factors based on the design introduced by Hansen and Schaltegger (2016), namely economic, environmental, and social performance.

2.1.1.3 Dimensions of Sustainable Business Performance based on Business Sustainability Balance Scorecard

Corporate Economic Performance

Economic performance (also known as financial performance), which is often used by shareholders and/or investors to gauge corporate performance, in general, denotes the degree to which a firm's financial objectives are being reached or have been met (Rafuse, 1996; Padachi, 2006; Lazaridis, 2007). As a consequence, it is used to quantify the financial or economic outcomes of a company's activities, policies, and procedures. The financial performance of any corporation indicates how effectively management deploys or uses the business's resources to generate outcomes and fulfill budgetary objectives. It also determines a firm's liquidity and solvency condition at any particular moment. Financial analysis, which includes the evaluation of financial accounts and reports, is often used to examine the economic position/health of a company (Shropshire & Hillman, 2007). Despite the fact that financial statements do not provide full information on a firm's financial processes, they do provide adequate information about a firm's profitability and financial soundness. Businesses and major stakeholders interested in the firm's financial performance include management, workers, and shareholders, as well as personal and institutional investors, creditors, rivals, and governments - for tax purposes (Salama, 2005).

Ahmadu, Aminu, Mikailu, and Tukur (2015) conducted a study on economic performance in Nigeria where the pooled ordinary least square regression was used to investigate how corporate governance frameworks affect the economic performance of several Nigerian companies. The indicators used to evaluate company performance are ROE, ROA, P/E ratio, and Tobin's Q. The report calls for concentration of equity rather than diversification. It also advocates the establishment of a board of ten members and a manager position different from that of the chairman of the board. Despite the lack of evidence that boards with a large proportion of foreign directors perform better than other boards, research has found that companies led by foreign managers outperform companies managed by local managers in key performance indicators. The sample criteria are not representative, and based on several gaps revealed in the study, more powerful statistical analysis techniques may have been used instead of typical OLS regression and its accompanying shortcomings.

Nawaz, Salman, and Shamsi (2015) created a method for evaluating enterprise economic performance using data envelopment analysis. Financial statements and ratios from articles and books are used to establish performance evaluation indicators. Due to the large number of variables, data envelopment analysis was used to evaluate the obtained data in the study. Liquidity, activity, leverage, economic value added, and profitability ratios are used to evaluate performance. The survey shows that 9 out of 36 enterprises are efficient, which means that the other 27 are inefficient. One of the shortcomings of this study is that it only focuses on analyzing the internal efficiency of the selected organization, without providing any type of rating. It also avoids the use of qualitative indicators when designing proposed models.

Suminder and Samiya (2013) investigated the impact of size, solvency, liquidity, equity, and leverage on the profitability of several life insurance companies. Multiple linear regression analysis was used in the study to quantify the impact of these variables on the company's profitability over a five-year period. The sample for this study includes 18 Indian life insurance companies (including 1 public insurance company and 17 private insurance companies). The results of this study indicate that the size and liquidity of life insurance companies have a positive impact on their profitability, but equity capital is the opposite. There is no necessary correlation between insurance leverage and profitability. Due to the limited number of variables used as performance indicators for insurance companies, there are significant gaps in research.

Bhunia, Somnath, and Gautam (2011) investigated the financial performance of certain Indian public sector pharmaceutical companies. The purpose of this study is to investigate short-term and long-term solvency, profitability, and liquidity trends, as well as the reasons for financial operational efficiency, liquidity, and profitability behavior. Multiple regression methods are used to assess how the selected ratio affects a company's financial condition and profitability. The economic performance indicators used include solvency, profitability, efficiency, financial stability, operational efficiency, and liquidity ratios. It found that both companies had good liquidity conditions. The economic soundness of the two companies also shows a downward trend.

Corporate Environmental Performance

Enterprise environmental performance evaluation standards are mainly formulated by multinational organizations with global influence (Table 3.1). Since Norsk Hydro, a Norwegian company, released the world's first environmental report in 1989, governments, international organizations, and relevant United Nations agencies have successively issued environmental reporting rules, including requirements for enterprise environmental performance evaluation. In China, Petro China produced the first independent environmental report, "Health, Safety, and Environment Report," in 2000.

 Table 2.1 Corporate environmental performance assessment standards

Issuing body	Date of issuing	
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)	2000; 2002; 2006; and 2014	
International Organization for	1999 and 2013	
Standardization (ISO)		
United Nations Conference on Trade and 2000		
Development (UNCTAD)		
World Business Council for Sustainable 2000		
Development (WBCSD)		

Extensive and scientific evaluation of enterprise environmental performance can not only guide investors to make correct investment decisions, but also enable enterprises to fully realize economic and social benefits in all aspects of the product lifecycle from input to output, thereby maintaining sustainable development. The operation of the enterprise. The enterprise environmental performance evaluation system is mainly constructed by Chinese researchers from the perspectives of production chain, value chain, supply chain, and environmental capital structure. Yan and Huanan (2003) proposed the concept of enterprise green degree, analyzed the purpose, principles, and methods of establishing a green indicator system, and established a green indicator system for each stage of the manufacturing process - raw material green degree, manufacturing engineer green degree, marketing green degree, and green consumption degree. Based on the value chain theory, Xuan and Weide (2009) proposed a comprehensive environmental

performance evaluation system that includes environmental factors of upstream and downstream enterprises such as environmental resource use, pollution control and governance, and environmental investment. Lijuan and Bing (2003) developed an environmental management performance evaluation system based on the description of green supply chain and environmental management standards (ISO14000 series), which includes the ecological consequences of supply chain processes, supply chain resource consumption, resource recovery, and environmental reputation. Zhao Jiang (2011) designed a set of environmental performance evaluation system and environmental reputation from the perspective of green production chain for the reuse of recycled resources, energy consumption in supply chain processes, and environmental impact of supply chain processes, combining the balanced scorecard idea and the characteristics of green supply chain. Lei (2013) established a corporate environmental performance evaluation system based on the environmental capital structure, with the leading indicators being environmental quantitative indicators and evaluation indicators such as the overall overview of environmental activities, environmental asset structure, environmental liability structure, environmental expenditure structure, and environmental benefits.

Corporate Social Performance

Carroll (1979) defines corporate social performance (CSP) as the accountability to meet society's expectations and duties on businesses at any particular moment. Social performance is classified into a hierarchy model, with economic duty at the bottom and legal, ethical, and philanthropic responsibilities rising to the top. Another study, this time by Frank and Armandi (1981), offers a perspective on societal performance based on Maslow's pyramid model. Social responsibility, which is at the top of the business needs pyramid, is a complete fulfillment of the demands inside and beyond the corporation. Dahlsrud (2008) offered a basic idea of CSP in an analysis based on the findings of a content analysis of 37 distinct definitions of social duty. Businesses have always influenced the economy, society, the environment, and intimate interactions with the government, consumers, or shareholders, and have always followed the law. Thus, social responsibility has five components: economic, social, environmental, voluntariness, and stakeholder (Dahlsrud, 2008). In addition, Idemudia (2011) defines

social performance as the concept, practice, and impact of a company's intentional or unintentional connection with people, institutions, organizations, communities, society, and the environment. The concept of CSP originated in the 1950s and 1960s and is crucial to understanding how CSP relates to other key themes and concepts in business and social/business ethics. As the concept of CSP has evolved, an older phrase, corporate social responsibility (CSR), has been used as a component of CSP, the ethical and/or structural concept of social responsibility, or business interaction with others. Ultimately, the focus of the study shifted to the procedures for companies to adopt (or avoid) social responsibility and respond to stakeholder issues, as well as the impact and results of CSP related activities. Therefore, researchers gradually incorporate the "why (principles), what and how (processes), and what (results) have occurred" of CSP (Androniceanu, 2019). Any corporate social performance bibliography must include literature on relevant topics, such as corporate social responsibility and response, stakeholder theory, corporate responsibility, corporate political activity, problem management, and sustainability (Taran & Mirkin, 2020). Although the complete bibliographic information on these issues is beyond the scope of this page, readers will find some reference materials therein. The CSP section is structured in two ways: the first is based on themes, including concept development, operationalization, stakeholder interaction (e.g., workers, suppliers), CSP and financial performance, corporate social reporting, and a widely attractive CSP approach (Mitra et al., 2016). Secondly, in the topic, the reader will notice that the studies mentioned are arranged in chronological order. Since CSP is a relatively new research field, this chronological approach within a topic enables readers to observe how the topic has evolved from simple "should" to advanced conceptual and empirical research (Peloza & Shang, 2011).

2.1.2 Resilient Leadership

2.1.2.1 Definition of Resilient Leadership

Because of its dynamic character, the notion of leadership is possibly one of the most challenging notions to articulate in literature. However, a few definitions supplied by various writers are recommended to provide some degree of understanding of the subject. Larson (1968) defines leadership as the capacity to determine what is to be done and then persuade others to desire it. Truman describes leaders as people who have the ability to persuade others to do things they don't want to do and enjoy them. These two definitions represent three basic themes about leadership: leadership is about initiating, leadership includes followers, and leadership is about providing resources, behaviors, and energy for achieving goals.

Over the decades, many theories have emerged to explain the entire content of this concept: Great Man and Traits theories, Behavioral theory, Situational analytic theory. Despite the various leadership theories, this research focuses on transformational leadership theory, transactional leadership theory, and the resilient leadership theory, which is presently in the leadership literature. These three beliefs seem to comprise the majority of the contemporary leadership perspective.

Like the broader notion of leadership, resilience theory is difficult to describe or ascribe a general meaning to. However, what Robb (2000) defines as resilient companies should offer some insight into what resilient leadership is all about. This is because several relationships have been discovered between leadership and organizational outcomes, such as corporate culture, motivation of employees, employee job satisfaction (Voon., 2011; Ngadiman., 2013), employee performance, team performance, and organizational performance (Wang., 2011; Lai, 2011). As a result, expressing the reality that an organization's traits or image are what its leaders sculpt for it. According to Rob (2000), a resilient organization can maintain a competitive advantage by doing two things simultaneously: providing excellent performance against current goals, while effectively innovating and adapting to rapid and volatile market changes and technologies. He raised this concept in response to questions about how to create companies that are not susceptible to the current volatile, unpredictable, complex, and ambiguous (VUCA) business environment. In addition, Rob (2000) pointed out that to build such an organization, two subsystems - performance system and adaptive system must coexist, so that the entire organizational system can quickly adapt and standardize to respond to the constantly changing external environment. These two subsystems represent two well-known management phrases: performance or task oriented and change oriented. According to the above definition, Resilient leadership can maintain the competitive advantage of an organization or group of people by performing two tasks simultaneously: achieving outstanding performance on current goals, while effectively innovating and adapting to rapid and unstable changes in the market and technological progress. In other words, Resilient leadership is both performance oriented and change oriented, focusing on achieving organizational goals, and initiating and managing changes within the company, To meet the needs of internal and external business environments.

Clayton (2012) defines wicked issues as the obstacles executives encounter in today's corporate climate. Clayton adds that the originality and uniqueness of these wicked situations distinguish them. They are socially complicated, with each stakeholder having a unique knowledge and intended goal. They are disorganized and do not have a single answer. They cannot be entirely resolved since there is typically no clear understanding of the issue, and treating one problem may produce another. In order to solve these problems, she believes that leaders must use unconventional and creative methods to provide guidance, rather than using the same strategies to solve what she calls mild problems - often daily organizational difficulties. According to Patel (2010) and Faustenhammer and Gössler (2011), leaders can cultivate this tenacity by engaging in challenging past experiences in their personal and professional lives, and learning from these challenges, in order to address these constantly changing and disturbing issues.

2.1.2.2 Dimensions of Resilient Leadership

Realistic Optimism

Optimism is a forward-thinking attitude that implies executives have an optimistic attitude that events will turn out well, even to being certain that they will (Southwick & Charney, 2018). It also entails managers embracing the past and not letting negative events in the past to cloud their aspirations for the future. Being attentive, or appreciating life in the now, is also an element of the optimistic manager's cognitive and action processes (Positive Psychology Program, 2017). Manager optimism is not a set amount since it may rise or fall based on how information is processed and where it is stored. Seligman (2002b) demonstrates that acquired optimism is accessible to managers disproportionately affected by its adversary, pessimism. The key skill of learnt optimism is the ability to refute gloomy notions (Seligman, 2018). Realistically optimistic managers pay significant attention to unfavorable information pertinent to the situation at hand, but do not stay fixated on it. Managers adopt problem-solving coping mechanisms and accept

the reality of a situation over which they have no control (Luthans et al., 2015). Realistically optimistic managers have pleasant emotions while doing realistic evaluations (Luthans, 2002). Realistic optimism assesses what one can and cannot do in a given scenario, which contributes to one's [manager's] effectiveness and hope (Luthans, Avolio, Avey & Norman, 2007). Managers with realistic optimism quickly withdraw from challenges that are likely intractable, recognize when to cut their losses, and focus time and attention on those likely to be solved (Schneider, 2018). Managers who are competent in realistic optimism are keenly aware of the need of avoiding optimistic bias, which entails self-deception or convincing oneself of a desirable view without conducting an objective reality check of all aspects involved in a circumstance. Managers should feel in command so that when they take on a job or project, their actions substantially influence the results. They must be driven and ready to go to any length to get the required results (Luthans et al., 2015). The mentality of a management entering a project substantially influences its chances of success. Managers may benefit from Dweck's (2016) understanding of mindset in the context of successfully practicing realistic optimism. Managers might enable pessimism to prevail by assuming that events will almost always go against them and that this situation will not change (fixed mindset). Such pessimism leads a manager to detach himself from the problem's reality via denial, escape, pessimism, and cognitive avoidance (Luthans et al., 2015). Managers might also feel that events will be a success by doing thorough preparation and making appropriate modifications throughout implementation (growth mindset).

According to Gordon (2017), pessimistic managers quit up due to hardship, negativity, annoyance, fear, disapproval, doubters, and circumstances. Such managers also give up because they lack the optimism, positivism, and confidence to continue going ahead. The Blue Ocean Shift ideology opposes pessimism by recommending that managers find possibilities where previously only limits were seen (Kim & Mauborgne, 2017). Shores' (2017) concept in Conscious Communications is applicable to managers dealing with pessimism. According to Shores, Conscious Communications is a simple procedure that consists of removing bad language, choosing effective phrases, and concentrating on what you want. Managers who are realistic optimists have a strong sense of self-control, which leads to increased confidence and determination to find answers to challenging problems. They generate solutions by broadening their field of view to include possibilities to overcome hardship, inspire and assist others, and work hard to put the ideas into action (Kim & Mauborgne, 2017). These managers seek out what is required for their organizations to thrive and fulfill their objectives (Charan, Willigan, & Giffen, 2017). Some realistically optimistic managers believe in the saying hope for the best, but plan for the worse (Collingwood, 2016 p.52).

Cognition and Flexibility

According to Diamond (2013), cognitive flexibility is one of three basic cognitive control (or execution) processes, inhibition, and working memory. This includes overriding learned routine behaviors (such as braking when a traffic light turns red). Therefore, for a long time, cognitive control has been considered as a fundamental opposition to the basic associative teaching method, which regulates the coupling of input and conventional behavioral responses (Norman & Shalice, 1986). Associative learning requires selection and attention to produce progressive but planned actions, while cognitive control is believed to require selection and attention to achieve progressive but intentional actions. In this concept, cognitive flexibility can be seen as the pinnacle of cognitive control: other control mechanisms are needed to maintain and defend our current goals and task sets (for example, selectively paying attention to goal-related inputs and suppressing habitual responses), but a person's overall ability to adjust these goals and task sets produces adaptive behavior. Therefore, cognitive flexibility may be seen as a "meta control" (Hommel, 2015; Goschke, 2003). However, viewing cognitive flexibility as a higher-order control mechanism raises the question of how this ability to switch between task groups is regulated: What determines cognitive flexibility in the absence of dwarfs? Surprisingly, recent research has shown that "low-level" associative learning pathways may affect flexibility. Cognitive flexibility was also studied using examples of creative problem solving and rule reversal learning, such as the Wisconsin Card Sorting Test. However, these paradigms make it impossible for the experimenter to control when the task set actually changes. There is a large amount of conceptual overlap between task switching research and working memory updating research. However, the latter focuses on changing "things" in (declarative) memory functions rather than changing (procedural) task rules. The task switching literature focuses on moving between task sets. Task sets

are a set of context dependent production ("if, then") rules that we actively retain to guide our current activities (Goschke, 2003). For example, when we want to call a friend, we use our mobile phone for navigation, using rules to describe our task set. Although some components are typically shared between task sets, their association with many rules and goals separates task sets.

Inspiration and Team Building

A team is a collection of individuals who work together to achieve common goals. Team building is the process of helping a group of people achieve their goals. It includes stages such as clarifying team goals, identifying obstacles to achieving goals, facing identified issues, and achieving goals. According to Fajana (2002), teamwork is the integration of resources and inputs, coordinating work to achieve organizational goals, assigning responsibilities to each organization member, fairly resolving difficulties, and seeking incremental improvement on a continuous basis. According to Katzenbach and Smith (1993), a team is essentially a small group of individuals with a set of performance goals, committed to common goals and their mutually responsible approach. The goal here is to have a reasonable team size, with all team members committed to achieving team goals. In addition, team members must be jointly responsible for their actions and the results of these activities. In the process of team building, there are two basic talents. The first step is to identify appropriate concerns, and the second step is to address them in the appropriate order and manner (Brower, 1995). Depending on the size and nature of a team, team building can take various forms. For example, in the case of constant change in team composition, the focus is on cultivating people's skills in successful team members and trying to modify individual talents and capabilities to work in teams or in many teams. In the case of a team member, such as in a management team, for example, the focus is trying to improve the relationship between team members. The most extensive scale is that of organizational team development. Individuals' power to influence company culture is very restricted, with the exception of the senior management team. One of the primary goals of team building is to modify the prevailing behaviors and attitudes in the company, which are nearly entirely independent of who actually works there. Team building is not just about building teams. It's not just about imposing generic activities on the team with little regard

for the needs of the team. (Argote, & McGrath, 1993). There is a need for a more thoughtful approach, and above all, something with clearly defined and achievable goals. It is vital to consider particular concerns that must be handled as well as the types or personalities engaged in the team. According to Dianna (2006), teamwork is a kind of collective labor that may contain individual activities, but generally involves some sort of communal activity in which each member contributes part of a jointly authored document that is designed to represent the group's collective expertise.

Innovation Capabilities

External and internal variables impact innovation capabilities, which are primarily explanatory aspects of organizations' innovation processes and/or outcomes. We found a few reviews of the literature on innovation capacity. These evaluations place a varied emphasis on innovative capabilities. For example, Assink (2006) conducted a literature study on inhibitors of disrupting innovation capabilities. He did a thorough investigation to uncover impediments to disruptive innovation skills. The inability to forget outdated mindset, effective dominant design, risk-averse corporate climate, poor management of the innovation process, lack of adequate follow-through capacity and inability to develop the required internal and external infrastructure were identified as the main obstacles. Frishammar, Kurkkio, Abrahamsson, and Lichtenthaler (2012) conducted a literature study on process of motivation and innovation capabilities, especially the degree to which intended innovation process results are materialized in sectors such as manufacturing. Their analysis identified strategy, cooperation, and culture as the three primary characteristics of innovation capabilities. Slater, Mohr, and Sengupta (2014), on the other hand, conduct literature research on the innovative capabilities of radical products and establish a successful model for radical product innovation. Senior leadership, organizational characteristics, organizational structure, transformation and transformation product development processes, and product launch strategies are considered the main aspects of their evaluation of innovation capabilities. The literature review by Bell and Figueiro (2012) focuses on companies in emerging countries.

Customer Supplier Relationship

There is a growing recognition that the management of buyer-supplier activities offers significant opportunities for firms to create strategic advantage and achieve extraordinary financial performance. Several studies have noted that strategic buyer–supplier outsourcing relationships improve a firm's ability to be agile in their product markets (Holcomb & Hitt, 2007). Resilient leadership intimates that buyers should align investment in mitigation capabilities with the supply risks that they face to improve performance (Blackhurst et al., 2011). The criticality of the role of suppliers in promoting a buyer's responsiveness is heightened especially when companies focus on what they do best, and outsource the remaining activities to suppliers (Gottfredson & Aspinall, 2005). Collaboration with suppliers is important to gain superior agility performance.

Management buyer-supplier relationships requires both partners to work closely with each other to achieve mutual goals. This involves mutual adjustment and teamwork, shared goals and joint problem solving (Gittell, 2002). Resilient leadership involvement is an important attribute of management that helps secure resource commitments to help overcome transaction uncertainties (Lee & Kim, 1999).

2.1.3 Enterprise Innovation

2.1.3.1 Definition of Enterprise Innovation

The concept of innovation was first proposed by the economist Schumpeter in 1912. In his book "On Economic Development", he proposed that innovation is the rearrangement or transfer of production functions with the aim of obtaining potential excess profits (Xiong, 2009). Innovation is divided into three categories: technological innovation, market innovation, and organizational innovation, and is further divided into five ways: introducing new technologies or adopting new production methods, producing new products, exploring new markets, and opening up and utilizing new sources of supply. Raw materials or semi-finished products, and the use of new organizational methods. On this basis, innovation has further expanded its connotation, referring to the establishment of new enterprise management systems, upgrading and upgrading of existing products, exploring new markets and customer groups, providing new services, updating old service models, and reforming existing production processes or processes. Based on Schumpeter's definition of innovation, many domestic scholars have conducted various studies from different perspectives, expanding the connotation of innovation from both narrow and broad perspectives: narrow innovation refers to the organic restructuring and integration of production factors, production conditions, and organizational structure. System to obtain potential market opportunities, expand marketing opportunities and targets, and build a production and operation system with stronger competitive advantages, better product or service effects, and higher comprehensive efficiency level. Broad sense innovation refers to the entire process from research and development to market and then to technology diffusion, including narrow sense innovation, which extends both ends of innovation in narrow sense innovation, and increases the front-end and back-end processes of technology research and development and diffusion (Fu, 1998).

Innovation is both result oriented and process oriented. The result view holds that innovation should be embodied through new achievements, manifested in the form of products, technologies, services, etc; The process view believes that the outcome of innovation is unknown, so it should be presented in the form of a process. The results of any innovation cannot be separated from the investment and process of innovation. The centralized investment of new knowledge, new technology, financial resources, intellectual resources, and other factors provides the opportunity to produce effective innovation results. It is a whole process including innovative ideas, technological research and development, and commercialization of products or services. The results perspective and the process perspective are two commonly used perspectives for studying the concept and connotation of innovation. They focus on two main characteristics: innovation, novelty, and process. To sum up, innovation is both a process and a result, as well as a process for enterprises to apply new products or technologies that can create value (Crossan & Apaydin, 2010).

After the 1990s, scholars' research and definition of innovation entered a stage of differentiation and convergence. On the whole, there are four different views on what is "innovation", mainly including: ① "product view": scholars who hold this view believe that the final result of innovation is the birth of a new product. For example, Kelm et al. (1995) calculated the number of new products that the organization announced to
be successfully launched as the basis for measuring organizational innovation by referring to the archival data of the Wall Street Journal Index. Kochhar & David (1996), taking the archive data of PTSNPA in the United States as a reference, calculated the number of new products, new technologies, etc. announced by the organization as the basis for evaluating the organization's innovation. (2) "Process view":

Scholars who hold this view judge innovation through a series of processes or stages, believing that innovation is a process. For example, Johannesen & Dolva (1997) believes that innovation is a process that involves using knowledge and relevant information to create and introduce new and useful things. Scott & Bruce (1994) defined innovation from the multi-stage process of problem discovery, seeking financial support, and completing problem solving. (3) "Product process view": define innovation by integrating results and processes, and think that innovation is both a process and a result. For example, Doughert & Bowman (1995) believed that innovation is a complex problemsolving process. The activities involved include product design, product innovation, coordination of functional departments, and collaboration of company resources, structures, and strategies. Lumpkin & Dess (1996) believes that innovation reflects a company's operation and support for new ideas, novelty, experimentation, and creative processes, resulting in new products, services, and technologies "Multi perspective": In addition to considering the definition of technological innovation, management innovation is also included in the definition. This perspective is adopted by many modern mathematicians. For example, Russell & Schneiderheinze (2005) defined innovation by the number of radical and nonlinear changes in the company's products, markets, processes, systems, etc. in the past three years. Martins & Terblanche (2003) believed that innovation is a new idea that can be used to start or improve a product, process, or service. Innovation also includes product innovation, new production processes and technologies, new structures and management systems, new plans and management schemes. etc.

This paper introduces the definition of innovation put forward in the "Innovate America" plan submitted by the National Competitiveness Commission of the United States to the government in 2004: "Innovation is transforming perception and technology into new products, processes, methods, and services, creating new market value, promoting economic growth, and improving living standards". This definition has a broad meaning. It includes scientific and technological innovation, but it is not only scientific and technological innovation. It covers the development of concept, design, technology, market region and scope, innovation and improvement of production processes and processes, and development of new fields or industries. More importantly, it includes the successful introduction of innovative products and services to the market, thus making a good distinction between innovation and invention. Innovation includes creativity and invention. Innovation refers to the collection of activities that conceptualize, research, experiment, and develop new equipment, methods, processes, processes, and commercialization. Creating new products and services for the market and achieving success is a process and art. It is also a collection of social technology and economic activities to make creativity and invention patents practical and commercialized. Invention is a process that relies on the inspiration of creativity and continuous efforts until the invention patent right (intellectual property right) recognized by the society is obtained. What innovation needs to do is not only from creativity to invention, but also the long process of transforming invention into socially recognized product goods or services and obtaining economic benefits.

On the basis of defining innovation, many scholars also try to define innovation capability. For example, in "Innovation Strategy of Knowledge Economy: Emiton (1998) believes that the innovation ability of an enterprise includes the ability to create new ideas, the ability to use good ideas, the ability to ultimately turn good ideas into market-oriented products or services, and the ability to bring profits. He started from the three stages of the innovation process: invention, transformation and commercialization, and believed that the innovation ability of enterprises is the ability to integrate and practice the interdependence of creation, transformation and commercialization. "The ability to creatively integrate production factors" (Shu, 2003). Li (2001) believes that "innovation ability is a kind of ability, a kind of system and a kind of culture. It is not just technological innovation." His definition of innovation ability is "Enterprises make full use of human resources, optimize the combination of knowledge and other capabilities to gain competitive advantage, and continuously update their systems and technology capabilities based on emerging and potential market demands". In fact, the innovation capabilities of enterprises are manifested in the innovative combination of rare resources of enterprises" (Li, 2001).

To sum up, the enterprise innovation capability reflects a comprehensive capability of the enterprise innovation system behavior. It refers to the comprehensive capability of the enterprise to constantly create new ideas and new concepts, and use these new ideas and new concepts to bring profits and efficiency to the enterprise, gain competitive advantages, and ultimately achieve the strategic objectives of the enterprise development through technological progress, market development, management upgrading, and cultural construction. From the above definition, we can see that the innovation capability of an enterprise is integrated and is a combination of various capabilities of an enterprise. The technological innovation capability is the core element, but the institutional innovation capability, management innovation capability and related supporting innovation capability, as well as the synergy among these capability elements, have an important impact on the enterprise's innovation capability, reflecting the comprehensive ability of the enterprise to respond to the market and environment.

The innovation ability is the embodiment of the vitality of enterprises, and the key for enterprises to cope with the challenges of the fierce competitive environment and obtain the survival and development space. In the path selection of enterprise innovation ability cultivation, there are the following strategic measures.

Path 1: Stimulation of Individual Creativity of Employees

The individual creativity of employees is the source of enterprise innovation ability. "Any improvement in a company's products, services, or management must first come from the individual thinking of employees. Any innovation that ultimately brings significant benefits to the company must first come from the individual creativity of employees." According to the theory of enterprise resource management, employees are one of the core resources of enterprises, which are valuable, scarce and difficult to imitate (Han, 2003). Only the effective development and utilization of human resources can build sustainable competitive advantages of enterprises. Dobin (2006) believes that the cultivation of independent innovation capability is divided into innovation intention, transfer of innovation intention, employee training II and technical capital investment. An (2007) believes that the internal factors of enterprise innovation capability can be classified as innovation desire, human resources and financial resources.

Path 2: Improvement of Organizational Learning and Absorptive Capacity

Although stimulating the individual creativity of employees is the fundamental way to cultivate the innovation ability of enterprises, to integrate the discrete innovation behavior of individual creativity into the innovation ability of enterprises, it is necessary to treat enterprises as knowledge management and organizational knowledge learning. Demsetz (1988) believed that the development of enterprises is based on knowledge. But these knowledges have certain particularity (1) Most of the knowledge of enterprises is implicit (imperceptible), that is, most of the knowledge in enterprises is difficult to express through language, communicate and transfer, and can only be obtained through practice. (2) Knowledge is cumulative. The degree of accumulation depends on the ability to accommodate new knowledge based on existing knowledge. (3) The specificity of knowledge. Knowledge in enterprises is difficult to be stolen and imitated because of its implicit nature, and has strong specificity. (4) Professional knowledge. Due to limited rationality, people can only efficiently accumulate, create, and store certain types of professional knowledge, especially enterprise knowledge. Obviously, as an enterprise, its knowledge system includes both explicit and tacit knowledge, and tacit knowledge is the core of enterprise knowledge development. The accumulation, specificity and professionalism of knowledge enable enterprises to have special advantages in some aspects. Cohen & Levinthal (1990) believed that the absorptive capacity of an enterprise determines its innovation capacity. This absorptive capacity refers to "the ability of an enterprise to identify the value of external new information, absorb and digest information, and apply it to the commercialization process."

Path 3: Support of Resources

In addition to the stimulation of individual creativity of employees and the improvement of organizational learning and knowledge absorption ability, the cultivation of enterprise innovation ability also depends on the construction of supporting resources such as capital investment, institutional guarantee, and cultural construction. Enterprises need a large number of intellectual resources, basic technology, information resources, environmental resources, and other support in the process of innovation. These supporting conditions together constitute the supporting elements of enterprise innovation capabilities and constitute environmental background factors that have a significant impact on enterprise innovation activities. These environmental background elements not only provide the necessary resources for enterprise innovation activities, but also profoundly affect the combination and operation of enterprise innovation resources: not only from the aspects of technological basis and intellectual resource conditions, but also from the aspects of concept and human environment, affecting the enterprise's institutional innovation ability, thus ultimately affecting and restricting the overall improvement of enterprise innovation ability.

The significance of innovation to competitiveness is recognized. Understanding the meaning of innovation, on the other hand, is a bit more contentious, particularly in the academic world, where research is predominantly focused on technical innovation to the exclusion of other forms of innovation. This is because innovation is not an isolated enterprise activity; Instead, it relies entirely on a combination of new or changed activities to improve the competitiveness of the organization.

Perhaps Joseph Schumpeter (1934) was the first author to identify the existence of different types of innovation: commodity innovation, production technology innovation, market innovation, supply source innovation, and organizational method innovation in any industry. Therefore, to have a broad understanding of the meaning of innovation, it is necessary to go beyond constantly changing technologies. The environment in which businesses operate is becoming more dynamic (Hollen et al., 2013), necessitating organizational adjustments, mostly via the use of innovation. As it grew more vital for businesses, innovation became more significant as a topic of study; as a result, it has grown rapidly in the last several decades.

Such progress has been delayed when the findings of investigations seem to be divergent or unstable, preventing the formation of a cohesive theory for the field. According to various scholars, the answer to this dilemma is to explore diverse forms, features, and dimensions of innovation. The present study focusses four types of innovation respectively: process innovation, product service innovation, strategic innovation, technological innovation and marketing innovation as the most relevant types of innovation that are required in the modern corporate world (Androniceanu, 2019; Gallego, Rubalcaba, & Hipp, 2013; Damanpour, 2014; Eng, & Okten, 2011; Damanpour, Walker, & Avellaneda, 2011).

2.1.3.2 Dimensions of Enterprise Innovation

Process/Product Innovation

Change is an unavoidable feature of organizational existence. As a result, new goods, processes, services, and organizational forms are tools utilized by businesses to boost their competitiveness (Guerrazzi, Zanin & Falaster, 2017). Companies frequently commit to formal methods of product innovation, reinventing business processes to increase speed and efficiency (Ettlie & Reza, 1992). Structural changes and work procedures may assist businesses looking to decrease costs, increase quality, and gain other benefits. Although the impact of process innovations is as significant economically as the introduction of new products and services, the theme is frequently overlooked in the literature reviewed on innovation (Adams, Bessant, & Phelps, 2006; Reichstein & Salter, 2006; Crossan & Apaydin, 2010; Macher & Mowery, 2009). Process innovation is carrying out an activity in a novel manner, which necessitates the application of specialized change tools and the transformation of business processes (Davenport, 1993). Process innovation, according to the Oslo Manual (OECD, 1997), is described as the deployment of a novel or considerably enhanced production or delivery system that incorporates major changes in methods, equipment, and gear. Process innovations might be designed to reduce unit costs of manufacturing or delivery, enhance quality, or create or supply new or considerably better goods.

Process innovation research usually begins by discussing the differences between product innovation and process innovation. This is an essential difference in research purposes, as different mechanisms explain why product innovation analysis results cannot be immediately transferred to process analysis (OECD, 1997; Costa et al., 2016). This is particularly important when two forms of innovation are combined, for example, when a company provides a new product, it needs to create a new method (Un & Asakawa, 2015). Process innovation aims to gain a competitive edge by implementing solutions that minimize production or operating costs. Suárez-Barraza (2013) highlighted the significant outcomes of process innovation in a literature review: (1) it reduces operational costs; (2) it serves as a method for understanding the work that is done or how input becomes output; (3) it is a process for locating, resolve, and controlling the risks or errors in the work and improving the processes of the organization; (4) it reduces the time spent on processes; (5) it allows work to be assessed more systematically and effectively; (6) it allows the company to improve its customer services; and (7) it provides a mechanism for locating, solving and preventing problems or errors in However, there are particular challenges in adopting new processes in businesses (Klein, Conn, & Sorra, 2001; Edmonson, Bohner, & Pisano, 2010), as well as quantifying process innovations since the value is produced mainly inside the confines of the organization. In this regard, financial concerns (McNulty & Ferlie, 2004), organizational environment, and lack of management support (Douglas & Judge, 2001), and even the organization's structure maybe some of the challenges that organizations must overcome when altering processes (Choi & Chang, 2009). Likewise, product innovations may influence process innovations. Some authors also believe that the same process may affect the manufacturing of many products, although the same product often implies the application of multiple processes (new or reformed). In this regard, Abernathy and Utterback (1978) assert that changes in one process can lead to changes in many other processes, which are branches.

Decoupling process and product innovation is not an easy task, as the industry typically releases new projects and processes simultaneously. According to Ettlie and Reza (1992), both have closely related life cycles, enhancing the integration of product and process innovation. According to these writers, just developing goods is not enough; There's still a need to reinvent the program. Another point worth mentioning is that process innovations interfere with business operations and might be sparked by changes in a company's operations. It is feasible to innovate without damaging current companies or mining new ones if the firm is ambidextrous, i.e., capable of implementing gradual and revolutionary changes simultaneously.

Strategic Innovation

The business environment is rapidly changing, requiring enterprises to modify their activities to adapt to these changes. New technology, risks from new entrants, mergers and acquisitions, deregulations, and uncertainty are changes that may affect today's organizations (Iplik et al., 2014). Successful organizations innovate in such a dynamic and unpredictable environment because they realize they need to develop a durable competitive edge to outwit their competitors. These forward-thinking companies strive to create strategies that will allow them to turn around their company and assure their long-term existence. Firms are no longer merely looking for a competitive edge but also for organizational skills and competencies that can deal with the constant changes in the environment. Firms, as a result, need appropriate strategies championed by capable executives to establish trustworthy models that ensure longevity. A strategic option centered on innovation becomes a viable alternative for reviving existing business models in this environment.

Recently, strategic innovation has been a priority for developed and emerging countries' Top Management Teams (TMTs) (Christensen, 1997). Regardless of sector, every successful company with established goods or services risks getting sidelined unless its senior management understands the time and how to design a new business model (Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti, 2018; Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu, 2012).

According to Geroski (1998), it is critical to see innovation as new technology and improve a firm's strategic innovation process for long-term viability. To stay competitive, creative leaders utilize inventive action to exploit their internal organizational potential while regularly assessing their business models (Alvarez & Barney, 2007; Abraham & Knight, 2001). As a result, TMTs demand the necessary competencies execute successfully and develop adequate capabilities for long-term competitive advantage. This strategic innovation skill demands strategic thinking and an entrepreneurial mentality (v).

Firms throughout the world exploit their creative capabilities to gain a competitive edge in a rapidly changing business environment. Therefore, companies need innovative oriented strategies and capable leaders to develop reliable concepts that can be implemented for survival, as the company's success is considered to depend largely on the capabilities generated, rather than any other resources (Kodama 2017). Strategic innovation is defined in academic research on strategic management as an innovation that can effectively change a company's business model (Greve et al., 2002; Dogan, 2017). Therefore, it has attracted interest in the field of strategic management due to its potential impact on redefining existing business models. Enterprises have long regarded innovation

as a strategic choice to improve their competitive advantage. According to Hamel (2000), strategic innovation is a source of competitive advantage ideal for firms seeking to succeed in the new economy and creatively refresh their strategy. This form of innovation has been defined as Schumpeterian, focused on business model innovation and breaching industry competition norms (Kalay & Lynn, 2015; Teece, 2010; McGrath, 2010; Yu & Hang, 2010). Strategic innovation is comprehensive, focusing not only on product innovation, but also on the company's business strategy. Although it is common to think of the creation of new products, services, processes, or production systems when talking about the concept of innovation, what is happening now is that it is not only product innovation that truly drives value creation, but also business model innovation. This is why enterprises should consider implementing strategic innovation in their strategic management processes. However, the concept of strategic innovation and its management in the corporate environment are undermined by information gaps and theoretical contradictions that do not support it (Porter, 1985). The innovation capability of enterprises begins with a clear strategy, so there is an increasing need to adopt business models related to strategic innovation to maintain continuous product and service innovation (Pisano, 2015).

Technological Innovation

The rewards of establishing a temporary monopoly position will provide additional potential profits to ensure long-term property rights, thereby protecting against potential imitators, which are potential incentives for companies to participate in the invention process. Obtaining a dominating position is a crucial component of investment in innovation, which Schumpeter popularized as creative destruction. Government entities support this by providing patents to stimulate invention and safeguard the rights of the entrepreneur. Finally, financial performance is critical from the standpoint of the investor. They are defined by the interplay of the three "E"s:

$Efficiency (E) \frac{Effect (E)}{Effort (E)}$

Another critical factor of technological innovation is the willingness to devote research funding and development to the public and private sectors. In technical and economic progress, innovation has evolved into a group effort. It is challenging to fathom individually, particularly given the financial, personnel, and infrastructural needs. The recent acceptance of innovation, promoted by Nelson and Winter (1982), assimilates it, in many cases, to an education process with the following characteristics: it is located and partly tacit, with features that are irreversible and dependent on the chosen trajectory, and it differs by activity areas. Innovation has evolved into a complicated process encompassing many intangible, non-formalized, and non-transferable resources. It is influenced by rivalry, the size of dominating firms, and the type of industrial research and development. Jessua, Labrousse, and Vitry (2006) According to Le Bas (2011), the following factors influence technological innovation:

1. The company addressed demand characteristics (e.g., level, relative price, homogeneity, evolution)

2. The entrepreneur's ability to anticipate making a profit through innovation

3. Reports of technology and knowledge (e.g., from consumers, users)

4. Company characteristics

5. The pursued strategy (e.g., marketing, towards quality

Innovation requires both physical and non-physical investment, which is essential for the development and competitiveness of innovation, as intangible assets will depreciate if innovation is not maintained in a dynamic process. The ability to focus on successful inventions is a strength of corporate management.

Marketing Innovation

These complex difficulties related to the creation, evolution, and transformation of markets have attracted extensive academic research over the past three decades, resulting in a large number of research results. Recent research in this field has deviated from the neoclassical view that the market is the purpose given by reality, and has studied market creation and market driving (Nenonen et al., 2019), market (co)construction (Read et al., 2009, Santos and Eisenhardt, 2009). This review refers to the underlying phenomena as "market innovation". Market innovation is widely defined

as deliberate acts by market players that result in a distinctly new or changed kind of market. Market innovation research draws on a diverse range of ideas, including actornetwork theory, institutional theory, and practice theory (Pitelis & Teece, 2010), and the resource-based perspective (Kjellberg & Helgesson, 2006). In addition, market innovation research is conducted in various empirical contexts, including radical and breakthrough innovation, entrepreneurship, bottom-of-the-pyramid markets, consumer activism.

2.1.4 Executive Incentive

The executive team, also known as the top management team of an enterprise, was defined by Yuhui & Weizhong (2009) as the 'executive alliance'. Hambrick (1996) defines executives as senior management members of a company, who can grasp the basic operations and maintenance, important business plans, and advanced strategic directions of the company, and control the risks and challenges of the company (Finkelstein & Hambrick, 1990). Executives are senior managers who can make critical decisions when a company faces difficulties or seeks new breakthroughs (Lewellen et al., 1987). In this article, executives specifically refer to enterprise managers.

Executive executives play an important role in promoting enterprise performance and formulating long-term development plans. However, because senior executives are the product of the separation of the two rights of modern enterprises, there are certain agency problems between senior executives and shareholders. Enterprises can use reasonable supervision and incentive mechanisms to alleviate the conflict of interest caused by agency problems and fully mobilize the enthusiasm of senior executives, this is also an important measure of corporate governance. Generally speaking, according to different incentive methods, executive incentive can be divided into material incentive and spiritual incentive. The former is mainly manifested in monetary incentives, including long-term equity incentives and short-term compensation incentives, while the latter is mainly manifested in promotion incentives or reputation incentives for senior executives. Executive equity incentive refers to the granting of a portion of corporate shares to senior executives, which changes their managerial identity, combines the interests of senior executives with shareholders, reduces the short-term self-interest of senior executives, pays attention to the long-term development of enterprises, and makes the interests of senior executives and shareholders converge, which can effectively alleviate the agency problem in enterprises.

Milkovich et al.' (2014) research is the representative of contemporary compensation theory. Its definition of compensation is the sum of monetary income, services and various benefits provided by enterprises for employees. This definition clarifies the content and form of the compensation system and defines the basic connotation of compensation. According to this definition, executive incentive can be divided into broad sense and narrow sense. The broad sense of executive incentive includes the sum of various monetary and non-monetary rewards that executives can obtain. The narrow sense of executive incentive refers to the monetary rewards that managers can obtain. In practical application, executive incentive mainly refers to the total remuneration of executives disclosed in the annual report of listed companies. Executive incentive can affect corporate performance by influencing executive behavior. Executive incentive can be divided into material incentive and non-material incentive according to "monetization", and can also be divided into explicit incentive and implicit incentive. Explicit incentive includes salary incentive and equity incentive, and there is a complementary relationship between salary and equity incentive. Implicit incentives for executives refer to the positive suggestive effect and spiritual encouragement on their psychology, as well as the sense of fairness and achievement of their own work efforts and rewards, including promotion incentives and control incentives.

A reasonable executive incentive system can increase executive satisfaction and reduce the occurrence of slacking; At the same time, executive bonus is a reward for executives to create corporate performance, so executive bonus is linked to corporate performance, and executive bonus can enhance the enthusiasm of executives.

For some while now, the notions of executive incentive and sustainable business performance have been prominent topics of scholarly debate. According to Copeland et al. (2005), several issues in managing business performance need to be solved. These topics include: how do organizations address executive pay and incentive design? what elements determine the balance salary required to recruit and maintain the appropriate quality of top management? and how should the bonus system be constructed – particularly in a multi-period setting?

According to the research line of agency theory, important governance tools are boards of directors and performance-based incentives, which can reduce the opportunistic behavior of managers and align their incentives with those of shareholders. Faulkender et al. (2010) argues that, throughout the past decade, we have seen two significant events that have dramatically impacted the understanding of sustainable business performance in the public sphere. The bursting of the dotcom bubble in 2000, as well as the global financial crisis of 2007-2008 and the corporate scandals that followed, led to the collapse of well-known companies, causing huge losses in shareholder value and harm to other stakeholders. More recently, the bursting of the housing bubble and the subprime disaster led to the closure of credit markets and the collapse of fragile financial institutions.

The interest in executive incentives in corporate organizations arises from concerns about management motivation and issues about equality and justice. Shareholders of private companies want to get the maximum return on their stock with a certain amount of risk. They naturally want their companies to have compensation plans that encourage executives to follow policies that achieve that goal. A base executive incentive, an annual cash bonus plan such as a short-term incentive, and a stock-based plan are the three components of conventional executive remuneration respectively longterm incentive. While incentive is usually based on a yearly fixed cash amount, and longterm incentive often relates executive remuneration to the firm's share price at some future point, more immediate, operational performance factors frequently drive short-term incentive payoffs. As a result, the executive compensation plan is dependent on the board's ex-ante selections among the various performance indicators available to evaluate organizational success. Furthermore, performance metrics for the bonus scheme should account for risk-incentive tradeoffs. That is, they should inspire without either rewarding or discouraging acceptable risk-taking. Apart from incentives, Amabile, Schatzel, Moneta, & Kramer (2004) emphasized the importance of resilient leadership in encouraging innovative thinking and learning from mistakes.

2.2 Related Research and Hypothesis Development

2.2.1 The Influence of Resilient Leadership on Enterprise Innovation

Resilient leadership enhances the internal innovation ability and tendency of organizational innovation. Leaders use motivation and intellectual stimulation to play an important role in organizational innovation. Resilient leadership promotes the generation of creativity within organizations: This behavior reflects the "innovation support role" of Resilient leadership (Howell & Higgins, 1990). These leaders use the company's vision to motivate their followers, increase their willingness to work beyond expectations, and enable them to adopt innovative methods in their work. Increasing the level of motivation may enhance the ability of organizations to innovate (Mumford et al., 2003). A number of empirical studies support the positive impact of leadership on organizational innovation (Keller, 1992; Waldman & Atwater, 1994). These studies mainly examine the relationship between Resilient leadership and innovation at the R&D unit and project levels, but the role of Resilient leadership in organizational level innovation has only recently become the subject of empirical research. Jung et al. (2003) In a study of 32 Chinese companies, by measuring their R&D expenditures and patent numbers in the first three years, it was found that Resilient leadership has a significant positive correlation with organizational innovation.

According to the transaction cost theory, learning can effectively reduce transaction costs, support decision-making and form effective organizational behavior (Elmes & Kasouf, 1995), including the innovative behavior of enterprises. Many studies believe that enterprises use their own experience to separate and integrate information according to their own needs. Through organizational learning, enterprises will gain learning benefits. The process of enterprise innovation is a knowledge-intensive process and also a process of new knowledge generation. It depends on the wisdom and creativity of employees and their "interactive learning" (Wu & Huang, 2004). The speed of new experience accumulation is very fast, and the learning curve is steep. For any person involved in the innovation process, learning is a sustainable activity, and all people involved in it need to have close contact and rapid information exchange at every point of the innovation process, or knowledge will be lost. As far as enterprise innovation itself is concerned, all departments and departments of the enterprise need to learn from each other. Resilient leadership often affects subordinates through leaders' self-awareness or orientation or the social orientation of work teams or organizations (Kark et al., 2003). Personalized care and intellectual stimulation behaviors are highly correlated with leaders' self-positioning, while idealized influence and motivational behavior are highly correlated with social positioning of teams and organizations (Kark & Shamir, 2002). The main influence mechanism is the follower's self-concept and self-awareness. The establishment of this self-concept is related to a wide range of psychological processes, including learning processes such as motivation, self-regulation, and information processes (Lord & Brown, 2001). Flexible leadership enables employees to generate innovative driving forces through incentives and psychological empowerment for subordinate employees, stimulates employees to participate in organizational learning, absorbs knowledge nutrition from communication with others and organizational information sharing, changes the way and perspective of viewing problems, and learns to choose different methods to solve problems.

Considering the relationship between resilient leadership and innovation, Ding Anna and Liu Jingjiang (2012) pointed out that leadership, as the main maker and promoter of strategic decision-making, has essential influence on enterprise innovation. Volberda et al. (2016) pointed out that resilient leadership can innovate through different authorization methods. Covin & Kuratko (2019) resilient leadership can identify and seize innovation opportunities; Chen (2017) enhances the creativity of employees and enhances the innovation ability of new ventures; Puhakka, (2017); Mueller,(2017) These will eventually lead to higher performance of innovative enterprises. Li Yuan and Xu Feng (2020) found that resilient leadership has a significant positive impact on employees' breakthrough innovation behavior and progressive innovation behavior. Based on the above analysis, this paper proposes the following assumption:

H1: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.

2.2.2 The Influence of Resilient Leadership on Sustainable Business Performance

The resilient leadership behavior is characterized by focusing on the long-term performance of the enterprise, emphasizing the shared vision, motivating employees'

internal motivation and high-level needs, and is composed of four mutually reinforcing/mutually reinforcing dimensions (Bass, 1985). Research has shown that the manager's resilient leadership behavior is an important factor affecting enterprise performance (Judge & Piccolo, 2004). The resilient leadership management model can improve enterprise performance at three levels: individual employees, senior management team and the whole enterprise. First of all, at the individual level, the resilient leadership management model guides employees to transcend personal interests for corporate goals by creating and sharing a common vision; At the same time, employees are made aware of the significance of the tasks they undertake through intellectual motivation, which better stimulates the potential and high-level needs of employees, and urges them to pay more efforts and actions, so as to achieve more than expected work results (Bass, 1985); Secondly, at the team level, the resilient leadership management model can improve the goal consistency of the senior management team by strengthening the communication and diversity of the senior management team. Colbert et al. (2008) pointed out that the resilient leadership management model can promote the goal and consistency of the senior management team and improve the enterprise performance. Finally, at the enterprise level, the resilient leadership management model has greatly improved the consistency of the objectives of the entire enterprise by enhancing the cohesion and centripetal force of the enterprise through vision leadership, greatly stimulated the organizational innovation by creating a flexible and innovationoriented enterprise culture, and greatly strengthened the enterprise's use learning and exploratory learning by creating a good organizational learning atmosphere, so that the organization has better environmental adaptability, Better survival and profitability; Finally, enterprises that adopt resilient leadership management mode show better longterm performance.

Resilient leadership can actively promote sustainable business performance. The resilient leadership management model mainly includes the description of vision, the transmission of mission, etc. The impact of these behaviors on sustainable business performance is mainly reflected in three aspects: first, resilient leadership helps enterprises improve performance. In the highly competitive environment of the market economy, the resilient leadership management model requires using one's own wisdom and courage to play a cohesive role with one's own employees and enhance the cohesion of the enterprise. Secondly, for enterprises, the instability of the market economy environment and the new market economy development and competition model put forward higher requirements for the resilient leadership management model of enterprises. The uncertainty absorption of the resilient leadership management model can improve the ability of leaders to bear the risk of failure, ensure that enterprises can actively respond to the risks of external and internal environment by establishing commitments and building team goals, and help enterprises quickly enter the development track. Finally, the flexible leadership management model energizes the development of an enterprise by stimulating the innovative ability of its employees. Resilient leadership and the innovative ability of enterprise employees have a great role in promoting the development speed and competitiveness of enterprises.

Bass (1985) believes that managers with resilient leadership are better at setting up a common vision of the organization and pay attention to the guidance and motivation of employees. This behavior is easy to improve the subjective initiative of employees, thus further improving the sustainable business performance of enterprises; At the same time, managers with flexible leadership attach importance to emotions and values, and the leadership process focuses on encouraging mutual communication among employees and affirming their diverse thinking. This leadership style makes it easy to determine the goal of team coherence. The research conclusion of Colbert et al. (2008) shows that flexible leadership management can promote the consistency of goals of senior management teams, thereby improving the efficiency of enterprises. The research of Agle et al. (2006) and others also shows that enterprises implementing resilient leadership management can make organizations better adapt to the environment by overcoming organizational inertia.

In the empirical study, some researchers have verified that resilient leadership positively affects employee task performance, while others have proposed that resilient leadership cannot directly affect employee job performance, but should affect employee performance through the mediation of other variables. This study suggests that flexible leadership can positively predict employee task performance. First, flexible leaders have exemplary charisma, a strong sense of mission, forward-looking vision, and charisma. They stimulate employees' higher level needs by describing the organization's vision and the significance of work, make employees see their work more valuable, and form a positive self-evaluation; At the same time, resilient leadership stimulates employees' intelligence, encourages employees to think and solve problems from a new perspective, and provides employees with learning and growth opportunities. From the perspective of self-efficacy theory (Bandura, 2000), positive self-evaluation will directly affect employees' behavioral motivation, and the guidance and encouragement of important others will also enhance employees' self-belief, so that employees can work with greater confidence and motivation, face difficulties and challenges bravely, and achieve work performance beyond expectations.

Secondly, resilient leadership stimulates employees' intelligence, sets higher goals for employees, encourages employees to think and solve problems from a new perspective, pays attention to employees' personal development, and provides employees with learning and growth resources. Therefore, flexible leadership can help improve employees' critical thinking and problem-solving abilities, thereby enabling them to achieve higher task performance at work.

Xiao Yuchun (2014) All kinds of natural disasters, terrorist attacks, epidemic diseases, economic recession, equipment failures and human errors may pose unpredictable and serious threats to sustainable business performance. Therefore, the research on "resilient leadership" has quickly become a hot topic in academic circles. Burnard K, Bhamrar.(2015) resilient leadership is the requirement for organizations to adapt to the rapidly changing environment. MARTIN R (2018) put forward a variety of dimensions and measurement methods of resilient leadership structure, which have been applied to the empirical study of the relationship between team resilient practice and sustainable business performance. Xie Wei (2020) A good leader should not only consider the company's performance and interests, but also have a strong sense of social responsibility and organizational responsibility, not only seeking personal reputation and simply pursuing company performance, but also paying attention to the shaping of corporate values, corporate social responsibility and corporate ecology. Based on the above analysis, this paper proposes the following assumption:

H2: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

2.2.3 The Influence of Enterprise Innovation on Sustainable Business Performance

According to the theory of technological innovation, innovation is the key to leading enterprise economic growth. In order to develop and achieve good economic benefits, enterprises must rely on endogenous innovation behavior. The technological advantages generated by innovation activities can maximize the utilization of enterprise resources through the reorganization of production factors, and achieve sustained growth in enterprise economic benefits. Innovation activities promote organizational growth and promote future development, and are the engine for enterprises to maintain vitality in market competition.

Gunday et al. (2011) using the sample data of 184 listed manufacturing companies in Turkey, studied the impact of innovation activities covering organizational structure, production process, products, marketing and other aspects on enterprise performance. Through empirical testing, it is found that innovation activities can promote the improvement of enterprise performance. Mudambi & Swift (2014) believed that R&D investment is beneficial for enterprises to carry out technological innovation activities. Through innovation activities, enterprises can enhance their core competitive advantages and thus enhance their sustainable business performance. Babkin et al. (2015) used listed companies in the information technology industry as a research sample. The econometric analysis results show that increasing R&D spending can enable enterprises to achieve higher investment returns. Sharma et al. (2016) studied the situation of 1356 food brands through regression and probability analysis. The panel data analysis results show that compared with small and medium-sized enterprises and retail enterprises, multinational companies are better able to use R&D expenditures to improve product innovation and expand market share. Thangavelu & Jyotishi (2017) conducted an empirical study on the relationship between sustainable business performance and enterprise innovation of IT enterprises using unbalanced time series data and random effect regression methods, and found a positive correlation between the two.

Chauvin & Hirschey (1993) took the R&D expenditure of a company as an independent variable. The research results show that there is a positive correlation between sustainable business performance and R&D expenditure. Zhong & Ren (2001) conducted a study on innovation performance and sustainable business performance in high-tech enterprises in Shanghai, China. The results show that the investment of enterprises in scientific and technological activities promotes their sustainable business performance. Through empirical research, Wang et al. (2021) came to the conclusion that R&D personnel investment is significantly positively correlated with enterprise operating profit margin and total asset return. Griliches et al. (1988) proposed patents as an indicator to measure innovation output. Subsequently, patents have gradually become an important indicator of research and innovation output for most scholars. Deng & Narin (1999) used high-tech enterprises as a research sample to measure the level of technological innovation using the number of patents. He found that the number of R&D patents increased, and the sustainable operating performance of enterprises also improved accordingly.

Garcia-Manjón & Romero-Merino (2012) showed that R&D had a positive impact on Tobin Q. Metrick & Yasuda (2021) studied Japanese SMEs and Australian enterprises respectively, and found that R&D intensity has a positive impact on enterprise development. Mudambi & Swift (2014) found that R&D activities significantly promoted enterprise performance through the analysis of the relationship between enterprise R&D investment and performance, but the duration and extent of the impact were limited. Xia & Huang (2019) took Chinese industrial enterprises from 1998 to 2009 as samples and used the propensity score matching method to draw the conclusion that R&D investment can promote enterprise performance. Jia & Wei (2019) based on the big data of listed manufacturing enterprises in China, shows that the R&D investment of enterprises has a positive impact on earnings quality, and this positive correlation is more significant in state-owned enterprises.

According to Schumpeter's theory of technological innovation, enterprise innovation plays a crucial role in enterprise development and economic growth. Enterprises must rely on endogenous innovation to achieve development and good economic benefits. Schumpeter put forward in his early years that innovation driven by demand has special significance and role, which has also been verified by many scholars. Based on the above analysis, this paper proposes the following assumption:

H3: There is a positive correlation between enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance.

2.2.4 The Mediation Effect of Enterprise Innovation between Resilient Leadership and Sustainable Business Performance

Based on the research on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise performance, scholars have explored the mediation effect between resilient leadership and enterprise performance. Chen et al. (2006) used the data of Taiwan, China's manufacturing industry to find that the resilient leadership of senior executives promotes the innovation activities of enterprises, and enterprises carry out innovation to enable enterprises to finally gain sustainable competitive advantage. Li (2013) studied the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise performance in the context of entrepreneurial orientation, and found that under the moderation role of entrepreneurial orientation, resilient leadership has a positive impact on marketing innovation, and enterprise marketing innovation can improve enterprise performance. Guan et al. (2019) took Chinese manufacturing enterprises as the research object and found that the manager's resilient leadership model can have a positive impact on enterprise performance through the mediation effect of enterprise innovation. Zhou et al. (2021) proposed that resilient leadership will promote enterprises to carry out innovation, thus enabling enterprises to achieve new product success, which can improve the performance level of enterprises. To sum up, enterprises that implement resilient leadership can better establish organizational culture, improve the initiative of organizational members, integrate various resources within the organization, and constantly carry out innovation, thus positively affecting the sustainable business performance of enterprises. Based on the above analysis, this paper proposes the following assumption:

H4: Enterprise innovation mediates the effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

2.2.5 The Moderation Effect of Executive Incentives

According to Amabile et al. (2004), a leader who interacts with his or her subordinates regularly can direct and influence their opinions, emotions, and daily performance, which impacts the overall originality of their work. According to Martin, Liao, and Campbell (2013), there are two types of leadership styles: directive leadership and facilitating leadership. Previous studies have shown that directed leadership is more effective in increasing performance and innovation (Yun, Faraj, & Sims, 2005; Lorinkova, Pearsall, & Sims, 2013). This is because the directed leader focuses on the employee's job effort by giving precise and relevant task instructions, creating explicit norms of behavior, learning from mistakes, and monitoring work progress (Lorinkova et al., 2013; Yun et al (2005). In a setting that requires employees to think creatively, liberty and respect are essential for coming up with new ideas (Alge, Ballinger, Tangirala, & Oakley, 2006), which correlates to the empowering leadership style. In the context of the literature reviewed, the present study focuses on investigating the moderating impact of the executive incentive on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance (Amabile et al., 2004; Lorinkova et al., 2013) and resilient leadership and innovation (Yun, Faraj, & Sims, 2005).

Resilient leadership cannot improve enterprise innovation without the role of enterprise managers, especially senior managers. According to the principal-agent theory, the goals pursued by the principal and the agent are often different. In the principal-agent relationship, both parties of the contract expect to maximize their own interests. As the actual possessor of the enterprise's surplus value, their goal is to maximize the enterprise's value and thus bring more wealth to themselves; In the actual management of the enterprise, the agent may make some decisions contrary to the wishes of the client due to the pursuit of his own interests, such as higher salary and more on-the-job benefits. Therefore, for the management, the uncertainty of management activities and innovation activities will make managers take evasive decisions. Because excessive risks will have a great impact on their career and personal interests. In this case, appropriate compensation incentives or equity incentives for senior managers can promote managers to make strategic decisions that are more beneficial to the long-term development of the enterprise. Combine the personal interests of managers and the interests of enterprises more closely to make them as consistent as possible, and provide a strong guarantee for promoting enterprise innovation and promoting the sustainable development of enterprises.

The long-term strategy and specific implementation of the company are decided by the senior management of the enterprise, so the content of the decision will have an undeniable impact on the development of the enterprise. In the modern enterprise system, the management decision-making power of the company owned by senior executives plays a key role in guiding the development of the enterprise, and its impact on the business performance of the enterprise is often related to the level of incentives received.

Han & Chuang (2011) selected technology-intensive enterprises in the United States and China from 1998 to 2003 as sample data. The study found that there is an interactive relationship between enterprise flexible management, R&D investment and enterprise performance, and this interaction will be affected by the way executives make decisions. Farooque et al. (2019) selected the interrelationship between corporate performance and governance of corporate executive compensation in emerging markets under different institutional and governance environments, selected 432 listed companies in Thailand, and conducted research on their data from 2000 to 2022. The research found that there was a significant positive relationship between executive compensation and corporate innovation and long-term performance. Sheng & Che (2016) took China's Ashare listed companies from 2008 to 2014 as the target, and found that there was a significant positive relationship between executive compensation incentive and sustainable business performance through regression. Xu et al. (2017) conducted research based on the data of 527 listed manufacturing companies in China, and found that executive compensation incentives can promote the existence of technological innovation investment of enterprises. Li (2019) studied 371 listed companies and found that the implementation of executive incentives can stimulate the motivation of senior managers to carry out technological innovation, and the enhancement of R&D investment intensity can effectively promote enterprise innovation performance. Vergos & Christopoulos (2014) concluded that equity incentives can effectively promote the increase of enterprise value and the appreciation of enterprise capital by studying more than 200 American listed companies that adopt equity incentives. Cui & Mak (2002) selected 250 high-tech listed companies with equity incentives as the research object. The results show that different levels of executive stock ownership have different impacts on corporate management and corporate performance, and there is a non-negligible interval effect between the two.

The makers and managers of new decisions decide how to allocate resources to achieve innovation. Whether senior managers have long-term plans for the development of enterprises is very important for the development of enterprises. Managers only pay attention to short-term interests and ignore long-term development plans of enterprises, which will make enterprises lack of innovation and motivation support for sustainable development. According to the principal agent theory, both the principal and the agent pursue the maximization of their own interests, resulting in a large number of principalagent costs. Based on this, in order to pursue higher short-term business performance, senior managers of enterprises are likely to ignore the long-term development of enterprises and are unwilling to invest resources in innovation activities with a long return period. The implementation of incentive policies for senior executives by increasing their salary or shareholding ratio can closely combine their own interests with the interests of the enterprise and shareholders, so that the goal of senior executives for the development of the enterprise will be changed from the pursuit of short-term profit maximization to the pursuit of enterprise value maximization, so as to actively increase the intensity of research and development investment, attach importance to the development of research and development activities, and maximize the rate of return on research and development investment, This can also promote sustainable business performance. Therefore, this paper believes that the implementation of executive incentive policy can change the identity consciousness of managers, endow them with the identity of "master", and make them have the same goal with the enterprise owner, so as to effectively reduce the conflict of interest between executives and enterprise owners, fundamentally stimulate the enthusiasm of managers, mobilize their work initiative, and make executives and enterprise owners work towards the same goal, so as to better improve enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance. Based on the above analysis, this paper proposes the following assumptions:

H5: Executive incentive has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.

H6: Executive incentives has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

2.3 Summary of the Literature Review

Table 2.1 presents a summary of the literature review for each proposes research hypothesis as follows:

Hypothesis	Reference
H1: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.	Assink, 2006; Frishammar, Kurkkio, Abrahamsson, & Lichtenthaler, 2012; Bell & Figueiro, 2012; Slater, Mohr, & Sengupta, 2014
H2: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.	Davis & Albright, 2004; Schaltegger & Wagner, 2006; Ahmadu, Aminu, Mikailu, and Tukur, 2015; Hansen & Schaltegger, 2016; Merchant & Van der Stede, 2017.
H3: There is a positive correlation between innovation and sustainable business performance.	Kjellberg, 2015; Vargo et al., 2015; Mele, Pels, & Storbacka, 2015; Aarikka- Stenroos & Lehtimäki, 2014, Humphreys, 2010; Piening & Salge, 2015; Damanpour
H4: Enterprise innovation mediates the effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.	& Gopalakrishnan, 2001; Reichstein & Salter, 2006; Mazzucato, 2016; Raasch, Lee, Spaeth, & Herstatt, 2013; Aarikka-Stenroos and Lehtimäki, 2014; O'Connor and Rice, 2013
H5: Executive incentive has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.	Amabile et al., 2004; Lorinkova et al., 2013; Firth et al. 1996 ; Amabile et al. 2004; O'Sullivan, Sheffrin, Perez, 2008; Kalay & Lynn, 2015; Teece, 2010; McGrath, 2010; Yu & Hang, 2010;
H6: Executive incentives has moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.	Yun, Faraj, & Sims, 2005; Lorinkova, Pearsall, & Sims, 2013; Faulkender et al. (2010); Copeland et al. (2005).

2.4 Conceptual Framework

Based on the literature reviewed and the proposed hypothesis, the following conceptual framework was developed (see figure 2.1):





Table 2.2, table 2.3 and table 2.4 present a summary of the literature review and

Table 2.3 Summary of the literature review and theory (1)

theory as follows:



Table 2.3 Summary of the literature review and theory (1) (Cont.)



Table 2.4 Summary of the literature review and theory (2)

Researcher (Years) upport of upport		Innovation theory			
Guerrazzi, Zanin & Falaster (2017) x Adams, Bessant, & Phelps (2006) x Reichstein & Salter (2006) x Crossan & Apaydin (2010) x Macher & Mowery (2009) x Costa, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016) x Damanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009) x Suárez-Barraza (2013) x Klein, Conn, & Sorra (2001) x Edmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010) x Ayhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013) x McNułty & Ferlie (2004) x Piening & Salter (2005) x Damanpour, & Gopalakrishnan (2001). x Reichstein & Salter (2006) x Iplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014) x Adegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017) x Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018) x Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012). x Kalay & Lynn (2015) x Teece (2010) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Pisano (2015) x	Researcher (Years)	Process / Product Innovation	Strategic Innovation	Technological Innovation	Marketing Innovation
Adams, Bessant, & Phelps (2006) x Reichstein & Salter (2006) x Crossan & Apaydin (2010) x Macher & Mowery (2009) x Costa, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016) x Damanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009) x Suárez-Barraza (2013) x Klein, Conn, & Sorra (2001) x Edmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010) x Ayhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013) x McNulty & Fertic (2004) x Piening & Salge (2015) x Damanpour, & Gopalakrishnan (2004) x Adegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017) x Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018) x Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012). x Kalay & Lynn (2015) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Pisano (2015) x Pisano (2015) x	Guerrazzi, Zanin & Falaster (2017)	х			
Reichstein & Salter (2006)xCrossan & Apaydin (2010)xMacher & Mowery (2009)xCosta, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016)xDamanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)xSuárez-Barraza (2013)xKlein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)xEdmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour, & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Adams, Bessant, & Phelps (2006)	х			
Crossan & Apaydin (2010)xMacher & Mowery (2009)xCosta, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016)xDamanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)xSuárez-Barraza (2013)xKlein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)xEdmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xYang, Xang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTecee (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)x	Reichstein & Salter (2006)	х			
Macher & Mowery (2009)xCosta, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016)xDamanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)xSuárez-Barraza (2013)xKlein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)xEdmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xMcNulty & Ferlie (2004)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zuechella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Crossan & Apaydin (2010)	х			
Costa, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016)xDamanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)xSuárez-Barraza (2013)xKlein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)xEdmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xMcNulty & Ferlie (2004)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Macher & Mowery (2009)	х			
Damanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)xSuárez-Barraza (2013)xKlein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)xEdmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xMcNulty & Ferlie (2004)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)xPisa	Costa, Cabral, Forte & Costa (2016)	х			
Suárez-Barraza (2013)xKlein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)xEdmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xMcNulty & Ferlie (2004)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPisano (2015)x </td <td>Damanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)</td> <td>х</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Damanpour, Walker, and Avellaneda (2009)	х			
Klein, Conn, & Sorra (2001) x Edmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010) x Ayhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013) x McNulty & Ferlie (2004) x Piening & Salge (2015) x Damanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001) x Reichstein & Salter (2006) x Iplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014) x Adegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017) x Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018) x Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012). x Kalay & Lynn (2015) x Teece (2010) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Pisano (2015) x Porter (1985) x	Suárez-Barraza (2013)	х			
Edmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xAyhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)xMcNulty & Ferlie (2004)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Klein, Conn, & Sorra (2001)	х			
Ayhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013) x McNulty & Ferlie (2004) x Piening & Salge (2015) x Damanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001) x Reichstein & Salter (2006) x Iplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014) x Adegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017) x Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018) x Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012). x Kalay & Lynn (2015) x Teece (2010) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x	Edmonson, Bohner & Pisano, (2010)	х			
McNulty & Ferlie (2004)xPiening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTecce (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Ayhan, Aydin, & Yue (2013)	х			
Piening & Salge (2015)xDamanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	McNulty & Ferlie (2004)	х			
Damanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)xReichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Piening & Salge (2015)	х			
Reichstein & Salter (2006)xIplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Damanpour & Gopalakrishnan (2001)	х			
Iplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)xAdegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Reichstein & Salter (2006)	х			
Adegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)xDenicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Iplik, Topsakal, & Dogan (2014)		x		
Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)xYang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).xKalay & Lynn (2015)xTeece (2010)xYu & Hang (2010)xPisano (2015)xPorter (1985)x	Adegbile, Sarpong, & Meissner (2017)		x		
Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012). x Kalay & Lynn (2015) x Teece (2010) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Porter (1985) x	Denicolai, Zucchella & Morelti (2018)		х		
Kalay & Lynn (2015) x Teece (2010) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Porter (1985) x	Yang, Wang, Zhu & Wu (2012).		x		
Teece (2010) x Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Porter (1985) x	Kalay & Lynn (2015)		х		
Yu & Hang (2010) x Pisano (2015) x Porter (1985) x	Teece (2010)		x		
Pisano (2015) x Porter (1985) x	Yu & Hang (2010)		х		
Porter (1985) x	Pisano (2015)		х		
	Porter (1985)		x		

Table 2.5 Summary of the literature review and theory (3)

	Innovation theory			
Researcher (Years)	Process / Product Innovation	Strategic Innovation	Technological Innovation	Marketing Innovation
O'Sullivan, Sheffrin, Perez (2008)			х	
Nelson and Winter (1982)			х	
Jessua, Labrousse, and Vitry (2006)			х	
Le Bas (2011)			х	
Jessua, Labrousse, Vitry (2006).			х	
Andrew, & Sirkin (2011)			х	
Mele, Pels, & Storbacka (2015)				х
Aarikka-Stenroos & Lehtimäki (2014)				х
Humphreys (2010)				х
Nenonen et al. (2019)				х
Kjellberg (2015)				х
Vargo et al. (2015)				x
Giesler (2012)				х
Mazzucato (2016)				x
Raasch, Lee, Spaeth, & Herstatt (2013)				x
Weber, Heinze, & DeSoucey (2008)				x
Aarikka-Stenroos and Lehtimäki (2014)				x
Ansari et al., (2012)				х
Seelos and Mair (2007)				х
Kjellberg & Helgesson (2006).				x
Pitelis & Teece (2010)				x

Table 2.5 Summary of the literature review and theory (3) (Cont.)

CHAPTER 3 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

This chapter is exclusively dedicated to providing a concise description of methodological approaches, data processing techniques, sample size, and analysis used in the study. The present chapter discusses the following topics in the order in which they are presented:

Part I: Quantitative Part

• Quantitative Sampling - respectively describing the population which the study is focusing and the sample size out of the population which the study is using.

• Data collection - describes the methods and technique the researcher used to collect the necessary data for the study.

• Questionnaire design - describes how to questionnaire was conceptualized and what role in the study plays each part.

• Reliability and validity

• Data analysis - respectively how the data was analyzed and using which application.

Part II: Qualitative Part

- Qualitative Sampling
- Qualitative Instrumentation

• Ethical issues - respectively the last section in this chapter covering the ethical aspects of the study.

3.1 Research Design

A mixed-method research design can be defined as a research process for gathering, analyzing, and combining both quantitative and qualitative data at a specific phase of the research procedure within the same study to get a deeper insight of the research problem (Creswell, 2005). The current research employed the explanatory sequential research design (refer to Figure 3.1). Hybrid method research design can be

defined as a research process used to collect, analyze, and combine quantitative and qualitative data at specific stages of the research process of the same study to gain a deeper understanding of research issues. In this particular research design, quantitative data is collected and analyzed first. Thereafter, qualitative data is collected and analyzed.



3.2.1 Population

The population refers to the entire observation, which is the parent group from which the sample is to be formed. The term "population" conveys a different meaning than traditional meaning.

The current study aims to explore the influence of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance in manufacturing enterprises located in Jiangxi province in China, considering the roles of enterprise innovation and executive incentives. Therefor the population of the current study was manufacturing enterprises in Jiangxi province, China. There are 26,336 manufacturing enterprises in Jiangxi province, China in 2022 (China Statistical Yearbook, 2022). From Table 3-1, it can be seen that these manufacturing industries can be further subdivided into 16 secondary industry categories. Correspondingly, there are a total of 26,336 enterprises of the population.

Ca	tegory of Manufacturing Enterprises	Number of Enterprises	
	Food	1318	
	Liquor, beverage, and refined tea	664	
	Tobacco	71	
	Furniture	711	
Cultural	and educational, industrial and artistic, sports and entertainment supplies	1143	
	Chemical fuels and chemicals	2315	
	Medicine	1603	
	Chemical fiber	271	
	General equipment	2562	
	Special equipment	2138	
	Automobile	2877	
Railwa	ay, ship, aerospace, and other transportation equipment	879	
	Electrical machinery and equipment	3791	
Comp	uters, communication, and other electronic devices	5081	
	Instruments and Apparatuses	724	
	Others	188	
	Total	26,336	

Table 3.1 Population category

3.2.3 Sample

In most descriptive/diagnostic studies, researchers take samples and then hope to present a population based on sample analysis or analysis. Typically, samples must be designed. All items in any field of investigation constitute a "population". The choice of a sample is a critical stage in the study.

3.2.3.1 Sample Size

Gorsuch (1983) believed that the number of samples should be kept at more than 5 times the number of measurement items, and 10 times or more is the best.Following Gorsuch's (1983) point of view, since the final questionnaire of this study has a total of 72 measurement items, the final number of valid samples must be at least 360, and this research plans to have 500 questionnaires.

3.2.3.2 Sampling Design 🚔

The current study adopts a stratified sampling method. Stratified sampling is widely used in actual sampling surveys. Under the same sample size, it has higher accuracy than pure random sampling, convenient management, low cost, and high validity. The advantage of ESS is that unbiased estimation of the standard errors of survey estimates is possible, provided that the sampling stratum membership is identified on the survey dataset and provided that at least two sample elements are selected from each stratum (Lynn, 2019).

Different industries have different characteristics, and this study stratifies the research population according to industry characteristics, and within each stratum, simple random sampling is used to determine the research population.

According to Table 3-1, the population (managers from manufacturing enterprises in Jiangxi province, China) in this article can be subdivided into 16 subpopulation (layers). This article selects 500 managers from the overall population to be given the survey questionnaire for data collection purposes. Stratification can be proportionate or disproportionate. In a proportionate stratified method, the sample size of each stratum is proportionate to the population size of the stratum. This type of stratified random sampling is often a more precise metric because it's a better representation of the overall population (Kaliyadan & Kulkarni, 2019). The strata sample size for managers from Food Manufacturing Enterprises is calculated as $(1,318/26,336) \times 550= 28$. The same method is used for the other manufacturing enterprise categories (see Table 3-3). Table 3-3 shows the number of samples from the manufacturing industry of Computers, communication, and other electronic devices is the highest (106); The sample size from the Tobacco manufacturing industry is the smallest, only 1.

Category of Manufacturing Enterprises	Number of Enterprises (L _i)	% of Total (p _i =L _i /T)	Number of Samples (n _i =p _i × Target Sample Size)
Food	1318	5.00%	25
Liquor, beverage, and refined tea	664	2.52%	13
Tobacco	71	0.27%	1
Furniture	711	2.70%	14
Cultural and educational, industrial and artistic, sports and entertainment supplies	1143	4.34%	22
Chemical fuels and chemicals	2315	8.79%	44
Medicine	1603	6.09%	30
Chemical fiber	271	1.03%	5
General equipment	2562	9.73%	49
Special equipment	2138	8.12%	41
Automobile	2877	10.92%	55
Railway, ship, aerospace, and other transportation equipment	879	3.34%	17
Electrical machinery and equipment	3791	14.39%	72
Computers, communication, and other electronic devices	5081	19.29%	96
Instruments and Apparatuses	724	2.75%	14
Others	188	0.71%	4
Total (T)	26,336	100%	500

Table 3.2 Sample selection
3.3 Data Collection

To effectively gather data, this study developed an all-encompassing questionnaire covering every element of the study. Primary data collection is used by researchers, which implies that all data is collected by the researcher using an online questionnaire.

A total of 500 valid questionnaires need to be collected in this current study. Therefore, in the first step, in order to ensure the effective recovery of the number of questionnaires, a total of 550 formal questionnaires were distributed to managers from manufacturing enterprises in Jiangxi province, China. This questionnaire was collected through the online platform Questionnaire Star (https://www.wjx.cn/) to collect data. In this study, the QR code and link automatically generated by Questionnaire Star were sent to the respondents through social media for filling out. The second step is to explain the purpose of the questionnaire and the explanation of the professional vocabulary in the questionnaire to the managers. Each manager needs about 10 minutes to complete the questionnaire.

3.4 Questionnaire Instrumentation

The framework for this study was developed from theories and concepts related to the workplace. The design of this study was a mixed approach.Quantitative approach for this study was done by using questionnaires. Furthermore, the needed information collected from those subjects was composed of various items such as Resilient leadership, Enterprise Innovation, Sustainable Business Performance and executive incentive.This study developed and adapted the instrument from various sources constructed by former well known researchers to cover information needed for figuring out the research hypotheses. Furthermore, the questionnaires were conducted based on intensive literature review and the guidance of experts.Most items were derived from the literature.

This study will use questionnaires to collect first-hand data. The resilient leadership scale was developed based on the scales of Everly, Smith & Lobo (2013) and Everly, Strouse & Everly (2010) from five dimension including realistic optimism, cognition & flexibility,inspiration & team building,innovation capacity and customer supplier relationship. The enterprise innovation scale was developed based on the scales of Pan, Lin & Xiao (2022) and Agapitova & Linn (2016) from four dimension including

product service Innovation, strategic innovation, technical innovation and marketing innovation. The sustainable business performance scale was developed based on the scales of Haseeb et al. (2019) and Ch'ng, Cheah & Amran (2021) from three dimension including corporate economic performance, corporate environmental performance and corporate social performance. The executive incentive scale was developed based on the scales of Lewellen, Loderer & Martin (1987) and Dechow & Sloan (1991). The above four scales' items are all ranged from 1 (strongly disagree) to 5 (strongly agree).

The questionnaire design is displayed in appendix B.

3.5 Reliability

When selecting or designing a new instrument for a study, a researcher is required to recognize the instrument's importance to specific research problems (Shavelson & Towne, 2002) as well as the instrument's accuracy. Traditionally, the quality is defined by the efficacy - degrees measured by the tool what it needs to calculate rather than anything, and reliability - the size of a device can be assumed to deliver the same calculated results when the measurement is repeated (Taber, 2013). The present thesis is using Cronbach's Alpha reliability test - a metric generally correlated with instrument reliability in science education research.

In this study, Cronbach's Alpha coefficient was used as an indicator to measure the reliability of the scale. The questionnaire used in this study includes four scales, namely, Resilient Leadership, Enterprise Innovation, Sustainable Business Performance and Executive Incentive. Table 4.1 below shows the reliability test results of this questionnaire.

questionnaire.		
Table 3.3 Reliability test results	นโลยีราขะ	
Scale	Number of Items	Cronbach's Alpha
Resilient Leadership	25	0.939
Enterprise Innovation	20	0.924
Sustainable Business Performance	15	0.919
Executive Incentive	7	0.909

Table 3.3	Reliability	test resul	ts
-----------	-------------	------------	----

From table 3.3, it can be concluded that the resilient leadership scale contains 25 items, and its Cronbach's Alpha coefficient is 0.939, greater than 0.7, indicating that the resilient leadership scale has good reliability. in the same way, it can be concluded that the three scales of Enterprise Innovation, Sustainable Business Performance and Executive Incentive also have good reliability in line with the questionnaire analysis.

3.6 Data Analysis

The IBM SPSS 27.0 and Amos 11.0 statistical analysis softwares were used to analyze and evaluate the data.

3.6.1 Response Rate

In the current study, in order to ensure at least 381 valid questionnaires, a total of 550 questionnaires were distributed to managers from manufacturing enterprises in Jiangxi Province of China. A total of 550 questionnaires were collected in this survey, 50 of which were information-missed, so these 50 questionnaires were directly excluded, and the remaining 500 questionnaires were used for further analysis. The response rate of the questionnaire was 90.91%.

3.6.2 Structural Equation Model

Structural equation model (SEM) is an important statistical method for quantitative research in contemporary behavioral and social fields (Yuan & Bentler, 2006). It integrates measurement and analysis, establishes structural equation models including measurement and structure based on experience or theory, and solves simultaneous equations. It allows one variable to correspond to multiple dependent variables while processing, accurately estimating each logical relationship, checking and adjusting the fit of models and data, paying attention to the overall quality and specificity of the hypothetical structure, and analyzing the direct and indirect effects of various factor indicators (Yuan & Bentler, 2006).

Structural equation model, also known as latent variable model or covariance structure model, is a hypothetical model diagram with causal relationships based on theoretical literature or empirical rules. Then, starting from the theoretical framework of hypothesis, by collecting variable data, the rationality and correctness of set structure relationships or model assumptions are verified, that is, the gap between the actual covariance and theoretical covariance of the sample is tested, And minimize the process as much as possible (Ullman & Bentler, 2012). In fact, it is a model built on the basis of traditional analysis methods, which is a comprehensive application and integrated improvement of statistical analysis methods such as confirmatory factor analysis, path analysis, and factor analysis (Ullman & Bentler, 2012), and studies the relationship between the two. Observe the relationship between variables and latent variables, as well as between latent variables and latent variables, explore the macro causal laws between things from the perspective of micro individuals, and use path analysis diagrams to reflect this relationship.

In recent years, structural equation models have been favored by scholars around the world. It provides a flexible and effective method to evaluate the predictive relationship between measurement quality and detection concepts, and provides a theoretical framework that more credibly reflects the real world. The reason why it is widely used is because it has the following basic characteristics:

(1) Structural equation models have theoretical priori. The hypothesis model constructed must have a certain theoretical basis and strong explanatory power.

(2) Structural equation models can handle both measurement and analysis problems. It integrates measurement and analysis, while estimating the measurement indicators and potential variables in the model. It can not only estimate the measurement error of the indicator variable in the measurement process, but also evaluate the reliability and validity of the measurement.

(3) Pay attention to the application of covariance theory. The so-called covariance describes the linear relationship between two variables and their impact direction. In addition to this basic function, covariance reflects the difference between the covariance of the theoretical model and the covariance of the sample data in structural equation models, which is the core idea of structural equation models.

(4) Suitable for statistical analysis of large samples. The more samples, the better the stability of statistical analysis and the applicability of various indicators. Therefore, sample size, factor load size, and number of variables are important factors in determining whether a type is good.

3.6.3 Path Analysis

Path analysis is mainly used to analyze the relationship between multiple indicator variables, especially when there are indirect impacts between variables. It includes three parts: path map, path coefficient and effect decomposition. Path analysis can be used to determine the direction of influence, the size of action and the ability of interpretation. It is a very practical analysis tool and an important part of structural equation model (Hoyle, 1995). The path map is the most intuitive tool to express the objective facts. It uses graphics to reflect the relationship between variables. Because of its simple and clear characteristics, it is widely used by people (Chou & Bentler, 1995). Path coefficient is the regression coefficient of the path analysis model, which is used to measure the degree of influence between variables or the effect of variables. It is generally divided into two types: standardization coefficient and non-standard coefficient. In general, the path coefficient is the normalized coefficient of the model, that is, the regression coefficient after all the observed variables are normalized. Because after standardization, it will not be affected by different units, that is, there is no measurement unit, and different coefficients can be compared in the same model. A positive coefficient indicates that the influence of the variable on the dependent variable is positive; a negative coefficient indicates that its influence is negative. The greater the absolute value of the coefficient, the greater its influence.

In path analysis, variables with causal relationship are usually standardized when calculating covariance. In this way, the obtained covariance is the correlation coefficient. In order to find out how the variables act, the correlation coefficient is generally decomposed into direct effect, indirect effect and total effect. The direct effect reflects the direct influence of the cause variable on the result variable, and its size is equal to the path coefficient from the cause variable to the result variable. The indirect effect reflects the influence of the cause variable on the result variable. The indirect effect reflects the influence of the cause variable on the result variable through one or more intermediate variables. Indirect effects can be found through the path map. Starting from the cause variable, the path coefficient product of all intermediate variables ends at the result variable. The total effect is the sum of the effects of the cause variable on the result variable on the result variable on the result variable. The total effect is the sum of the effects of the cause variable on the result variable on the result variable. The total effect and indirect effects. That is, total effect=direct effect + indirect effect. When analyzing the effect between factors, we should consider both the

total effect and the direct effect and indirect effect, so that the conclusion is more explanatory.

3.6.4 Moderating Effect Analysis

The moderating effect refers to if the variable X is related to the variable Y, but the relationship between X and Y is affected by the third variable W, then the variable W is the regulatory variable, and the role of the regulatory variable is moderating. According to the different levels of regulatory variables that can have different effects on the relationship between X and Y, moderating effects can be divided into positive moderation and negative moderation. When the moderation variable W has a significant strengthening or promoting effect on the relationship between the variables X and Y, it is called positive moderation, and vice versa (McClelland et al., 1993).

According to the suggestions of previous studies, the regression analysis of the moderating effect in this study is mainly carried out in four steps: (1) In order to reduce the multicollinearity problem among variables in the regression equation, the independent variables and the regulatory variables are centralized; (2) Construct the product term, that is, multiply the independent variable and the adjusting variable after the centralized processing; (3) Test the influence of independent variables on dependent variables and the influence of moderating variables on dependent variables; (4) Put the independent variable, dependent variable, moderating variable and product term into the multiple hierarchical regression equation to test whether the coefficient of the product term is significant. If it is significant, it means that the adjustment effect exists. This study uses 0.05 as the significance level of the test.

This study uses hierarchical regression analysis to test the moderating effect of variables. The dependent variable is divided into two levels. The first level is to test the influence of independent variables and moderation variables on dependent variables; The second level regression introduces the interaction term of independent variables and moderation variables (the product of independent variables and moderation variables) to test the impact of independent variables, moderation variables, and interaction terms on dependent variables. When there is a high correlation between the explanatory variables in the regression model, the accuracy of the parameter estimation of the model will be reduced. Therefore, before the moderating effect test, this paper first standardizes the

independent variables and the moderating variables to reduce the collinearity between the independent variables and the moderating variables, and then carries out the regression analysis. If the R square changes significantly and the regression coefficient of the interaction item is significant after adding the interaction item, it indicates that there is a moderating effect, and the direction of the moderating effect is determined by the positive and negative sign of the regression coefficient of the interaction item. If the regression coefficient of the interaction item is a significant positive, it indicates that there is a significant positive moderating effect, and vice versa (McClelland et al., 1993).

PART II: Quanlitative

3.7 Interview Method

After quantitative analysis, this study used interview method to further validate the results of quantitative analysis. Interview research includes a wide range of questions and response strategies. This diversity of strategies spans multiple domains: differences in purpose (e.g., requiring a better understanding of a range of responses or a deep and complex understanding of difficult to define concepts), differences in opportunities for organizing interviewees (e.g., individuals and groups), changes in data collection tools, changes in analytical perspectives, and changes in presentation forms (Trainor & Graue, 2013). Interviews are a common method of collecting data across methodologies and from different epistemological positions (Trainor & Graue, 2013).

The interview method has different classification methods because of its different nature, purpose or object. According to the way of communication between the interviewer and the interviewee during the interview, direct interview and indirect interview can be used. Direct interview means face-to-face communication between the interviewer and the interviewee. The two meet each other and become familiar with each other after entering the interview. Indirect interview means that the interviewer interviews the interviewee indirectly with some tools, including telephone interview, questionnaire survey, questionnaire distribution with the help of a third party, network survey, etc. The interviewer and the interviewee do not meet directly. According to the number of one-time interviews, interviews can be divided into individual interviews and group

interviews. Among them, individual interviews are conducted with individual interviewees, and group interviews are a method of inviting several interviewees to collect interview data through group discussions.

Due to the flexibility and simplicity of the interview method, it has been widely used and has achieved good results when combined with other research methods. Compared with other research methods, the interview method has the following five characteristics: First, the greatest advantages and characteristics of the interview method are in the sub. As the interview method is a direct intervention method, there is a relatively deep and extensive communication between the interviewees, which lasts from the beginning of the interview to the end of the interview, and has a profound impact on the results of the interview. The interview can not only collect data that can be collected by other working methods, but also obtain additional information disclosed by the interviewees due to the impact and interaction of the interview. Secondly, interview methods are divided into structured interview and unstructured interview based on their different control over the interview process. The data obtained by the former is convenient for us to conduct quantitative research, while the data obtained by the latter is convenient for us to conduct qualitative research. Thirdly, because the two parties involved in the interview have a relatively in-depth communication, the interview is generally conducted in a certain environment, facilitating us to control the process and environment of the interview as needed, so that the interview can develop in a good direction. Fourth, in the interview process, especially unstructured interviews, because there is no fixed format, interviewers can adopt flexible ways to conduct interviews, actively mobilizing the emotions of interviewees, and contributing to the smooth progress of the interview. Fifth, because the interview method is face-to-face communication, interviewees often receive interference from the interviewer's thoughts during the interview process, affecting the independence and objectivity of the interview.

3.8 Interview Sampling

The qualitative research objective of this study is to explore the impact of flexible leadership, corporate innovation, and executive motivation on sustainable business performance. To achieve this goal, homogeneous and purposeful sampling is used to select qualitative samples. Uniform and purposeful sampling is suitable for finding participants with similar attributes (Creswell, 2002). He further recommends that the researcher need to determine the specific attributes he/she is looking for in the target population. In the context of the current study, researchers looked for three main attributes (gender, education background and whether served as manager for more than 5 years), as shown in Table 3.4.

First, the gender of the sample should be male. Secondly, the sample should only collect bachelor's degree education background. Finally, the sample should only be collected from people who have served as managers for more than 5 years. In terms of sample size, the researchers followed the guidelines recommended by Creswell (2002). He suggested that the sample size of six to eight respondents be suitable for homogeneous samples. Therefore, since the sample for the current study is essentially homogeneous, six respondents were selected.

Sr. no.	Name of the participant	Gender	Education Background	Whether served as manager for more than 5 years
1	F1	Male	Bachelor degree	Yes
2	F2	Male	Bachelor degree	Yes
3	F3	Male	Bachelor degree	Yes
4	F4	Male	Bachelor degree	Yes
5	F5	Male	Bachelor degree	Yes
6	F6	Male	Bachelor degree	Yes

Table 3.4 Qualitative sampling

3.9 Interview Outline Design

As a tool for eliciting reactions (i.e., data), questions take various forms, which should be consistent with the direction of researchers' epistemology.

The interview outline designed for this study includes five questions:

Q1: How do you think resilient leadership affects enterprise innovation?

Q2: How do you think resilient leadership affects sustainable business performance?

Q3: How do you think enterprise innovation affects sustainable business performance?

Q4: In your opinion, what role does enterprise innovation play in the impact of the leadership on sustainable business performance?

Q5: In your opinion, what role does Executive initiative play in the impact of resilient leadership on enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance?

3.10 Ethical Issues

In order to protect the privacy, rights, and well-being of research participants, it is necessary to adhere to ethical principles and standards of conduct in scientific research. Prior to conducting an investigation, employees of the company will apply to the agency for access to the agency and the right to participate in the investigation. All personal information will be kept confidential, their confidential data will not be shared with third parties, and research data will be analyzed collectively (not individually) and honestly.

In practice, all collected questionnaires will be sealed and only a few people can access them. After obtaining the conclusion of relevant data analysis, the questionnaire will be destroyed. Each investigator can assign a number to identify his/her identity information (such as name, ID card number, etc.). This "identification" operation can both be separated from the survey answer and maintain a correlation with the answer.

CHAPTER 4 RESEARCH RESULT

PART 1: Quantitative

4.1 Questionnaire Distribution and Recovery

In order to explore the impact of flexible leadership on sustainable business performance of enterprises and the role of innovation and executive motivation in the relationship between the two, this article uses a questionnaire survey to collect first-hand data, and takes Jiangxi Province as the target for enterprise executives in China Province as the object of this survey. In January 2023, a total of 550 questionnaires were distributed. Reject 50 invalid questionnaires (Invalid Questionnaire Criteria: (1) For questionnaires that do not meet the sample requirements, the selected items will be automatically deleted; (2) Incomplete answers to the questionnaire; (3) Careful answers to incomplete questionnaires (including those that choose the same answer for more than 5 consecutive times or use the same IP address multiple times), and the remaining valid number of questionnaires is 500, and the percentage of valid questionnaires in the total returned questionnaires is 90.91%.

4.2 Validity Analysis

Convergent Validity Analysis and Confirmatory Factor Analysis

Latent	Observation		Standardized	a -	<i>a</i> b		~	
variable	variable	Symbol	factor loading	S.E.	C.R.	Р	CR	AVE
	Realistic Optimism	RO	0.73	-	-	-		
	Cognition & Flexibility	CF	0.845	0.093	11.948	***		
Resilient Leadership	Inspiration & Team Building	ITB	0.784	0.081	11.56	***	0.8697	0.5728
	Innovation Capacity	IC	0.7	0.084	10.73	***		
	Customer Supplier Relationship	CSR	0.716	0.082	11.241	***		
	Product/service Innovation	PSI	0.634	-	-	-		
Enterprise	Strategic Innovation	SI	0.798	0.136	10.21	***		
Innovation	Technological Innovation	TI	0.686	0.107	9.561	***	0.8133	0.5233
	Marketing Innovation	MI	0.764	0.11	9.843			
	Economic Performance	ECP	0.709		5	-		
Sustainable Business	Environmental Performance	ENP	0.798	0.111	10.169	***	0.8032	0.5769
Performance	Social Performance	SOP	0.769	0.11	10.356	***		
	3	Q66	0.827		1.5	-		
		Q67	0.72	0.042	17.78	***		
		Q68	0.734	0.041	18.233	***		
Executi	ve Incentive	Q69	0.812	0.044	20.99	***		
		Q70	0.774	0.044	19.615	***	0.9093	0.5893
		Q71	0.767	0.043	19.374	***		
		Q72	0.733	0.042	18.213	***		

Table 4.1 Confirmatory factor analysis results

In this section, confirmatory factor analysis and discriminant validity analysis are performed on the above four scales. It can be seen from table 4.1 that the standardized factor loads of the observation variables of the four latent variables in this paper are all greater than 0.6, indicating that the observed items can well explain their latent variables. The combined reliability CRs are all greater than 0.7, and the factor extraction AVEs are all greater than 0.5, which indicates that all the observation items in each latent variable can explain the latent variable consistently, indicating that the four scales of Resilient Leadership, Enterprise Innovation, Sustainable Business Performance and Executive Incentive have good convergence validity.

Discriminant Validity Analysis

	Resilient Leadership	Enterprise Innovation	Sustainable Business Performance	Executive Incentive
Resilient Leadership	0.7568			
Enterprise Innovation	0.637	0.7234		
Sustainable Business Performance	0.722	0.708	0.7595	
Executive Incentive	0.222	0.234	0.3	0.7677

 Table 4.2 Discriminant validity analysis

Note: The bold value in the upper right corner is the square root of AVE, and other values are the correlation coefficients between dimensions.

From Table 4.2, it can be seen that the AVE value of each latent variable is greater than 0.5, and the square root of AVE is greater than the absolute value of the correlation coefficient between latent variables, indicating that four scales of Resilient Leadership, Enterprise Innovation, Sustainable Business Performance and Executive Incentive have good discrimination validity.

4.3 Measurement Model Fit Evaluation

Figure 4.1-4.4 below show confirmatory factor analysis of model graph and the measurement model of four latent variables.



Figure 4.1 Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (1)



Figure 4.2 Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (2)



Figure 4.3 Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (3)



Figure 4.4 Confirmatory factor analysis of model graph (4)

The fitness standard of the confirmatory factor analysis in this study is mainly based on the standard of Gefen (2000). The index standard is shown in Table 4.6 below. The fitness test of the model in this study is carried out according to the table. For models with large samples, the value of the chi-square degree of freedom ratio (χ^2 / df) is required to be less than 5 (Kothari, 2004). The smaller the value of RMSEA is, the better the fitness of the model is. Its value is between 0.05 and 0.08, which indicates that the fitness of the model is good. If it is less than 0.05, the fitness of the model is very good. When the GFI value is greater than 0.9, it indicates that the fitness is good. AGFI is the adjusted fitness index, which increases with the increase of GFI, preferably greater than 0.9. However, Table 4.5 indicates that none of the above indicators have met the standards, indicating that the fitting degree of the structural equation model is average, and the model needs to be corrected.

1 able 4.5 F	iung maie	cators of the	e confirmat	ory factor a	analysis of	the unrevis	ed model
Indicator	χ²/ df	GFI	AGFI	NFI	TLI	CFI	RMSEA
Estimate	7.054	0.894	0.838	0.875	0.858	0.890	0.11
Threshold	<5	>0.9	>0.9	>0.9	>0.9	>0.9	<0.08
Interpretatio n	Unqualifie d						

There are two main methods for model correction. One is the significance of path coefficients, which gradually removes paths with insignificant path coefficients and increases the adaptability of the model; The second is to connect the error variance of observation variables with larger MI values or latent variables based on MI values, increase covariatity, reduce the chi squared value of the model, and thus improve the fit of the model. This study adopts the second model correction method to improve the fitting of the model.

Table 4.4 shows the revised indicator values of the model. From Table 4.4, it can be seen that according to the standard of model fitting indicators, the fitting indicators of the revised model all meet the requirements. Therefore, the path of the revised model is analyzed to verify the hypothesis proposed in this article.

Indicator	χ²/ df	GFI	AGFI	NFI	TLI	CFI	RMSEA
Estimate	3.964	0.939	0.902	0.934	0.930	0.949	0.077
Threshold	<5	>0.9	>0.9	>0.9	>0.9	>0.9	< 0.08
Interpretation	Qualified						

Table 4.4 Fitting indicators of the confirmatory factor analysis of the revised model

4.4 Descriptive Statistics

 Table 4.5 Descriptive statistics

	Mean	Std. Deviation	Ske	Skewness		Kurtosis		
Item	Statistic	Statistic	Statistic	Std. Error	Statistic	Std. Error		
Q1	3.67	1.210	567	.109	710	.218		
Q2	3.46	1.086	341	.109	457	.218		
Q3	3.49	1.097	396	.109	514	.218		
Q4	3.60	1.113	461	.109	604	.218		
Q5	3.49	1.066	353	.109	490	.218		
Q6	3.63	1.162	577	.109	471	.218		
Q7	3.60	1.084	321	.109	732	.218		
Q8	3.56	1.028	340	.109	451	.218		
Q9	3.57	1.121	411	.109	600	.218		
Q10	3.59	1.077	472	.109	436	.218		
Q11	3.50	1.073	400	.109	375	.218		
Q12	3.43	1.079	309	.109	532	.218		
Q13	3.42	1.058	320	.109	390	.218		
Q14	3.58	1.048	412	.109	398	.218		
Q15	3.49	1.075	382	.109	391	.218		
Q16	3.46	1.156	310	.109	779	.218		
Q17	3.44	1.066	276	.109	557	.218		
Q18	3.36	1.030	200	.109	577	.218		
Q19	3.51	1.099	185	.109	842	.218		
Q20	3.50	1.060	293	.109	569	.218		
Q21	3.83	1.095	863	.109	.187	.218		

	Mean	Std. Deviation	d. Deviation Skewness		Ku	rtosis
Item	Statistic	Statistic	Statistic	Std. Error	Statistic	Std. Error
Q22	3.69	1.076	605	.109	223	.218
Q23	3.66	1.039	604	.109	127	.218
Q24	3.77	1.074	630	.109	277	.218
Q25	3.74	1.019	523	.109	322	.218
Q31	3.58	1.036	557	.109	119	.218
Q32	3.67	1.085	542	.109	401	.218
Q33	3.58	.980	455	.109	084	.218
Q34	3.59	1.031	402	.109	337	.218
Q35	3.58	1.021	484	.109	266	.218
Q36	3.60	1.146	492	.109	575	.218
Q37	3.57	1.069	444	.109	474	.218
Q38	3.53	1.101	422	.109	573	.218
Q39	3.65	1.127	509	.109	512	.218
Q40	3.56	1.077	368	.109	577	.218
Q41	3.62	.992	414	.109	431	.218
Q42	3.63	.983	378	.109	347	.218
Q43	3.67	1.041	517	.109	313	.218
Q44	3.66	1.007	543	.109	246	.218
Q45	3.65	.980	501	.109	245	.218
Q46	3.55	.999	362	.109	594	.218
Q47	3.55	.981	365	.109	414	.218
Q48	3.57	1.113	485	.109	474	.218
Q49	3.56	1.116	406	.109	623	.218
Q50	3.46	1.015	290	.109	331	.218
Q51	3.44	1.107	276	.109	719	.218
Q52	3.35	1.053	132	.109	763	.218
Q53	3.37	1.024	130	.109	536	.218
Q54	3.38	1.042	180	.109	603	.218
Q55	3.34	1.040	309	.109	498	.218
Q56	3.44	1.118	307	.109	625	.218
Q57	3.48	1.043	362	.109	425	.218
Q58	3.47	1.091	456	.109	294	.218

Table 4.5 Descriptive statistics (Cont.)

	Mean	Std. Deviation Skewness		Ku	rtosis	
Item	Statistic	Statistic	Statistic	Std. Error	Statistic	Std. Error
Q59	3.49	1.070	437	.109	370	.218
Q60	3.40	1.065	312	.109	437	.218
Q61	3.63	1.112	495	.109	534	.218
Q62	3.60	1.111	540	.109	409	.218
Q63	3.61	1.112	503	.109	515	.218
Q64	3.65	1.058	469	.109	402	.218
Q65	3.62	1.115	486	.109	527	.218
Q66	3.84	1.194	930	.109	.004	.218
Q67	3.59	1.029	393	.109	246	.218
Q68	3.58	1.005	536	.109	063	.218
Q69	3.75	1.114	683	.109	331	.218
Q70	3.58	1.093	445	.109	475	.218
Q71	3.67	1.069	612	.109	162	.218
Q72	3.58	1.028	466	.109	316	.218
				1		

Table 4.5 Descripti	ve statistics (Cont.)
---------------------	-----------------------

This study conducted descriptive statistical analysis on the measurement items of the four variables in the research model. The results of the descriptive statistical analysis are shown in Table 4.7 below. As can be seen from Table 4.8, the mean value of the measurement items for the four variables is above 3 points. Due to the questionnaire used in this study, the measurement items of variables are scored using the Likert 5-level scale, so the average value is greater than 3, indicating that the score incentives for flexible leadership, enterprise innovation, sustainable business performance, and execution are high. From Table 4.7, it can also be seen that the standard deviation of all measurement items is very small, indicating that there are no abnormal values in the questionnaire data. From Table 4.7, it can also be found that the absolute values of the kurtosis and skewness of the measurement items of all variables are less than 2, indicating that the data of the variables in this study conform to a normal distribution.

4.5 Path Analysis and Hypothesis Testing

Direct effects	Standardized Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р	Unstandardized Estimate	Hypothesis
Enterprise Innovation ←Resilient Leadership	0.842	0.061	11.734	0.000	0.433	H1
Sustainable Business Performance ←Resilient Leadership	0.642	0.08	6.58	0.000	0.153	H2
Sustainable Business Performance ←Enterprise Innovation	0.351	0.089	3.797	0.000	0.826	Н3

Table 4.6 Direct effect analysis and hypothesis testing

Table 4.6 shows the direct path analysis results of the structural equation model. It can be seen from Table 4.6 that all of the significance probability (P value) of direct effect hypothesis of H1 – H3 is 0.000. The standardized path coefficients of H1-H3 are 0.842, 0.642 and 0.351, respectively. The P values of H1, H2 and H3 are all less than 0.01. The above results show that resilient leadership has a significant positive impact on enterprise innovation, which supports the hypothesis H1 (There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation); Resilient leadership has a significant positive impact on sustainable business performance, which supports the hypothesis H2 (There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance); Enterprise innovation has a significant positive impact on sustainable business performance).

4.6 Indirect Effect

Indirect Effect Analysis	Standardized Estimate	Lower	Upper	P value
Sustainable Business Performance \leftarrow	0.295	0.102	0.53	0.007
Enterprise Innovation \leftarrow Resilient Leadership				

Table 4.7 The mediation effect analysis the indirect effect analysis

Table 4.7 shows the indirect influence results between variables. It can be seen from table 4.7 that the indirect effect coefficient of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance through enterprise innovation was 0.295, with 95% confidence interval of [0.102, 0.53], excluding 0, indicating that resilient leadership has a significant indirect effect on sustainable business performance, through enterprise innovation, in other words, enterprise innovation plays an mediating role in the impact of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance. Therefore, the hypothesis H4 (Enterprise innovation mediates the effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance) is proved to be valid.

Figure 4.5 shows the structural equation model of this study. From Figure 4.5, it can be seen that the standardized path coefficient of residual leadership on sustainable business performance is 0.64 (p<0.01), indicating that residual leadership has a significant positive impact on sustainable business performance. The standardized path coefficient of resilient leadership on enterprise innovation is 0.84 (p<0.01), indicating that resilient leadership has a significant positive impact on enterprise innovation on sustainable business performance is 0.35 (p<0.01), indicating that enterprise innovation has a significant positive impact on sustainable business performance is 0.35 (p<0.01), indicating that enterprise innovation has a significant positive impact on sustainable business performance. Based on the above results, it can be concluded that enterprise innovation plays a mediating role before resistive leadership and sustainable business performance.



Figure 4.5 Structural equation model

4.7 Analysis of Moderating Effect

This article uses SPSS software and hierarchical regression method to test the regulatory effect of executive motivation. Before conducting the adjustment effect test, it is necessary to standardize the independent variables and adjustment variables, and then establish a linear regression model to eliminate the collinearity effect.

This paper first examines whether Executive initiative plays a moderating effect and the direction of the moderating effect between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation. The test results are shown in table 4.8 below.

Model	Variable	Unstandardized	t	R Square	Sig. F
		Coefficients		Change	Change
	(Constant)	3.593**	156.348		
1	Zscore: Resilient Leadership	0.412**	17.474	0.415	0.000
	Zscore: Executive Incentive	0.066**	2.791		
	(Constant)	3.575**	154.902		
	Zscore: Resilient Leadership	0.430**	18.160		
2	Zscore: Executive Incentive	0.089**	3.712	0.018	0.000
	Interaction Term	0.08**	3.962		

Table 4.8 Test of moderating effect of executive initiative in the influence of resilient

 leadership on enterprise innovation

Note: Unstandardized regression coefficients are listed in the table; ** P<0.01, two-tailed test.

Dependent Variable: Enterprise Innovation

It can be seen from Table 4.8that in model 1, the explanatory rate of independent variable Resilient Leadership and moderation variable Executive initiative to dependent variable Enterprise Innovation is 41.5%. After the interaction item is added to model 2, the change of R square is 0.018, which indicates that the prediction ability of the model has increased by 1.8%, and the significance probability of F change is p=0.000, which confirms that the moderating effect of Executive initiative is significant. According to Table 4.8, in Model 1, the unstandardized regression coefficients of independent variable Resilient Leadership and moderation variable Executive initiative are 0.412^{**} and 0.066^{**}, respectively, which are significant at the level of 1%. In model 2, the unstandardized regression coefficients of the independent variable Resilient Leadership, the moderation variable Executive incentive and their interaction items are 0.430^{**}, 0.089^{**} and 0.08^{**}, which are significant at the level of 1%, and the regression coefficient of the interaction item is positive, indicating that executive incentive plays a positive moderating effect in the impact of Resilient Leadership on Enterprise Innovation. Therefore, the research hypothesis H5 (Executive incentive has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation) is confirmed.

Figure 4.6 shows the standardized path coefficient of " resilient leadership \times executive incentive" for enterprise innovation is 1.20 (P<0.01), indicating that executive incentive plays a positive modeling effect in the impact of resilient leadership on enterprise innovation.



Next, this paper examines whether Executive initiative plays a moderating effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance and the direction of the moderating effect. The test results are shown in Table 4.12 below.

Model	Variable	Unstandardized	t	R Square	Sig. F
		Coefficients		Change	Change
	(Constant)	3.484**	152.805		
1	Zscore: Resilient Leadership	0.522^{**}	22.290	0.525	0.000
	Zscore: Executive Incentive	0.051^{**}	2.176		
	(Constant)	3.463**	152.212		
	Zscore: Resilient Leadership	0.542**	23.247		
2	Zscore: Executive Incentive	0.078**	3.307	0.02	0.000
	Interaction Term	0.094**	4.727	Į.	

Table 4.9 Test of moderating effect of executive initiative in the influence of resilient

 leadership on sustainable business performance

Note: Unstandardized regression coefficients are listed in the table; ** P<0.01, two-tailed test.

Dependent Variable: Sustainable Business Performance

It can be seen from table 4.9 that in model 1, the explanatory rate of the independent variable Resilient Leadership and the adjusting variable Executive Incentive to the dependent variable Sustainable Business Performance is 52.5% according to the change of R square. After the interaction item is added to model 2, the change of R square is 0.02, indicating that the prediction ability of the model has increased by 2%, and the significance probability of F change is p=0.000, which confirms that the moderating effect of Executive initiative is significant. According to Table 4.9, in Model 1, the unstandardized regression coefficients of independent variable Resilient Leadership and moderation variable Executive initiative are 0.522** and 0.051**, respectively, which are significant at the level of 1%. In model 2, the unstandardized regression coefficients of the independent variable Resilient Leadership, the moderation variable Executive Incentive and their interaction item are 0.542^{**},0.078^{**} and 0.094^{**}, respectively, which are significant at the level of 1%, and the regression coefficient of the interaction item is positive, indicating that Executive Incentive plays a positive moderating effect in the impact of Resilient Leadership on Sustainable Business Performance. Therefore, the research hypothesis H6 (Executive incentives has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance) is confirmed.

Figure 4.7 shows the standardized path coefficient of " resilient leadership \times executive incentive" for sustainable business performance is 0.60 (P<0.01), indicating that executive incentive plays a positive modeling effect in the impact of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance.



According to the above hypothetical test results, the test results are summarized, as shown in table 4.10 below.

Table 4.10 Summary	of hypothesis	test results
---------------------------	---------------	--------------

Hypothesis	Results
H1: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and	Yes
enterprise innovation.	
H2: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and	Yes
sustainable business performance.	
H3: There is a positive correlation between innovation and	Yes
sustainable business performance.	
H4: Enterprise innovation mediates the effect between resilient	Yes
leadership and sustainable business performance.	
H5: Executive incentive has a moderating effect on the relationship	Yes
between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.	
H6: Executive incentives has a moderating effect on the relationship	Yes
between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.	

PART 2: Qualitative part

4.9 Findings of Qualitative Data

4.9.1 Findings of the Influence of Resilient Leadership on Enterprise Innovation

Through interviews, this study found that the resilient leadership has a positive impact on enterprise innovation, which is consistent with the results of the previous quantitative analysis.

F1 mentioned that through the resilient management model, the company has stimulated the atmosphere of employees at all levels to participate in innovation and cooperative innovation. Innovative teams are generally because leaders set up innovative models, stimulate new awareness, strengthen innovation mechanisms, and strengthen innovation exchanges. I believe that managers with resilient leadership can lead employees to innovate, encourage employees to innovate, guide employees to innovate, and provide a mechanism for sharing innovation results, so that employees can discuss innovation ideas, share innovation results, and share innovation tasks. At the same time, managers with flexible innovation can guide all departments to closely cooperate with the innovation team by introducing external resources, stimulating internal vitality, and paying close attention to the dynamic changes of market innovation. F2 believed that if leaders are not willing to accept market changes, innovative ideas, and innovative mechanisms, it is difficult to create an innovative atmosphere, which will make employees refuse to innovate, question innovation, and do not want the transformation of innovative results, then people with innovative ideas and innovative capabilities will be passive and lack enthusiasm for innovation. Enterprise leaders with transformational characteristics encourage employees to divergent thinking, promote the ideological collision of employees, promote employees to obtain new technical inspiration and creativity in conflict and communication, and create a good innovation atmosphere for the team.

F3 argued resilient leadership behavior supports the learning process of the organization and focuses on building mutual trust between leaders and employees. Leaders follow their own example to pursue organizational change and innovation, and give full encouragement to proactive and adventurous change behaviors, so as to stimulate employees' thirst for new knowledge and new technology, and lead employees to achieve the common vision of the enterprise in the learning environment of continuous innovation and change. In addition, flexible leaders have passion, are full of charisma for employees, care for employees in the work, and pay attention to the intellectual stimulation of employees. These characteristics are conducive to the formation of a perfect communication and learning mechanism within the enterprise, and at the same time enable employees to play more subjective initiative, and promote individuals and organizations to constantly create new knowledge, emerging more new ideas, thus bringing about the realization of organizational technological innovation.

F4 thought there is a clear correlation between the incentive factors in the creation environment of organizational innovation atmosphere and resilient leadership, which can play a positive role in the working environment of organizational innovation atmosphere. Resilient leadership helps employees to start innovative product actions by improving their innovative ideas and vision, and requires employees to continuously collect customers' requirements for product innovation, specifically through incentive mechanisms and employee competitiveness training, and at the same time, strengthen the sharing of innovative results to stimulate employees to work hard to achieve the strategic objectives of enterprise innovation.

F5 mentioned that flexible leadership can pass on the development strategy and goals of the enterprise to subordinates through incentives, so that the enterprise goals can be recognized by subordinates, and broken down into the work goals of each subordinate, enabling subordinates to have the motivation and direction to learn. They can enable organizational members to continuously revise their learning processes and goals from the perspective of organizational goals, thereby gaining a deeper understanding and understanding of organizational goals during this process, and making their learning goals and directions clearer. Resilient leadership will provide a good climate and guidance for employees' learning to promote organizational learning, and organizational learning is a major reason for enterprise innovation, especially in knowledge-intensive industries. Guiding enterprise innovation through individual and organizational learning will become the only source of sustainable competitive advantage in enterprise organizations.

F6 thought managers with resilient leadership can highlight their own role by accumulating knowledge and improving personal ability, and then directly promote and encourage the development of enterprise innovation activities. The development of enterprises requires managers with resilient leadership to continuously accumulate knowledge and experience, so that they can actively respond in the complex market economy environment, better adapt to market changes, break through existing development channels and markets, explore or innovate new development models, and open up new markets for enterprises. In addition, resilient leadership can also promote and stimulate employees to open their minds, constantly expand and innovate, and develop a new market environment.

4.9.2 Findings of the Influence of Resilient Leadership on Sustainable Business Performance

Through interviews, this study found that the resilient leadership has a positive impact on sustainable business performance, which is consistent with the results of the previous quantitative analysis.

F3 and F5 mentioned the description of the future development vision and the construction of the work significance of managers with resilient leadership can mobilize the good mood and subjective initiative of the organization members, help to improve the organizational focus, and provide the necessary conditions for improving the enterprise

performance; They also trust the members of the organization, endow them with autonomy and decision-making space, enhance the self-efficacy and corporate effectiveness of the members of the organization, and stimulate the internal work motivation of employees and the organization; In addition, their personalized care provides the organization members with necessary resources and information support, improves the organization members' sense of return and organizational commitment, thus forming organizational synergy and promoting the improvement of sustainable business performance of enterprises.

F1 and F6 mentioned enterprise leaders with resilient leadership are better at setting up a common vision of the organization and pay attention to the guidance and motivation of employees. This behavior is easy to improve the subjective initiative of employees, thus further improving enterprise performance; At the same time, managers with resilient leadership attach importance to emotions and values, and the leadership process pays attention to encouraging mutual communication among employees and affirming their diverse thinking. This kind of leadership behavior is easy to determine the goal of team consistency. Resilient leadership behavior can promote the goal consistency of the senior management team, and then improve the efficiency of the enterprise. Managers with resilient leadership can also make organizations better adapt to the environment by overcoming organizational inertia.

F2 and F4 believed when an organization is facing a complex environment with drastic changes, it should adopt a resilient leadership model with high integration and coordination to achieve higher enterprise performance. Resilient leadership endows enterprises with the super ability to adapt to changes in internal and external environment, enabling enterprises to adjust their development direction in a timely manner in the changing environment.

4.9.3 Findings of the Influence of Enterprise Innovation on Sustainable Business Performance

Through interviews, this study found that enterprise innovation has a positive impact on sustainable business performance, which is consistent with previous quantitative analysis results. F1 and F5 believe that organizations focused on innovation can gain more market share while bringing more profits. Because knowledge innovation within an organization can avoid being shared by competitors, the organization that first adopts innovation can establish an isolation mechanism to prevent loss of profits and put the organization in a favorable position in competition. Similarly, the capabilities, resources, and technology of enterprises also require innovation, which can make it more difficult for external competitors to imitate, maintain their own competitive advantage, and achieve greater organizational performance.

F3 believes that different types of innovation can promote different types of performance improvement. For example, technological innovation can help enterprises improve their core technology and reduce product unit costs; Process innovation can promote the realization of enterprise strategic objectives; The speed and intensity of organizational innovation implementation can also have an impact on enterprise performance. Enterprises with higher innovation speed and intensity can grasp the latest technology faster and gain new competitive advantages.

F2 and F6 argued Resilient leadership can constantly adjust the internal organization and adapt to the leadership needs of specific changes by changing its own leadership style. When the organization is in a dynamic environment, resilient leadership behavior is positively related to organizational performance. The exemplary effect of charismatic leadership dimension and the cohesive effect of vision incentive played by transformational managers can improve the performance level of public institutions.

F4 believes that enterprises implementing flexible leadership can achieve unexpected work results by stimulating the potential of employees and high-level needs, making employees aware of the importance of their tasks through intellectual motivation, improving the consistency of goals through strengthening communication between senior management teams, creating a good organizational learning environment, vigorously strengthening organizational learning, and creating a transformation-oriented and innovation-oriented corporate culture, vigorously stimulate organizational innovation, by creating and sharing the vision, we can enhance the cohesion and centripetal force of the enterprise, so that the enterprise has better environmental adaptability, better survival and profitability.

4.9.4 Findings of the Mediation Effect of Enterprise Innovation

Through interviews, this study found that the enterprise innovation plays a mediation effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance, which is consistent with the results of the previous quantitative analysis.

F2 and F6 thought the intellectual incentive from managers with resilient leadership can encourage organizational members to break the rules and try new methods, form organizational innovation inertia, enhance innovation ability, and improve enterprise performance. Transformational leadership improves organizational performance by influencing the learning level of the organization and improving the level of innovation. As an important part of organizational learning, executive team's learning behavior not only determines whether organizational learning can be carried out smoothly, but also determines the content and direction of organizational learning.

F1 and F4 believe that flexible leadership behavior plays a decisive role in the improvement of organizational learning ability and organizational creativity, while the improvement of organizational internal capabilities is conducive to the organization's strategic ability and competitive advantage. A prominent feature of flexible leadership behavior of enterprise leaders is that they can vigorously stimulate organizational innovation by creating a corporate culture oriented towards change and innovation, and greatly strengthen the learning atmosphere of enterprises by creating a good organizational learning atmosphere; By improving these two organizational capabilities, organizations will have better environmental adaptability, better viability, and profitability.

F3 and F5 thought the dynamic and complex environment may lead to the decline of enterprise performance, which is also an environmental factor for enterprises to be eliminated. In order to cope with the dynamic environment and maintain sustainable competitiveness, enterprises must build their core competence, and the innovation ability of enterprises has been proved to be an effective way to cope with environmental changes and gain competitive advantage. Enterprises respond to dynamic and complex environmental changes like a war without gunpowder. The manager with transformational leadership behavior is the winner in this series of wars. He relies on his strong charisma to motivate his subordinates to fight for noble missions. He understands

the ability and potential of his subordinates. He can inspire them to win this war with creative thinking. The innovation ability of enterprises is their best weapon, Good corporate performance is the best trophy of this war.

4.9.5 Findings of the Moderation Effect of Executive Initiative

Through interviews, this study found that the executive initiative plays a moderation effect between resilient leadership on enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance, which is consistent with the results of the previous quantitative analysis.

F1, F3 and F6 mentioned there is a close relationship between the executive compensation incentive and the business performance of enterprises. Enterprises can improve the business performance by increasing the executive compensation. The company can mobilize the enthusiasm of executives by implementing equity incentives for executives, actively promote the innovation activities of enterprises in the flexible management activities of enterprises, and more pursue to achieve long-term performance improvement of enterprises, rather than only focus on short-term benefits.

F2, F4 and F5 mentioned by means of executive incentive, enterprises can make the interests of executives and corporate shareholders tend to be consistent, which can effectively mobilize the enthusiasm and subjective initiative of executives, and is conducive to the long-term development of enterprises and the realization of long-term interests. Resilient leadership can promote enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance. In this process, if the incentive of senior executives is improved, senior executives will play a more active role in the implementation of flexible management activities and promote the realization of various strategic objectives of the enterprise.

CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Conclusion

To study the influence of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance in enterprises in Jiangxi province of China and to decompose such influences, by considering enterprise innovation and executive incentive, this study adopts a mixed research method, which includes both quantitative analysis and qualitative analysis. In the quantitative analysis, this paper collects first-hand data in the form of questionnaires, and carries out quantitative analysis on the effective data collected. A total of 500 samples were selected in this paper, This study developed a structural equation model. The structural model has goodness of fit in the high degree. Amos and SPSS software were used to conduct empirical analysis on the collected questionnaire data, including reliability test, validity test, descriptive statistical analysis, correlation analysis, path analysis, decomposition effect analysis and moderating effect analysis. The reliability and validity test results are up to the standard, and the structural equation model is well adapted. The value of χ^2/df of this model is 3.964, which is less than 5. The RMSEA value of this study's model is 0.077, which is less than 0.08, which indicates that the fitness of the model is good. The GFI and AGFI values in this model is 0.939 and 0.902, respectively, indicating that the fitness of the model is good.

The path analysis results of this study support the 1st hypothesis: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation; the 2nd hypothesis: There is a positive correlation between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance; the 3rd hypothesis: There is a positive correlation between innovation and sustainable business performance. The decomposition effect analysis results of this study support the 4th hypothesis: Enterprise innovation mediates the effect between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance. The moderating effect analysis results supports the 5th hypothesis: Executive incentive has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation; the 6th hypothesis: Executive incentives has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.
In the qualitative analysis, this paper uses the interview method to conduct faceto-face interviews with the managers of five enterprises. By answering the questions in the interview outline, it is found that the results of the qualitative analysis are consistent with the results of the quantitative analysis, which further validates the arguments put forward in this paper.

5.2 Discussion

5.2.1 Effect of Resilient Leadership on Enterprise Innovation (H1)

The results of this study show that resilient leadership has a significant positive predictive effect on enterprise innovation, which is consistent with the research hypothesis H1. In other words, the better resilient leadership is, the more enterprise innovation happens. The research results are consistent with those of Kanter (1983) and Jung et al. (2003). They argued resilient leadership could promote enterprise innovation.

According to Boal and Hooijberg (2000), flexible leaders can transfer the development strategy and objectives of the organization to their subordinates through motivation, so that the organizational objectives can be recognized by the subordinates, and can be decomposed into the work objectives of each subordinate, so that the subordinates have the motivation and direction to learn. They can enable the organization members to start from the organizational objectives, constantly revise their own learning process and objectives, so as to have a deeper understanding and body of the organizational objectives in this process. Therefore, resilient leadership will provide good climate and guidance for employees' learning to promote organizational learning. Stata (1989) found through empirical research that organizational learning is a major reason for enterprise innovation, especially in knowledge-intensive industries, guiding enterprise innovation through individual and organizational learning will become the only source of sustainable competitive advantage in enterprise organizations. Chinese scholars also confirmed that the open mind factor in organizational learning has a significant positive impact on technological innovation after conducting research on Chinese enterprises.

Through the encouragement and psychological empowerment of subordinate employees, flexible leadership can enable employees to generate innovative driving forces, stimulate employees to participate in organizational learning, absorb knowledge nutrition from communication with others and organizational information sharing, change the way and perspective of viewing problems, and learn to choose different methods to solve problems. In the process of social participation, flexible leadership can often affect the self-concept and behavioral motivation of subordinates, thereby inducing their behavior. This leadership behavior can lead to a sense of self-efficacy in the pursuit of collective goals and interests by subordinates (Van Knippenberg & Hogg, 2003). In addition, social learning theory also reveals that positive interpersonal relationships among team members develop a micro relationship in which people can share existing knowledge and create new knowledge (Judd & McFarlane, 1986). Flexible leadership enables teams and organizations to form relatively consistent values and organizational culture through incentives, and infuses these values into the hearts of each employee to internalize and identify with them. In this context of corporate culture, the concept of organizational learning can be well implemented, and information and knowledge sharing within the enterprise can proceed smoothly. Resilient leadership organizations emphasize promoting organizational change through organizational learning and intellectual stimulation of employees. Flexible leadership encourages employees to question the nature of issues, past accepted conceptual assumptions, and stereotypes. Through this questioning, employees can accumulate their creativity.

Resilient leadership establishes an organizational climate by providing employees with intellectual stimulation, advocacy and support for innovation, and clearly expressing the competitive future vision of the organization. In this climate, employees can feel challenges and constantly find innovative methods in their work to promote enterprise innovation.

5.2.2 Effect of Resilient Leadership on Sustainable Business Performance (H2)

The results of this study show that resilient leadership has a significant positive predictive effect on sustainable business performance, which is consistent with the research hypothesis H2. In other words, the better resilient leadership is, the more sustainable business performance happens. The research results are consistent with those of Marique and Stinglhamber (2011), Allen and Meyer (1996). They argued resilient leadership could promote sustainable business performance.

In team work, team leaders are in frequent interaction with their subordinates. Their positive psychological quality can not only help them achieve the set work goals, but also promote sustainable business performance by stimulating and encouraging team members to achieve the goals of the whole team in the process of working with their subordinates. Team leaders with high level of resilient leadership have more positive emotions. They can show a positive and optimistic attitude, show the determination not to give up easily, and take unswerving and effective actions in the face of work challenges. On the one hand, team members who work with them can be infected and encouraged, and learn from leaders' exemplary behaviors to improve their psychological resilience, The improvement of psychological resilience of members can help them achieve good work results; On the other hand, team leaders with high level of resilient leadership can also build an "impregnable" team and effectively improve the work-related performance of members.

Emotional contagion is one of the psychological mechanisms that leaders influence subordinates (Bono & Ilies, 2006). Emotional contagion refers to that the emotional expressionist automatically affects the emotion of the observer through facial expression, speech, posture or physical movement, and makes the two emotions tend to be consistent. In the first stage of emotional infection, the observer will subconsciously imitate the emotions shown by the observed, and then determine his next emotional response according to the feedback from the observed. If the feedback is positive, the observer will experience the same emotions and feelings as the observed: if the feedback is negative, it will not. The study found that individuals will subconsciously imitate the behavior of their peers to achieve the purpose of social interaction with them (Chartrand & Bargh, 1999). It can be seen that the imitation in the first stage provides the possibility for the observer to establish further interaction with the observed; The feedback process determines whether they can reach an agreement (Golding, 2018).

Generally speaking, in the organization, the leadership's role model is particularly prominent. Because, compared with ordinary employees, leaders have a higher position in the organization. On the one hand, they hold important resources and directly determine the immediate interests of employees, such as resource allocation, performance evaluation, promotion decisions, etc. At the same time, in specific work tasks, they determine which behaviors of employees are acceptable and appropriate. In addition, leaders' work qualifications and experience are generally longer than their subordinates. Therefore, Leaders naturally become important role models for employees, and subordinates have strong learning motivation for their external performance in work. Therefore, when faced with work adversity, leaders with high flexibility and leadership show positive emotions, firm tone of voice, strong gestures and other external emotions and behaviors that may become the objects of subordinates' imitation and learning. Leaders' positive psychological quality can be effectively transmitted to their subordinates, triggering the same psychological and behavioral reactions of their subordinates. Individuals with high resilience have more psychological resources (Lives, 2008), and can be more fully prepared and adopt more effective coping strategies when facing challenges, thus reducing the adverse effects of stress events. So, they can develop good adaptation in work and life, including having positive work attitude and behavior, healthy psychological state, etc. (Shin et al., 2012), and then promote team synergy to improve team members' performance and enterprise performance.

5.2.3 Effect of Enterprise Innovation on Sustainable Business Performance (H3)

The results of this study show that enterprise innovation has a significant positive predictive effect on sustainable business performance, which is consistent with the research hypothesis H3. In other words, the better enterprise innovation is, the more sustainable business performance happens.

Enterprise innovation can promote enterprises to develop new products, occupy new markets, and expand their business scope. Enterprise innovation can also achieve product differentiation, improve its technological content and quality, and form the core competitiveness of enterprises. Continuous innovation can not only maintain existing customers, but also attract more new customers, continuously expand market share, and achieve comprehensive and sustainable improvement of enterprise performance. The resource-based theory proposes that an enterprise is a collection of resources, and maintaining the diversity of resources is the main way to achieve long-term development of the enterprise. As a strategic resource, independent innovation capability can not only reflect the competitiveness of enterprise products, but also reflect the ability of enterprises to absorb capital. Is the source power of enterprise development. The innovation ability can increase sales revenue by adding new products, which in turn can lead to the growth of enterprise operating profit (Huang et al., 2017). Some scholars believe that the positive impact of innovation capability on enterprise performance mainly lies in its ability to generate good investment information in the capital market. The more patents a company owns, the more it can attract investors' attention, thereby obtaining timely external financial support (Lee et al., 2018). The theory of "core competitiveness" believes that core competitiveness is acquired by enterprises through the accumulation of core technologies and core products. It is a unique competitive advantage from other enterprises and can bring excess profits to enterprises. Core competitiveness is a key indicator to measure whether an enterprise has strength. The innovation activities of an enterprise can promote the technological innovation of the enterprise, bring core competitiveness to the enterprise, and promote the sustainable business performance of the enterprise.

5.2.4 Mediation Effect of Enterprise Innovation Between Resilient Leadership and Sustainable Business Performance (H4)

The results of this study show that resilient leadership positively influences sustainable business performance through enterprise innovation (H4). The working methods, working styles and working methods of leaders in enterprises have a decisive effect on the organizational innovation atmosphere. Strong leadership has a great impact on the organizational innovation atmosphere, and even determines the tone of the organizational innovation atmosphere (Ekvall, 1991). When the level of organizational innovation atmosphere is obvious, employees continue to participate deeply in product development activities, and the cohesion of both parties in the organization continues to increase. Enterprise innovation has a significant role in promoting enterprise performance.

At work, employees will take managers with resilient leadership as their role models. The managers of resilient leadership care about the work and life of employees by communicating the vision of the enterprise to employees, so that employees can consciously give full play to their potential, stimulate their creativity, better integrate into the innovative atmosphere of the enterprise, improve the work efficiency and work performance of each employee, thus driving the improvement of the overall organizational performance, and ultimately bring good benefits to the enterprise. Enterprise innovation plays a mediating role between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

5.2.5 Moderation Effect of Executive Incentive

The results of this study indicate that executive motivation plays a positive regulatory role between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation (H5). The results of this study indicate that executive motivation plays a positive regulatory role between flexible leadership and sustainable business performance (H6). In the modern enterprise system, the separation of the rights of the operator and the owner of the enterprise results in the inconsistency of the purpose of the operator and the shareholder. When the interests of the management and the interests of the shareholder deviate, the resilient leadership activities are not necessarily carried out in the direction of maximizing the interests of the shareholder. According to the principal-agent theory, resilient leadership has a fundamental impact on enterprise innovation activities and enterprise performance. The behavior of managers largely depends on whether the interests of managers and shareholders are consistent. When the interests of the two tend to be the same, managers are more inclined to pursue long-term strategic development goals with innovation and enterprise performance as the core; When the two interests diverge, managers tend to pursue short-term financial performance objectives. Therefore, granting a portion of equity to senior executives, while transferring part of the operational risk to the management, and linking the interests of senior executives with corporate performance can reduce the short-term self-interest behavior of senior executives, enable senior executives to focus on innovative activities with certain risks but conducive to the longterm development of the enterprise and ultimately achieve sustainable performance improvement of the enterprise (Lee & O'Neill, 2003). By formulating a reasonable incentive system for senior executives, the company closely links the interests of shareholders and managers, and stimulates the enthusiasm of management, so as to effectively resolve the principal-agent problem and ensure that resilient leadership activities are carried out in the direction of maximizing the interests of shareholders. Therefore, under different incentive mechanisms, resilient leadership will have different relationships with enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance. From the perspective of methodology, the executive incentive variable as a moderator has a moderating effect on the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation and resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.

5.3 Implications

5.3.1 Theoretical Implications

This study developed a conceptual model to examine the effects of resilient leadership on enterprise innovation, the effects of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance, effects of enterprise innovation on sustainable business effects of enterprise innovation between resilient leadership and performance. sustainable business performance, and moderation effect of executive incentives. The theories used in this study as well as in the related studies were utilized as a guideline to recognize the fundamental power of resilient leadership and sustainable business performance.Resilient leadership embraced realistic optimism, cognition & flexibility, inspiration & team building, innovation capacity and customer supplier relationship. Enterprise innovation embraced product service Innovation, strategic innovation, technical innovation and marketing innovation. The sustainable business performance embraced corporate economic performance, corporate environmental performance and corporate social performance. The executive incentive scale was developed based on the scales of Lewellen, Loderer & Martin (1987) and Dechow & Sloan (1991). The contribution of this study's major findings to the theoretical concept were the positive connection between resilient leadership, sustainable business performance, enterprise innovation and executive incentive.

This study supported Ding Anna and Liu Jingjiang (2012)pointed out that leadership has essential influence on enterprise innovation,MARTIN R (2018) put forward a variety of dimensions and measurement methods of resilient leadership structure, which have been applied to the empirical study of the relationship between team resilient practice and sustainable business performance,Zhong & Ren (2001) conducted he investment of enterprises in scientific and technological activities promotes their sustainable business performance, Zhou et al. (2021) proposed that resilient leadership will promote enterprises to carry out innovation, thus enabling enterprises to achieve new product success, which can improve the performance level of enterprises, the moderating impact of the executive incentive on the relationship between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance (Amabile et al., 2004; Lorinkova et al., 2013) and resilient leadership and innovation (Yun, Faraj, & Sims, 2005).

This study has certain value for developing theory and guiding management practice. From the perspective of theoretical development. Although some Chinese scholars have done some research on the theory of resilient leadership and organizational performance, there are few studies on how resilient leadership affects business performance from the enterprise level. The research on the impact of enterprise innovation as a mediating effect and executive incentive as a moderating effect is still in a blank. Therefore, this study, based on the western theory of resilient leadership and the situation of Chinese enterprises, proposes for the first time the influence mechanism of enterprise resilient leadership mediated by enterprise innovation and moderated by executive incentive, which further enriches the connotation of the theory of resilient leadership.

5.3.2 Practical Implications

This study takes 500 enterprises as a sample to make an empirical study on the relationship between enterprise leadership, enterprise innovation, executive incentive and sustainable business performance in China.H1mentioned that through the resilient management model, the company has stimulated the atmosphere of employees at all levels to participate in innovation and cooperative innovation.H2 mentioned the better resilient leadership is, the more sustainable business performance happens.H3 mentioned the better enterprise innovation is, the more sustainable business performance happens. H4 mentioned enterprise innovation plays a mediating role between resilient leadership and sustainable business performance. H5 indicated that executive motivation plays a positive regulatory role between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation.H6 indicated that executive motivation plays a positive regulatory role between flexible leadership and sustainable business performance. The value based leadership literature believes that the higher the level of sharing and recognition of the values that leaders believe in and incorporate into the organizational culture, the more effective their

leadership behavior will be, and the higher their business performance will be, especially in the crisis and uncertain environment. So establish leadership values and maintain an optimistic and upward spirit. Therefore, enterprise managers should actively create a good working atmosphere, strive to build a learning organization, good executive incentives systems which will effectively improve the innovation ability of the enterprise and improve sustainable business performance.

5.4 Limitations of the Study

Although this study has achieved some significant empirical results and theoretical progress, due to various factors, there are still some shortcomings that need to be gradually improved in future research work.

First of all, due to the large number of questionnaires used in this study, the subjects need to take a long time to fill in, and there is no on-site supervision, so the authenticity of the data is biased; Secondly, this study selects cross-sectional data at a certain time point, but because work-family balance and leader-member exchange are dynamic processes that will migrate over time, future research can try longitudinal research; Thirdly, the measurement of each variable in this study is from the self-assessment questionnaire, and there may be common method deviation. The follow-up research should adopt the idea of multi-method and multi-source measurement, for example, combining the questionnaires of superiors, subordinates and colleagues, to control the source of common method deviation from a procedural perspective.

Secondly, the problem of sample allocation. Due to human, financial, and research feasibility considerations, the sample distribution in this article is mainly concentrated in Jiangxi Province, China. Although the overall number of samples meets the requirements of statistical analysis, the coverage from the perspective of geographical distribution is not enough. I hope that future research can expand the coverage of the sample, so as to enhance the generality of the research conclusions in this paper. During the operation of resilient leadership, the relationship between resilient leadership and relevant factors will change over time. However, due to the limitation of time, this study did not carry out a longitudinal study with a certain time span, but a cross-sectional study mainly using the questionnaire method. Such a research method is not enough to deeply understand such complex issues as leadership behavior. Therefore, it is necessary to strengthen the longitudinal research with a certain time span in order to obtain more complete research results.

In addition, the measurement of research variables has limitations. Although the scale used in this paper is based on the mature scale, there may still be a large difference between the scale items and the actual situation of the enterprise, which makes the research results to some extent cannot truly reflect the objective reality.

Finally, there are limitations in the selection of regulatory variables. In addition to Executive incentive, there are other regulatory variables inside or outside the enterprise that will affect the relationship between resilient leadership and enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance. This paper only selects the internal variable of the enterprise that has the most direct impact - Executive incentive to measure. Therefore, other regulatory variables that may affect the relationship between the above variables can be considered to be included in the research scope in the future.



List of Bibliography

- Abraham, J.L. and Knight, D.J. (2001), "Strategic innovation: leveraging creative action for more profitable growth", *Strategy & Leadership*, 29(1), 21-27. https://doi.org/10.1108/10878570110694625
- Acharya, A. S., Prakash, A., Saxena, P., & Nigam, A. (2013). Sampling: Why and how of it. *Indian Journal of Medical Specialties*, 4(2), 330-333.
- Adegbile A., Sarpong D. & Meissner D. (2017). Strategic foresight for innovation management: A Review and Research Agenda. *International Journal of Innovation and Technology Management*, 14(4), 1750018 https://doi.org/10.1142/S0219877017500171
- Agapitova, N., & Linn, J. F. (2016). *Scaling up social enterprise innovations: Approaches and lessons*. Brookings Global Working Paper Series.
- Agle, B. R., Nagarajan, N. J., Sonnenfeld, J. A., & Srinivasan, D. (2006). Does manager charisma matter? An empirical analysis of the relationships among organizational performance, environmental uncertainty, and top management team perceptions of manager charisma. *Academy of management journal*, 49(1), 161-174.
- Ahmadu Sanda., Aminu S. Mikailu and. Tukur Garba. 2015. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MECHANISMS AND FIRM FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN NIGERIA. Department of Economics, Policy on Macroeconomic Variables, by H.P.B. Moshi and A.A.L.
- Aksnes, D. W., & Sivertsen, G. (2019). A criteria-based assessment of the coverage of Scopus and web of science. *Journal of Data and Information Science*, 4(1), 1–21. https://doi.org/10.2478/jdis-2019-0001
- Al Farooque, O., Buachoom, W., & Hoang, N. (2019). Interactive effects of executive compensation, firm performance and corporate governance: Evidence from an Asian market. *Asia Pacific Journal of Management*, *36*, 1111-1164.
- Alge, B. J., Ballinger, G. A., Tangirala, S., & Oakley, J. L. (2006). Information privacy in organizations: Empowering creative and extra role performance. *Journal of applied psychology*, *91*(1), 221.

- Aliakbari Nouri, F., Shafiei Nikabadi, M., & Olfat, L. (2019). Developing the framework of sustainable service supply chain balanced scorecard (SSSC BSC). *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management*, *68*(1), 148-170. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-04-2018-0149
- Allen, N. J., & Meyer, J. P. (1996). Affective, continuance, and normative commitment to the organization: An examination of construct validity. *Journal of vocational behavior*, 49(3), 252-276.
- Alsyouf, I. (2006). Measuring maintenance performance using a balanced scorecard approach. *Journal of Quality in Maintenance Engineering*,12(2),133-149. https://doi.org/10.1108/13552510610667165
- Alvarez Jaramillo, J., Zartha Sossa, J. W., & Orozco Mendoza, G. L. (2019). Barriers to sustainability for small and medium enterprises in the framework of sustainable development – Literature review. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 28(4), 512-524. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.2261
- Alvarez, S.A., & Barney, J.B., (2007). Discovery and creation: alternative theories of entrepreneurial action. *Strategy and Entrepreneurship Journal*, 1(1), 11-26.
- Aly, A., & Mansour, M. (2017). Evaluating the sustainable performance of corporate boards: The balanced scorecard approach. *Managerial Auditing Journal*, 32(2), 167–195. https://doi.org/10.1108/MAJ-04-2016-1358
- Amabile, T. M., Schatzel, E. A., Moneta, G. B., & Kramer, S. J. (2004). Leader behaviors and the work environment for creativity: perceived leader Support. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 15, 5-32.
- An, Z.P. Research on the Mechanism of Independent Innovation Ability of Industrial Enterprises [D]. Harbin: Harbin Engineering University, 2007.
- Androniceanu, A. (2019). Social Responsibility, an Essential Strategic Option for a Sustainable Development in the Field of Bio-Economy. *Amfiteatru Econ*, 21, 503-519.
- Asiaei, K., & Bontis, N. (2019). Using a balanced scorecard to manage corporate social responsibility. *Knowledge and Process Management*, 26(4), 371-379. https://doi.org/10.1002/kpm.1616

- Babkin, A. V., Lipatnikov, V. S., & Muraveva, S. V. (2015). Assessing the impact of innovation strategies and R&D costs on the performance of IT companies. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 207, 749-758.
- Bandura, A. (2000). Self-efficacy: The foundation of agency. Control of human
 behavior, mental processes, and consciousness: Essays in honor of the 60th
 birthday of August Flammer, 16.
- Bartlett, J. E., Kotrlik, J. W. & Higgins, C. C. (2001). Organizational research: determining appropriate sample size in survey research. *Learning and Performance Journal*, 19(2), 43-50.
- Basias, N., & Pollalis, Y. (2018). Quantitative and qualitative research in business & technology: Justifying a suitable research methodology. *Review of Integrative Business and Economics Research*, 7, 91-105.
- Bass, B. M. (1985). Leadership: Good, better, best. *Organizational dynamics*, 13(3), 26-40.
- Bass, B. M., & Avolio, B. J. (1994). Improving organizational effectiveness through transformational leadership. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage. Covey (1991)
- Bass, B.M. and Avolio, B.J. (1993), "Transformational leadership and organisational culture", *Public Administration Quarterly*, 17(1), 112-121.
- Baumgartner, R. J. (2014). Managing corporate sustainability and CSR: A conceptual framework combining values, strategies and instruments contributing to sustainable development. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 21(5), 258-271. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.1336
- Bawa, Sumninder and Chattha, Samiya (2013) *Financial Performance of Life Insurers in Indian Insurance Industry*, Pacific Business Review International.
- Bhattacharya, A., Mohapatra, P., Kumar, V., Dey, P. K., Brady, M., Tiwari, M. K., & Nudurupati, S. S. (2014). Green supply chain performance measurement using fuzzy ANP-based balanced scorecard: A collaborative decision-making approach. *Production Planning & Control, 25*(8), 698-714.
- Blackhurst, J., Dunn, K. S., & Craighead, C. W. (2011). An empirically derived framework of global supply resiliency. *Journal of business logistics*, 32(4), 374-391.

- Boal, K. B., & Hooijberg, R. (2000). Strategic leadership research: Moving on. *The Leadership Quarterly*, *11*(4), 515-549.
- Bono, J. E., & Ilies, R. (2006). Charisma, positive emotions and mood contagion. *The Leadership Quarterly*, *17*(4), 317-334.
- Brower, T. (2019). How Optimism Can Help Your Career: 4 Simple Steps. Forbes.
- Bukh, P. N., & Malmi, T. (2005). Re-examining the cause-and-effect principle of the balanced scorecard. In S. Jönsson & J. Mouritsen, (Eds.), Accounting in Scandinavia–The northern lights (pp. 87-113). Malmö: Liber & Copenhagen Business School Press.
- Carlyle, T. (1888), "On heroes, hero-worship and the heroic", in Fredrick, A., History, Stokes & Brother, New York, NY, p. 2.
- Carr, C. 1992, 'Planning Priorities for Empowered Teams', *Journal of Business Strategy*, *13*(5), 43
- Carroll, A.B. (1979). Three-Dimensional Conceptual Model of Corporate Performance. *Academy of Management Review*, *4* (4), 497-505.
- Carver, C. S., Scheier, M. F., & Segerstrom, S. C. (2010). Optimism. Clinical psychology review, 30(7), 879-889.
- Ch'ng, P. C., Cheah, J., & Amran, A. (2021). Eco-innovation practices and sustainable business performance: The moderating effect of market turbulence in the Malaysian technology industry. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 283, 124556.
- Ch'ng, P. C., Cheah, J., & Amran, A. (2021). Eco-innovation practices and sustainable business performance: The moderating effect of market turbulence in the Malaysian technology industry. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 283, 124556.
- Chaker, F., Bonsu, S. K., El Ghaib, M. K., & Vazquez-Brust, D. (2020). Isn't it time we transitioned to integrated sustainability? De-codifying the hard-soft divide from a systems-theoretic perspective. *Sustainability Accounting, Management and Policy Journal*, 12(2), 385-409.
- Chalmeta, R., & Palomero, S. (2011). Methodological proposal for business sustainability management by means of the balanced scorecard. *Journal of the Operational Research Society*, 62(7), 1344-1356.

- Chandra, D., & Kumar, D. (2020). Evaluating the effect of key performance indicators of vaccine supply chain on sustainable development of mission indradhanush:
 A structural equation modeling approach. *Omega*, *101*, 102258. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.omega.2020.102258
- Chartrand, T. L., & Bargh, J. A. (1999). The chameleon effect: The perception-behavior link and social interaction. *Journal of personality and social psychology*, *76*(6), 893.
- Chauvin, K. W., & Hirschey, M. (1993). Advertising, R&D expenditures and the market value of the firm. *Financial management*, 128-140.
- Chen, Y. S., Lai, S. B., & Wen, C. T. (2006). The influence of green innovation performance on corporate advantage in Taiwan. *Journal of business ethics*, 67, 331-339.
- Chesbrough, H. W., (2010), Business model innovation: Opportunities and barriers. *Long Range Planning*, 43, 354-363.
- Chida, Y., & Hamer, M. (2008). Chronic psychosocial factors and acute physiological responses to laboratory-induced stress in healthy populations: a quantitative review of 30 years of investigations. *Psychological bulletin*, 134(6), 829.
- Chou, C. P., & Bentler, P. M. (1995). Estimates and tests in structural equation modeling.
- Christensen C. M. (1997). The Innovator's Dilemma: When new technologies cause great firms to fail. Boston, MA: Harvard Business School Press, 1997.
- Clayton, H. (2012), "The changing leadership landscape", *Strategic HR Review*, *11*(2), 78-83.
- Cohen, W. M., & Levinthal, D. A. (1990). Absorptive capacity: A new perspective on learning and innovation. *Administrative science quarterly*, 35(1), 128-152.
- Colbert, A. E., Kristof-Brown, A. L., Bradley, B. H., & Barrick, M. R. (2008). manager transformational leadership: The role of goal importance congruence in top management teams. *Academy of management journal*, 51(1), 81-96.
- Collins, J. C., & Collins, J. (2006). *Good to great and the social sectors: A monograph to accompany good to great*. Random House.

- Creswell, J. W. (2002). *Educational research: Planning, conducting, and evaluating quantitative*. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall.
- Crossan, M. M., & Apaydin, M. (2010). A multi-dimensional framework of organizational innovation: A systematic review of the literature. *Journal of management studies*, 47(6), 1154-1191.
- Cui, H., & Mak, Y. T. (2002). The relationship between managerial ownership and firm performance in high R&D firms. Journal of corporate finance, 8(4), 313-336.
- Dahlsrud, A. (2008). How Corporate Social Responsibility is Defined: an Analysis of 37 Definitions. Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management, 13(November 2006), 1-13.
- Damanpour, F. (2014), "Footnotes to research on management innovation" *Organization Studies*, *35*(9), 1265-1285
- Damanpour, F., Walker, R.M. and Avellaneda, C.N. (2009), "Combinative effects of innovation types and organizational performance: a longitudinal study of service organizations", Journal of Management Studies. 46(4), 650-675.
- Davis, S., & Albright, T. (2004). An investigation of the effect of balanced scorecard implementation on financial performance. *Management Accounting Research*, 15(2), 135-153.
- De Andrade Guerra, J., Garcia, J., de Andrade Lima, M., Barbosa, S., Heerdt, M., & Berchin, I. (2018). A proposal of a balanced scorecard for an environmental education program at universities. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 172, 1674-1690.
- De Felice, F., & Petrillo, A. (2013). Key success factors for organizational innovation in the fashion industry. *International Journal of Engineering Business Management*, 5, 5-27.
- De Geuser, F., Mooraj, S., & Oyon, D. (2009). Does the balanced scorecard add value? Empirical evidence on its effect on performance. *European Accounting Review*, 18(1), 93-122.

- De Villiers, C., Rouse, P., & Kerr, J. (2016). A new conceptual model of influences driving sustainability based on case evidence of the integration of corporate sustainability management control and reporting. *Journal of Cleaner Production, 136*, 78-85.
- Dechow, P. M., & Sloan, R. G. (1991). Executive incentives and the horizon problem:
 An empirical investigation. *Journal of accounting and Economics*, *14*(1), 51-89.
- Delbufalo, E. (2012). Outcomes of inter-organizational trust in supply chain relationships: A systematic literature review and a meta-analysis of the empirical evidence. *Supply Chain Management: An International Journal*, *17*(4), 377-402.
- Demsetz, H. (1988). The theory of the firm revisited. *The journal of law, economics, and organization*, 4(1), 141-161.
- Deng, D., Wen, S., Chen, F. H., & Lin, S. L. (2018). A hybrid multiple criteria decision making model of sustainability performance evaluation for Taiwanese certified public accountant firms. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 180, 603-616.
- Deng, Z., Lev, B., & Narin, F. (1999). Science and technology as predictors of stock performance. *Financial Analysts Journal*, 55(3), 20-32.
- Denicolai, S., Zucchella A., & Moretti, F. (2018). Not so similar after all: Exploring the diversity of strategic orientations for innovation, *International Journal of Innovation Management*, 22(04), 1850036
- Dianna (2006) Teams: Teamwork and Teambuilding, Prentice Hall, New York. F
- Dias-Sardinha, I. D., Reijnders, L., & Antunes, P. (2011). Using corporate social responsibility benchmarking framework to identify and assess corporate social responsibility trends of real estate companies owning and developing shopping centres. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 19(13), 1486-1493.
- Dias-Sardinha, I., & Reijnders, L. (2005). Evaluating environmental and social performance of large Portuguese companies: A balanced scorecard approach. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 14(2), 73-91. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.421

Dobni, C. B. (2006). The innovation blueprint. *Business Horizons*, 49(4), 329-339.

- Dogan E. (2017). A strategic approach to innovation. *Journal of Management, Marketing and Logistics -JMML.4*(3), 290-300
- Dougherty, D., & Bowman, E. H. (1995). The effects of organizational downsizing on product innovation. **California Management Review**, **37**(4), 28-44.
- Doyle, W. J., Gentile, D. A., & Cohen, S. (2006). Emotional style, nasal cytokines, and illness expression after experimental rhinovirus exposure. *Brain, Behavior, and Immunity*, 20(2), 175-181.
- Ekvall, G. (1991). The organizational culture of idea-management: A creative climate for the management of ideas. *Managing innovation*, 73-79.
- Elmes, M. B., & Kasouf, C. J. (1995). Knowledge workers and organizational learning: Narratives from biotechnology. *Management Learning*, 26(4), 403-422.
- Emiton. (1998). Innovation Strategy of Knowledge Economy: The Awakening of Wisdom, Beijing: Xinhua Press.
- Eng, T.-Y. and Okten, D. (2011), "Exploring a dynamic framework of innovative capability: a theoretical integration of technological and marketing capabilities", *Technology Analysis & Strategic Management*, 23(9), 1001-101
- Epstein, M. J., & Roy, M. J. (2001). Sustainability in action: Identifying and measuring the key performance drivers. *Long Range Planning*, *34*(5), 585-604.
- Epstein, M. J., & Wisner, P. S. (2001). Using a balanced scorecard to implement sustainability. *Environmental Quality Management*, 11(2), 1-10. https://doi.org/10.1002/tqem.1300
- Everly, G. S., Smith, K. J., & Lobo, R. (2013). Resilient leadership and the organizational culture of resilience: construct validation. *International Journal of Emergency Mental Health and Human Resilience*, 15(2), 123-128.
- Fatima, T., & Elbanna, S. (2020). Balanced scorecard in the hospitality and tourism industry: Past, present and future. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 91, 102656. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijhm.2020.102656

- Faustenhammer, A. and Gössler, M. (2011), "Preparing for the next crisis: what can organisations do to prepare managers for an uncertain future?", *Business Strategy Series*, 12(2), 51-55.
- Ferreira, L. M. D. F., Silva, C., & Azevedo, S. G. (2016). An environmental balanced scorecard for supply chain performance measurement (Env_BSC_4_SCPM). *Benchmarking: An International Journal, 23*(6), 1398-1422.
- Field, S.W. & Swift, K.G. 1996, *Effecting a Quality Change: An Engineering Approach*, Arnold, London.
- Figge, F., Hahn, T., Schaltegger, S., & Wagner, M. (2002). The sustainability balanced scorecard - linking sustainability management to business strategy. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 11(5), 269-284. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.339
- Finkelstein, S., & Hambrick, D. C. (1990). Top-management-team tenure and organizational outcomes: The moderating role of managerial discretion. *Administrative science quarterly*, 484-503.
- Frank, T., & Armandi, B.R. (1981). A need hierarchy framework for assign Corporate Social Responsibility. *Academy of Management Review*, 6(1), 21-28.
- Fredrickson, B. L. (2001). The role of positive emotions in positive psychology: The broaden-and-build theory of positive emotions. *American Psychologist*,56(3), 218-226.
- Gallego, J., Rubalcaba, L. and Hipp, C. (2013), "Organizational innovation in small European firms: a multidimensional approach", International Small Business Journal, 31(5), 563-579
- García-Manjón, J. V., & Romero-Merino, M. E. (2012). Research, development, and firm growth. Empirical evidence from European top R&D spending firms. *Research Policy*, 41(6), 1084-1092.
- Gefen, D. (2000). Structural equation modeling techniques and regression: Guidelines for research practice[J]. *Communications of the Association for Information Systems*, 33(4), 1-77.

- Geroski, P. (1998). Thinking creatively about your market: crisps, perfume and business strategy. *Business Strategy Review 9*(2), 1-10
- Gill, J., Johnson, P. & Clark, M. (2010). *Research Methods for Managers*. Thousand Oaks, USA: SAGE Publications.
- Gladwell, M. (2000), *The Tipping Point: How Little Things can Make a Big Difference*, Back Bay Books, New York, NY.
- Gogtay, N. J., & Thatte, U. M. (2017). Principles of correlation analysis. *Journal of the Association of Physicians of India*, 65(3), 78-81.
- Golding, R. (Ed.). (2018). *The Music Profession in Britain, 1780-1920: New Perspectives on Status and Identity*. Routledge.
- Gond, J. P., Grubnic, S., Herzig, C., & Moon, J. (2012). Configuring management control system: Theorizing the integration of strategy and sustainability.
 Management Accounting Research, 23(3), 205-223.
- Goschke, T. (2003). Voluntary action and cognitive control from a cognitive neuroscience perspective. *Voluntary action: Brains, minds, and sociality*, 49-85.
- Gottfredson, M., & Aspinall, K. (2005). Innovation versus complexity. Make Sure All Your Products Are Profitable, 25.
- Greve H., Hitt M. A., Ireland R. D & Camp M. (2002). Strategic entrepreneurship; creating a new mindset, *Administrative Science Quarterly* 48(2), 348
- Guan, Y.M., Lu, J.J., & Shen, L.F. (2019). manager's green transformational leadership and green innovation performance: the mediation of corporate environmental ethics and corporate green behavior. *Accounting Research*, 6, 59-66.
- Guix, M., & Font, X. (2020). The materiality balanced scorecard: A framework for stakeholder-led integration of sustainable hospitality management and reporting. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 91, 102634. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijhm.2020.102634
- Gunday, G., Ulusoy, G., Kilic, K., & Alpkan, L. (2011). Effects of innovation types on firm performance. *International Journal of production economics*, 133(2), 662-676.

- Haghighi, S. M., Torabi, S. A., & Ghasemi, R. (2016). An integrated approach for performance evaluation in sustainable supply chain networks (with a case study). *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 137, 579-597.
- Hahn, T., & Figge, F. (2018). Why architecture does not matter: On the fallacy of sustainability balanced scorecards. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 150, 919-935.
- Han, I., & Chuang, C. M. (2011). The impacts of R&D investment on company performance: US vs. Taiwanese technology-intensive industry. *Review of Pacific Basin Financial Markets and Policies*, 14(01), 171-194.
- Han, Q. (2003). Strategic Quantitative Research on the Value Creation of Human Capital in Enterprises, Ph.D. Dissertation of Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
- Hansen, E. G., & Schaltegger, S. (2016). The sustainability balanced scorecard: A systematic review of architectures. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 133(2), 193-221.
- Hansen, E. G., & Schaltegger, S. (2018). Sustainability balanced scorecards and their architectures: Irrelevant or misunderstood? *Journal of Business Ethics*, 150, 937-952. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-017-3531-5
- Hansen, E. G., Sextl, M., & Reichwald, R. (2010). Managing strategic alliances through a community-enabled balanced scorecard: The case of Merck ltd, Thailand.
 Business Strategy and the Environment, 19(6), 387-399.
- Haseeb, M., Hussain, H. I., Kot, S., Androniceanu, A., & Jermsittiparsert, K. (2019).
 Role of social and technological challenges in achieving a sustainable competitive advantage and sustainable business performance. *Sustainability*, *11*(14), 3811.
- Hazy, T. E., Frank, M. J., & O'Reilly, R. C. (2006). Banishing the homunculus: making working memory work. *Neuroscience*, 139(1), 105-118.
- Heap, N. 1996, 'Building the Organizational Team', Industrial and Commercial *Training*, *28*(3), 3-7.
- Hesse-Biber, S. (2010). Qualitative approaches to mixed methods practice. *Qualitative inquiry*, *16*(6), 455-468.

- Hoffer Gittell, J. (2002). Coordinating mechanisms in care provider groups: Relational coordination as a mediator and input uncertainty as a moderator of performance effects. *Management science*, 48(11), 1408-1426.
- Holcomb, T. R., & Hitt, M. A. (2007). Toward a model of strategic outsourcing. *Journal of operations management*, 25(2), 464-481.
- Hommel, B. (2015). Between persistence and flexibility: The Yin and Yang of action control. *In Advances in motivation science*, 2, 33-67.
- Howell, J. M., & Higgins, C. A. (1990). Champions of technological innovation. *Administrative science quarterly*, 317-341.
- Hoyle, R. H. (Ed.). (1995). Structural equation modeling: Concepts, issues, and *applications*. Sage.
- Hsu, C., Chang, A., & Luo, W. (2017). Identifying key performance factors for sustainability development of SMEs – Integrating QFD and fuzzy MADM methods. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 161, 629-645.
- Huang, T., Pepper, M., & Bowrey, G. (2014). Implementing a sustainability balanced scorecard to contribute to the process of organisational legitimacy assessment. Australasian Accounting, *Business and Finance Journal*, 8(2), 15-34.
- Huang, W. C., Lai, C. C., & Chen, P. H. (2017). International R&D funding and patent collateral in an R&D-based growth model. *International Review of Economics & Finance*, 51, 545-561.
- Hubbard, G. (2009). Measuring organizational performance: Beyond the triple bottom line. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 18(3), 177-191.
- Iplik F. N., Topsakal Y. & Dogan O. (2014). Strategic innovation: An empirical study on hotel firms operating in Antalya Region, Advances in Hospitality and Tourism Research (AHTR), An International Journal of Akdeniz University Tourism Faculty 2(1), 16-29
- Islam, M., Hossain, A. T., & Mia, L. (2018). Role of strategic alliance and innovation on organizational sustainability. *Benchmarking: An International Journal*, 25(5), 1581-1596.

- Jia, J., & Wei, Y.Q. (2019). Research on the relationship between product market competition, customer relationship governance and enterprise innovation based on the dual consideration of industry competition and enterprise market position. *Soft Science*, 33(12), 66-71.
- Johannessen, J. A., Dolva, J. O., & Olsen, B. (1997). Organizing innovation: integrating knowledge systems. *European Planning Studies*, 5(3), 331-349.
- Journeault, M. (2016). The integrated scorecard in support of corporate sustainability strategies. Journal of Environmental Management, 182, 214-229.
- Judd, E., & McFarlane, B. (1986). Chinese Marxism in Flux 1978-84: Essays on Epistemology, Ideology and Political Economy (Book Review). *Journal of Contemporary Asia*, 16(4), 540.
- Judge, T. A., & Piccolo, R. F. (2004). Transformational and transactional leadership: a meta-analytic test of their relative validity. *Journal of applied psychology*, 89(5), 755.
- Jung, D. I., Chow, C., & Wu, A. (2003). The role of transformational leadership in enhancing organizational innovation: Hypotheses and some preliminary findings. *The leadership quarterly*, 14(4-5), 525-544.
- Kalay, F., & Lynn G. S., (2015), The impact of strategic innovation management practices on firm innovation performance, *Research journal of business management*, 2(3), 412-429
- Kaliyadan, F., & Kulkarni, V. (2019). Types of variables, descriptive statistics, and sample size. Indian dermatology online journal, 10(1), 82.
- Kang, J., Chiang, C., Huangthanapan, K., & Downing, S. (2015). Corporate social responsibility and sustainability balanced scorecard: The case study of familyowned hotels. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 48, 124-134. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijhm.2015.05.001
- Kanter, R. M. (1983). Frontiers for strategic human resource planning and management. *Human Resource Management*, 22(1-2), 9-21.
- Kaplan, R. S., & Norton, D. P. (1992). The balanced scorecard: Measures that drive performance. *Harvard Business Review*, 70(1), 71-79.

- Kaplan, R. S., & Norton, D. P. (1996). Linking the balanced scorecard to strategy. *California Management Review*, 39(1), 53-79.
- Kaplan, R. S., & Norton, D. P. (2001). Transforming the balanced scorecard from performance measurement to strategic management: Part I. *Accounting Horizons*, 15(1), 87-104.
- Kaplan, R. S., & Norton, D. P. (2004). The strategy map: guide to aligning intangible assets. *Strategy & Leadership*, 32(5), 10-17.
- Kark, R., & Shamir, B. (2002, August). THE INFLUENCE OF TRANSFORMATIONAL LEADERSHIP ON FOLLOWERS'RELATIONAL VERSUS COLLECTIVE SELF-CONCEPT. In Academy of management proceedings (Vol. 2002, No. 1, pp. D1-D6). Briarcliff Manor, NY 10510: Academy of Management.
- Kark, R., Shamir, B., & Chen, G. (2003). The two faces of transformational leadership: empowerment and dependency. *Journal of applied psychology*, 88(2), 246.
- Katzenbach, J.R. & Smith, D.K. 1993, The Wisdom of Teams, McKinsey & Company, New York.
- Keller, R. T. (1992). Transformational leadership and the performance of research and development project groups. *Journal of management*, 18(3), 489-501.
- Kelm, K. M., Narayanan, V. K., & Pinches, G. E. (1995). Shareholder value creation during R&D innovation and commercialization stages. *Academy of management Journal*, 38(3), 770-786.
- Kerr, J., Rouse, P., & de Villiers, C. (2015). Sustainability reporting integrated into management control systems. *Pacific Accounting Review*, 27(2), 189–207. https://doi.org/10.1108/PAR-08-2012-0034
- Keupp, M. M., Palmié, M., & Gassmann, O. (2011). The strategic management of innovation: A systematic review and paths for future research. *International journal of management reviews*, 14(4), 367-390. doi:10.1111/j.1468-2370.2011.00321.x
- Khalid, S., Beattie, C., Sands, J., & Hampson, V. (2019). Incorporating the environmental dimension into the balanced scorecard. Meditari Accountancy Research, 27(4), 652-674.

Kim, Y. H., Barber, N., & Kim, D. K. (2019). Sustainability research in the hotel industry: Past, present, and future. *Journal of Hospitality Marketing & Management*, 28(5), 576-620. https://doi.org/10.1080/19368623.2019.1533907

Kirkman, B.L. & Shapiro, D.L. 1997, 'The Impact of Cultural Values on Employee Resistance to Teams: Toward a Model of Globalised Self-Managing WorkTeam Effectiveness', *Academy of Management Review*, 22(3), 730-757

- Kochhar, R., & David, P. (1996). Institutional investors and firm innovation: A test of competing hypotheses. *Strategic management journal*, 17(1), 73-84.
- Kothari, C. R. (2004). Research methodology: Methods and techniques. New Age International.
- Kruger, J., & Dunning, D. (1999). Unskilled and unaware of it: How difficulties in recognizing one's own incompetence led to inflated self-assessments. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 77, 1121-1134
- Küçükbay, F., & Sürücü, E. (2019). Corporate sustainability performance measurement based on a new multicriteria sorting method. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 26(3), 664–680. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.1711
- Labucay, I. (2015). Diversity management and performance: Paving the way for a revised business case. *European Journal of International Management*, 9(4), 425-441. https://doi.org/10.1504/EJIM.2015.070228
- Lai, A. (2011), "*Transformational-transactional leadership theory*", AHS Capstone Projects Paper No. 17.
- Länsiluoto, A., & Järvenpää, M. (2010). Greening the balanced scorecard. *Business Horizons*, *53*(4), 385-395. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bushor.2010.03.003

Larson, A. (1968), *The President Nobody Knew*, Popular Library, New York, NY.

Lea, B. R., Yu, W. B., & Min, H. (2018). Data visualization for assessing the biofuel commercialization potential within the business intelligence framework. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 188, 921-941. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2018.02.288

- Lee, J. M., Joo, S. H., & Kim, Y. (2018). The complementary effect of intellectual property protection mechanisms on product innovation performance. *R&D Management*, 48(3), 320-330.
- Lee, J. N., & Kim, Y. G. (1999). Effect of partnership quality on IS outsourcing success: conceptual framework and empirical validation. *Journal of Management information systems*, 15(4), 29-61.
- Lee, P. M., & O'neill, H. M. (2003). Ownership structures and R&D investments of US and Japanese firms: Agency and stewardship perspectives. *Academy of management Journal*, 46(2), 212-225.
- Lee, W. E., & Hageman, A. M. (2018). Talk the talk or walk the walk? An examination of sustainability accounting implementation. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 152(3), 725-739. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-016-3282-8
- León-Soriano, R., Jesús Muñoz-Torres, M., & Chalmeta-Rosaleñ, R. (2010). Methodology for sustainability strategic planning and management. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 110(2), 249-268. https://doi.org/10.1108/02635571011020331
- Lewellen, W., Loderer, C., & Martin, K. (1987). Executive compensation and executive incentive problems: An empirical analysis. *Journal of accounting and economics*, 9(3), 287-310.
- Lewellen, W., Loderer, C., & Martin, K. (1987). Executive compensation and executive incentive problems: An empirical analysis. *Journal of accounting and economics*, 9(3), 287-310.
- Lewellen, W., Loderer, C., & Martin, K. (1987). Executive compensation and executive incentive problems: An empirical analysis. *Journal of accounting and economics*, 9(3), 287-310.
- Li, S.Q. (2019). The impact of management equity incentive on enterprise innovation performance. *Cooperative economy and technology*, *8*, 140-141.
- Li, X.J. (2013). Marketing innovation of transforming transformational leadership into performance in new enterprises under the background of green entrepreneurship orientation: theoretical model and China's empirical research. *Mathematical Statistics and Management*, 32(04), 595-607.

- Lin, M. H., Hu, J., Tseng, M. L., Chiu, A. S., & Lin, C. (2016). Sustainable development in technological and vocational higher education: Balanced scorecard measures with uncertainty. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 120, 1-12. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2015.12.054
- Loewen, S., & Gass, S. M. (2009). Research timeline: The use of statistics in L2 acquisition research. *Language Teaching*, 42(2), 181–196.
- Lord, R. G., & Brown, D. J. (2001). Leadership, values, and subordinate selfconcepts. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 12(2), 133-152.
- Lorinkova, N. M., Pearsall, M. J., & Sims Jr, H. P. (2013). Examining the differential longitudinal performance of directive versus empowering leadership in teams. *Academy of Management Journal*, 56(2), 573-596.
- Lourenço, S. M. (2016). Monetary incentives, feedback, and recognition Complements or substitutes? Evidence from a field experiment in a retail services company. *The Accounting Review*, 91(1), 279-297. <u>https://doi.org/10.2308/accr-51148</u>
- Lu, M., Hsu, C., Liou, J., & Lo, H. (2018). A hybrid MCDM and sustainabilitybalanced scorecard model to establish sustainable performance evaluation for international airports. *Journal of Air Transport Management*, 71, 9-19. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jairtraman.2018.05.008
- Lueg, R., & Radlach, R. (2016). Managing sustainable development with management control systems: A literature review. *European Management Journal*, 34(2), 158–171. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.emj.2015.11.005
- Lumpkin, G. T., & Dess, G. G. (1996). Clarifying the entrepreneurial orientation construct and linking it to performance. *Academy of management Review*, 21(1), 135-172.
- Lynn, P. (2019). The advantage and disadvantage of implicitly stratified sampling. Methods, data, analyses: *a journal for quantitative methods and survey methodology (mda)*, 13(2), 253-266.
- Maes, S., & Schlosser, M. (1987). The roles of cognition and coping in health behavior outcomes of asthmatic patients. *Current Psychological Research & Reviews*, 6(1), 79-90.

 Malmi, T., & Brown, D. (2008). Management control systems as a package.
 Opportunities, challenges and research directions. *Management Accounting Research, 19*(4), 287-300. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mar.2008.09.003

Malviya, R. K., & Kant, R. (2019). Developing integrated framework to measure performance of green supply chain management: A comparative case analysis.
Benchmarking: *An International Journal*, *27*(2), 634-665.
https://doi.org/10.1108/BIJ-01-2019-0016

Management, 25(4), 508–522.

- Marsland, A. L., Cohen, S., Rabin, B. S., & Manuck, S. B. (2006). Trait positive affect and antibody response to hepatitis B vaccination. *Brain, behavior, and immunity*, 20(3), 261-269.
- Martin, S. L., Liao, H., & Campbell, E. M. (2013). Directive versus empowering leadership: A field experiment comparing impacts on task proficiency and proactivity. *Academy of Management Journal*, 56(5), 1372-1395.
- Martins, E. C., & Terblanche, F. (2003). Building organisational culture that stimulates creativity and innovation. *European journal of innovation management*, 6(1), 64-74.
- Matthews, K. A., Raikkonen, K., Sutton-Tyrrell, K., & Kuller, L. H. (2004). Optimistic attitudes protect against progression of carotid atherosclerosis in healthy middle-aged women. Psychosomatic Medicine, 66, 640-644

mauritian small manufacturing firms. Int. Rev. Bus. Res., 2(2): 45-56.

- McClelland, G. H., & Judd, C. M. (1993). Statistical difficulties of detecting interactions and moderator effects. *Psychological bulletin*, 114(2), 376.
- McGrath, G. R., (2010). Business Models: A Discovery Driven Approach. *Long Range Planning*, 43, 247-261
- Mendes, P., Santos, A. C., Perna, F., & Teixeira, M. R. (2012). The balanced scorecard as an integrated model applied to the Portuguese public service: A case study in the waste sector. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 24, 20-29. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2011.11.007

- Metrick, A., & Yasuda, A. (2021). *Venture capital and the finance of innovation*. John Wiley & Sons.
- Milkovich, G. T., Newman, J. M., & Milkovich, C. (2014). *Compensation*. Nova Iorque: McGraw-Hill/Irwin.
- Mio, C., Panfilo, S., & Blundo, B. (2020). Sustainable development goals and the strategic role of business: A systematic literature review. *Business Strategy* and the Environment, 29(8), 3220–3245. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.2568
- Möller, A., & Schaltegger, S. (2005). The sustainability balanced scorecard as a framework for eco-efficiency analysis. *Journal of Industrial Ecology*, 9(4), 73–83. https://doi.org/10.1162/108819805775247927
- Mudambi, R., & Swift, T. (2014). Knowing when to leap: Transitioning between exploitative and explorative R&D. *Strategic Management Journal*, 35(1), 126-145.
- Mudambi, R., & Swift, T. (2014). Knowing when to leap: Transitioning between exploitative and explorative R&D. *Strategic Management Journal*, 35(1), 126-145.
- Mumford, M. D., Connelly, S., & Gaddis, B. (2003). How creative leaders think: Experimental findings and cases. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 14(4-5), 411-432.
- Ngadiman, Eliyana, A. and Ratmawati, D. (2013), "Influence of transformational leadership and organisation climate to the work satisfaction, organisational commitment and organisational citizenship behaviour on the educational personnel of Sebelas Maret University, Surakarta", *Educational Research International, 1*(1), 41-66.
- Nicoletti, A. J., de Oliveira, M. C., & Helleno, A. L. (2018). Sustainability evaluation model for manufacturing systems based on the correlation between triple bottom line dimensions and balanced scorecard perspectives. *Journal of Cleaner Production, 190*, 84–93. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2018.04.136
- Norman, D. A., & Shallice, T. (1986). Attention to action. In Consciousness and selfregulation, 1-18.

- Norreklit, H. (2000). The balance on the balanced scorecard a critical analysis of some of its assumptions. *Management Accounting Research*, 11(1), 65-88. https://doi.org/10.1006/mare.1999.0121
- Pan, J., Lin, G., & Xiao, W. (2022). The heterogeneity of innovation, government R&D support and enterprise innovation performance. *Research in International Business and Finance*, 62, 101741.
- Parsons, V. L. (2014). Stratified sampling. Wiley StatsRef: *Statistics Reference Online*, 1-11.
- Peloza, J.; Shang, J. (2011). How can corporate social responsibility activities create value for stakeholders? A systematic review. Acad. *Mark. Sci. J.*, 39, 117-135.
- Pisano G. P., (2015). You need an innovation strategy. **Havard business review**, **93**(6), 44-54.
- Ponte, D., Pesci, C., & Camussone, P. F. (2017). Between mission and revenue: Measuring performance in a hybrid organization. *Managerial Auditing Journal*, 32(2), 196-214. https://doi.org/10.1108/MAJ-11-2015-1276
- Porter, M. (1980). Competitive strategy. New York, NY: Free Press.
- Porter, Michael E., Scott Stern & the Council on Competitiveness (1999). The New Challenge to America's Prosperity: Findings from the Innovation Index, COC: Washington.
- Rafuse, M.E., 1996. Working capital management: An urgent need to refocus. J. Manage. *Decis*, 34(2), 59-63.
- Rasmussen, H. N., & Wallio, S. C. (2008). The health benefits of optimism. *Positive Psychology*.
- Raut, R., Cheikhrouhou, N., & Kharat, M. (2017). Sustainability in the banking industry: A strategic multi-criterion analysis. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 26(4), 550-568. https://doi.org/10.1002/bse.1946
- Reefke, H., & Trocchi, M. (2013). Balanced scorecard for sustainable supply chains: Design and development guidelines. *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management*, *62*(8), 805-826. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJPPM-02-2013-0029

- Reivich, K., & Shatte, A. (2003). The resilience factor: Seven keys to finding your inner strength and overcoming life's hurdles. New York, NY: Broadway Books.
- Robb, D. (2000), "Building resilient organisations", OD Practitioner, 32(3), 27-32
- Russell, D. L., & Schneiderheinze, A. (2005). Understanding innovation in education using activity theory. *Journal of Educational Technology & Society*, 8(1), 38-53.
- Russo, S. J., Murrough, J. W., Han, M. H., Charney, D. S., & Nestler, E. J. (2012). Neurobiology of resilience. *Nature Neuroscience*, 15(11), 1475-1484
- Salama, A. (2005). A note on the impact of environmental performance on financial performance. *Structural Change and Economic Dynamics*, *16*(3), 413-421.
- Sanchez, A., Lago, A., Ferras, X., & Ribera, J. (2011), Innovation management practices, strategic adaptation, and business results: Evidence from the electronics industry. *Journal of Technology Management & Innovation*, 6(2), 14-38.
- Sands, J., Rae, K., & Gadenne, D. (2016). An empirical investigation on the links within a sustainability balanced scorecard (SBSC) framework and their impact on financial performance. *Accounting Research Journal*, 29(2), 154-178. https://doi.org/10.1108/ARJ-04-2015-0065
- Scavone, G. M. (2006). Challenges in internal environmental management reporting in Argentina. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 14(14), 1276-1285. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2005.08.011
- Schaltegger, S., & Wagner, M. (2006). Integrative management of sustainability performance, measurement and reporting. International Journal of Accounting, *Auditing and Performance Evaluation*, 3(1), 1–19. https://doi.org/10.1504/IJAAPE.2006.010098
- Schaltegger, S., Burritt, R., Zvezdov, D., Hörisch, J., & Tingey-Holyoak, J. (2015). Management roles and sustainability information. Exploring corporate practice. *Australian Accounting Review*, 25(4), 328-345. https://doi.org/10.1111/auar.12102

- ScholarHardjono, T., & de Klein, P. (2004). Introduction on the European corporate sustainability framework (ECSF). *Journal of Business Ethics*, 55(2), 99–113. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-004-1894-x
- Scott, S. G., & Bruce, R. A. (1994). Determinants of innovative behavior: A path model of individual innovation in the workplace. *Academy of management journal*, 37(3), 580-607.
- Searcy, C. (2012). Corporate sustainability performance measurement systems: A review and research agenda. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 107(3), 239-253. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-011-1038-z
- Sharma, P., Davcik, N. S., & Pillai, K. G. (2016). Product innovation as a mediator in the impact of R&D expenditure and brand equity on marketing performance. *Journal of Business Research*, 69(12), 5662-5669.
- Sheng & Che. (2016). Management power, executive compensation and corporate performance. *Journal of the Central University of Finance and Economics*, 5, 97-10.
- Shin, J., Taylor, M. S., & Seo, M. G. (2012). Resources for change: The relationships of organizational inducements and psychological resilience to employees' attitudes and behaviors toward organizational change. *Academy of Management journal*, 55(3), 727-748.
- Shropshire, C., & Hillman, A. (2007). A longitudinal study of significant change in stakeholder management. *Business and Society*, 46(1), 63-87.
- Silvestre, W. J., & Fonseca, A. (2020). Integrative sustainable intelligence: A holistic model to integrate corporate sustainability strategies. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 27(4), 1578-1590. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.1906
- Sislian, L., & Jaegler, A. (2020). ERP implementation effects on sustainable maritime balanced scorecard: Evidence from major European ports. *Supply Chain Forum: An International Journal, 21*(4), 237-245. https://doi.org/10.1080/16258312.2020.1754116

- Sivarajah, U., Kamal, M. M., Irani, Z., & Weerakkody, V. (2017). Critical analysis of big data challenges and analytical methods. *Journal of Business Research*, 70, 263-286. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2016.08.001
- Soderstrom, S. B., & Weber, K. (2020). Organizational structure from interaction: Evidence from corporate sustainability efforts. *Administrative Science Quarterly*, 65(1), 226-271.
- Southwick, S. M., Bonanno, G. A., Masten, A. S., Panter-Brick, C., & Yehuda, R. (2014). Resilience definitions, theory, and challenges: Interdisciplinary perspectives. *European Journal of Psychotraumatology*, 5, 1-14
- Southwick, S. M., Litz, B. T., Charney, D., & Friedman, M. J. (Eds.).
 (2011). *Resilience and mental health: Challenges across the lifespan*.
 Cambridge, England: Cambridge Press.
- Stata, R. (1989). Organizational learning-the key to management innovation. *MITSloan Management Review*, 30(3), 63.
- Taherdoost, H. (2016). Sampling methods in research methodology; how to choose a sampling technique for research. *How to Choose a Sampling Technique for Research*, 5(2), 18-27.
- Talbot, D., Raineri, N., & Daou, A. (2020). Implementation of sustainability management tools: The contribution of awareness, external pressures, and stakeholder consultation. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 28(1), 71-81. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.2033
- Teece D. J (2010). Business models, Business strategy and innovation. Journal of Long range planning. 43(2-3), 172-194
- Terrill, A.L., Ruiz, J.M. & Garofalo, J.P. (2010). Look on the bright side: do the benefits of optimism depend on the social nature of the stressor?. J Behav Med 33, 399-414.
- Trainor, A., & Graue, E. (Eds.). (2013). *Reviewing qualitative research in the social sciences*. Routledge.

Tranfield, D., Denyer, D., & Smart, P. (2003). Towards a methodology for developing evidence-informed management knowledge by means of systematic review. *British Journal of Management*, 14, 207-222. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-8551.00375

Truman, H.S. (1958), Memoirs, Doubleday, New York, NY.

- Tsai, F. M., Bui, T. D., Tseng, M. L., Wu, K. J., & Chiu, A. S. (2020). A performance assessment approach for integrated solid waste management using a sustainable balanced scorecard approach. Journal of Cleaner Production, 251, 119740.
- Tsai, W.-H., Chou, W.-C., & Hsu, W. (2009). The sustainability balanced scorecard as a framework for selecting socially responsible investment: An effective MCDM model. *Journal of the Operational Research Society*, 60(10), 1396-1410. https://doi.org/10.1057/jors.2008.91
- Tseng, M., Lim, M., & Wong, W. P. (2015). Sustainable supply chain management: A closed-loop network hierarchical approach. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 115(3), 436-461. https://doi.org/10.1108/IMDS-10-2014-0319
- Tung, A., Baird, K., & Schoch, H. P. (2011). Factors influencing the effectiveness of performance measurement systems. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 31(12), 1287–1310.
- van der Woerd, F., & van der Brink, T. (2004). Feasibility of a responsive business scorecard A pilot study. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 55(2), 173–186.
- Van Knippenberg, D., & Hogg, M. A. (2003). A social identity model of leadership effectiveness in organizations. *Research in organizational behavior*, 25, 243-295.
- van Marrewijk, M. (2004). A value based approach to organization types: Towards a coherent set of stakeholder-oriented management tools. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 55(2), 147-158. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-004-1898-6
- van Marrewijk, M., & Werre, M. (2003). Multiple levels of corporate sustainability. Journal of Business Ethics, 44, 107-119. https://doi.org/10.1023/A:1023383229086

- Vergos, K., & Christopoulos, A. G. (2014). Is the issuing of executive stock options a 'positive signal'for the market value of a firm?: the greek evidence. *International Journal of Corporate Finance and Accounting* (*IJCFA*), *I*(2), 22-32.
- Vieira, R., O'Dwyer, B., & Schneider, R. (2017). Aligning strategy and performance management systems: The case of the wind-farm industry. *Organization & Environment, 30*(1), 3-26. https://doi.org/10.1177/1086026615623058
- Vila, M., Costa, G., & Rovira, X. (2010). The creation and use of scorecards in tourism planning: A Spanish example. *Tourism Management*, 31(2), 232-239. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tourman.2009.02.015
- Voon, M.L., Lo, M.C., Ngui, K.S. and Ayob, N.B. (2011), "The influence of leadership styles on employees' job satisfaction in public sector organisations in Malaysia", International Journal of Business. *Management and Social Sciences*, 2(1), 24-32.
- Waldman, D. A., & Atwater, L. E. (1994). The nature of effective leadership and championing processes at different levels in a R&D hierarchy. *The Journal of High Technology Management Research*, 5(2), 233-245.
- Wang, G., In-Sue, O., Courtright, S.H. and Colbert, A.E. (2011), "Transformational leadership and performance across criteria and levels: a meta-analytic review of 25 years of research", *Group and Organizational Management*, 36(2), 223-270, DOI: 10.1177/1059601111401017
- Wang, L.J., Chen, M.D., & Pang, Y.Q. (2021). Research on the impact of manufacturing innovation and R&D on enterprise performance -- empirical analysis based on Hubei listed companies. *Science and Technology and Economy*, 3, 31-35.
- White, M. (2013), *Building A Resilient Organisational Culture*, UNC Executive Development.
- Wu, J., & Huang, J. (2004). Analysis of social capital theory. *Journal of Theory*, 5, 38-41.

- Wu, Y., Farrukh, M., Raza, A., Meng, F., & Alam, I. (2021). Framing the evolution of the corporate social responsibility and environmental management journal. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management, 28*(4), 1397-1411. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.2127
- Wudhikarn, R. (2016). An efficient resource allocation in strategic management using a novel hybrid method. *Management Decision*, 54(7), 1702-1731. https://doi.org/10.1108/MD-08-2015-0380
- Wynder, M. (2010). Chemico: Evaluating performance based on the balanced scorecard. *Journal of Accounting Education*, 28, 221-236. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jaccedu.2011.03.006
- Wynder, M., Wellner, K. U., & Reinhard, K. (2013). Rhetoric or reality? Do accounting education and experience increase weighting on environmental performance in a balanced scorecard? *Accounting Education*, 22(4), 366-381. https://doi.org/10.1080/09639284.2013.817802
- Xia, D., Yu, Q., Gao, Q., & Cheng, G. (2017). Sustainable technology selection decision-making model for enterprise in supply chain: Based on a modified strategic balanced scorecard. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 141, 1337-1348.
- Xia, Q.H. & Huang, Jian. (2019). Market competition, government resource allocation and enterprise innovation investment - Evidence of China's high-tech enterprises. *Economic Management*, 41(08), 5-20.
- Xiong, B.T. (2009). Economic development theory. China Social Science Press.
- Xu, M., Zhu, L.L., & Fang, Z. (2017). Financing constraints, R&D investment and SME performance. *Monthly Journal of Finance and Accounting*, 30, 37-43.
- Yang Y. Q., Wang, H.Y., Zhu, G.S. & Wu, G. S. (2012). What are the effective strategic orientations for new product success under different environments? An empirical study of Chinese businesses. *Journal of Product Innovation Management*, 29, 166-179.
- Yanine, F., Cordova, F. M., & Duran, C. (2020). The impact of dynamic balanced scorecard in knowledge-intensive organizations' business process management: A new approach evidenced by small and medium-size enterprises in Latin America. *Journal of Information Technology Management, 12*(2), 131-152.
- Yiannaki, S. M. (2012). A systemic risk management model for SMEs under financial crisis. *International Journal of Organizational Analysis*, 20(4), 406-422.
- Yuan, K. H., & Bentler, P. M. (2006). 10 Structural Equation Modeling. *Handbook of statistics*, *26*, 297-358.
- Yuhui, G. E., & Weizhong, Y. A. N. G. (2009). Developing Human Capital Capabilities of Top Management Team for CoPS Innovation. *Journal of Service Science* and Management, 2(03), 221.
- Yun, S., Faraj, S., & Sims Jr, H. P. (2005). Contingent leadership and effectiveness of trauma resuscitation teams. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 90(6), 1288. https://doi.org/10.1037/0021-9010.90.6.1288\
- Zaharna, R. S. (2016). Beyond the individualism-collectivism divide to relationalism: Explicating cultural assumptions in the concept of "relationships": Beyond the individualism-collectivism divide to relationalism. *Communication Theory*, 26(2), 190-211. https://doi.org/10.1111/comt.12058
- Zaharna, R. S. (2018). Global engagement: Culture and communication insights from public diplomacy. In Johnston, K. A., Taylor, M. (Eds.), The handbook of communication engagement (1st ed., pp. 313-330). Wiley-Blackwell.
- Zhao, H., & Li, N. (2015). Evaluating the performance of thermal power enterprises using sustainability balanced scorecard, fuzzy Delphic and hybrid multicriteria decision making approaches for sustainability. *Journal of Cleaner Production, 108*, 569- 582. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2015.07.141</u>
- Zhong, D.T., & Ren, H. (2021). Empirical analysis of factors affecting the performance of high-tech enterprises -- based on the full sample data of Shanghai. *China Science and Technology Forum*, (5), 90-98.

Zhou, J., Sawyer, L., & Safi, A. (2021). Institutional pressure and green product success: the role of green transformational leadership, green innovation, and green brand image. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 12, 704855.





APPENDIX A

Letter of Introduction for The Delivery Questionnaire



Dear respondent

I am a student of RMUTT University, Faculty of Business, in the Third year.

In our effort to investigate *the influence of resilient leadership on sustainable business performance through innovation – the moderating role of executive incentives,* I would like to kindly invite you to participate in a quick survey and answer to the best of your knowledge.

Your participation is voluntary, and your answer is anonymous; please do not sigh your name on this document. The answers will be analyzed as a group and not individually. Be assured, the answers will be kept confidential.

This survey will take approximately 10-15 minutes. Please answer the questions the best you can.

Thank you!	
Yours sincerely,	3. 6. 5. 5. 5.
ShuHua,Nan	E DE COLE
	<i>จะเท</i> ิดโนโลยีราชะ

I really appreciate your time and genuine feedback.

Directions: *Please indicate your answer for each of the following statements by placing the* " $\sqrt{}$ " *mark in the box of your answer.*

Part I: Demographic Factors

- 1. Are you currently working in a manufacturing enterprise in Jiangxi province in China?
 - □ Yes
 - □ No
- 2. Are you currently working in a senior executive position?

Yes
No

3. Gender:

Male
Female

4. Age:

30 - 35
36 - 40
41 - 45 🗾
46 - 50
51 - 55

5. Highest Education:

- □ Bachelor's degree
- □ Master's degree
- Doctoral Degree
- \Box Other.
- 6. Working experience:
 - $\Box \qquad 5 \text{ years or less}$
 - Between 6 to 10 years
 - Between 11 to 15 years
 - □ Over 15 years

- 7. Period working in the current company:
 - $\Box \qquad 5 \text{ years or less}$
 - Between 6 to 10 years
 - Between 11 to 15 years
 - □ Over 15 years
- 8. Resilient Leadership Assessment questions.

Please answer the following questions by circling the relevant number

1= Never, 5= Yes, always

What kind of leader do you see yourself as?

1	I am realistic optimism	1	2	3	4	5
2	I am cognition and flexibility	1	2	3	4	5
3	I am always inspired and team building.	1	2	3	4	5
4	I am a person with high Innovation capacity.	1	2	3	4	5
5	I always keep the good customer-supplier relationship	1	2	3	4	5



Part 2: Resilient Leadership

			Likert Scal	e	
Factors	Strongly Disagree	Disagree	Neutral	Agree	Strongly Agree
Realistic optimism (How	do you thi	nk leaders	can be opti	mistic?)	1
1.I think leaders should always balance out negative and positive things in stressful situations.					
2.I think leaders should always encourage their followers to explore opportunities instead of criticizing failure.			3 ⁴		
3.I think managers should always combine positive attitude with an honest evaluation of the challenges meet along the path.					
4.In my opinion, the leader should be attentive or appreciate their life in the now.					
5.As for me,The leader should be the ability to refute gloomy notions.			2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3		
Cognition and flexibility flexibility?)	(What do	you think	about Cog	nition and	
6.I think cognitive flexibility is important both on a micro and a macro scale in the workplace.					

7.I think Cognitive				
flexibility allows you to				
juggle multiple concepts				
at once and improve your				
cognitive function.				
8.I think cognition				
flexibility helps navigate				
from a task to another				
easily increasing	<u>A</u>			
efficiency.				
9In my	/ \			
opinion,Cognitive				
flexibility helps to achieve				
gradually.				
10.In my				
opinion,Cognitive				
flexibility helps to				
encourage for using		1		
creative problem-solving.	L ANTI MITTY	J.		
Inspiration and team	(What does Inspira	ition and te	am buildin	g do?)
-				0
building				
building 11.I think a good leader		C.		
building 11.I think a good leader encourages its team to				
building 11.I think a good leader encourages its team to respect trust and care for				
building 11.I think a good leader encourages its team to respect trust and care for each.				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildings				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activity				
building 11.I think a good leader encourages its team to respect trust and care for each. 12.I think team buildings are an important activity that motivates company's				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration and				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have the				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect of				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related to				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related tocollaboration.				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related tocollaboration.14.In my opinion				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related tocollaboration.14.In my opinionInspiration and teamhuilding on accenticity				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related tocollaboration.14.In my opinionInspiration and teambuilding are essential tomodify the prove line				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related tocollaboration.14.In my opinionInspiration and teambuilding are essential tomodify the prevailingheltering and with a state				
building11.I think a good leaderencourages its team torespect trust and care foreach.12.I think team buildingsare an important activitythat motivates company'sstaff.13.I think Inspiration andteam building have thepositive side-effect ofimproving skills related tocollaboration.14.In my opinionInspiration and teambuilding are essential tomodify the prevailingbehaviors and attitudes in				

					1
15.In my opinion					
Inspiration and team					
building are essential for					
organizational team					
development.					
Innovation capacity	(How do	companies	s tap Innov	vation capac	city?)
16.In my					
opinion ,Companies					
should always improve on		A			
their capabilities and		$\overline{\nabla}$			
resources.		/ \			
17.In my					
opinion, Companies					
should always explore and					
exploit opportunities for	位				
developing new products					
to meet market needs.		COLUMN COLUMN			
18.I think companies			1		
should always encourage	Printer Street		3		
customers to leave honest					
reviews.	JN ((
19.I think companies	33 30 (7		Nº CS		
should have a strategy,			G Inco		
cooperation, and culture			2D)		
as the characteristics of				0	
innovation capabilities.			NZO SYN		
20.I think companies	a su		SIPA	N	
should conduct a literature	XX	3	• <{{ رح		
study of the innovation			SILS.		
process.			N// S		
Customer supplier	(How to	improve C	ustomer si	upplier	
relationship	relationsh	ip?)			
21.In my	<i>ัท</i> ฏา	โลยีเร ^{ุกข})//		
opinion,Companies must	1016	6610			
always work to improve					
the relationship with their					
suppliers.					
22.I think Leadership					
should always work to					
create a win-win					
relationship with their					
suppliers.					

23.I think Customer			
supplier contract should			
clearly mention price,			
quantity, payment terms,			
delivery etc.			
24.I think Companies			
should continuously			
develop cost efficiency,			
efficacy, enabling			
technology, and greater			
competitiveness	/ \		
25.I think Companies			
should enhance customer-			
supplier interactions			
continuously.			

Part 3: Enterprise Innovation

			Likert Sca	le	
Factors	Strongly Disagree	Disagree	Neutral	Agree	Strongly Agree
Process innovation (Ho	w do you vi	ew Process	innovatio	n?)	
26.As for me,Management commitment is one of the most important success factors in enterprise innovation.			bing to		
27.In my opinion,Process innovation have a great contribution to sustainable business performance.	2813914	D)-9 โลยี่ราช	S-S-		
28.In my opinion,A company should constantly benchmark its processes to be more efficient.					

29.1 think Process					
innovation helps to change					
the structural work					
procedures, decrease					
costs, increase quality, and					
gain other benefits.					
30.In my opinion Process					
innovation helps to gain a					
competitive edge by		\wedge			
implementing solutions		†			
that minimize production					
or operating costs.					
Product/service innovation	a (How	to develop	Product/se	ervice innov	ation?)
31.In my opinion					
Companies should always					
look for new ways to	2 A				
create value for their	5250	C022X(0			
customers.					
32.In my opinion, There	L PATTICE		5		
should be no cost	<u>E</u>	< [] @]			
compromise in creating	IN IN				
the best products and			15		
services for customers.			Ĵ.		
33.I think New products	2240				
involve making something			N C BR		
that solves a problem in a			NZ OLY		
new and exciting way.			SIBAG		
34.I think Companies			SING.		
should look away a			51.5		
reinvent procedures.			N// S		
35.In my opinion			// S //		
Companies should be	28 and				
feasible to innovate	ิงกล้าง	3502	8		
without damaging current	17761	เลยง			
companies.					
Strategic innovation	(How to	develop St	rategic inn	ovation?)	
36.In my opinion		 	_		
Companies should always					
reinvent and redesign their					
corporate strategies to					
adapt to new challenges					
and threats.					

37.As for me Companies				
should always look for				
new ways to generate				
revenue for its				
shareholders and				
stakeholders.				
38.I think Strategic				
innovation is essential for				
organizations to adapt to				
the speed of technology	$\overline{\nabla}$			
change.	/ \			
39.I think Companies				
should improve a firm's				
strategic innovation				
process for long-term				
viability.				
40.I think Companies	0000			
should have strategic				
innovation skills and an	CONTRACTOR OF THE STATE OF THE	5		
entrepreneurial mentality.				
*				
Technological innovation	(How to view Tech	nological in	novation?)	
Technological innovation 41.I think Adopting new	(How to view Tech	nological in	novation?)	
Technological innovation 41.I think Adopting new technological innovation	(How to view Tech	nological in	novation?)	
Technological innovation 41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps	(How to view Tech	nological in	novation?)	
Technological innovation 41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation 41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsdeliver on customercommitments faster.42.I think New	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsdeliver on customercommitments faster.42.I think Newtechnologies help	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsdeliver on customercommitments faster.42.I think Newtechnologies helpmanagers be more task	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsdeliver on customercommitments faster.42.I think Newtechnologies helpmanagers be more taskoriented.	(How to view Tech	nological in	novation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.42.I think New technologies help managers be more task oriented.43.I think Innovative	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.42.I think New technologies help managers be more task oriented.43.I think Innovative technologies help a team	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.42.I think New technologies help managers be more task oriented.43.I think Innovative technologies help a team be more productive.	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.42.I think New technologies help managers be more task oriented.43.I think Innovative technologies help a team be more productive.44.I think Adopting new	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsdeliver on customercommitments faster.42.I think Newtechnologies helpmanagers be more taskoriented.43.I think Innovativetechnologies help a teambe more productive.44.I think Adopting newtechnological innovation	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.42.I think New technologies help managers be more task oriented.43.I think Innovative technologies help a team be more productive.44.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsdeliver on customercommitments faster.42.I think Newtechnologies helpmanagers be more taskoriented.43.I think Innovativetechnologies help a teambe more productive.44.I think Adopting newtechnological innovationin an organization helpsthe financial, personnel,	(How to view Tech	nological in	unovation?)	
Technological innovation41.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps deliver on customer commitments faster.42.I think New technologies help managers be more task oriented.43.I think Innovative technologies help a team be more productive.44.I think Adopting new technological innovation in an organization helps the financial, personnel, and infrastructural needs	(How to view Tech	nological in	inovation?)	

45.I think Adopting new					
technological innovation					
in an organization helps to					
provide an extra potential					
profit to secure long-term					
property.					
Marketing innovation	(What is	the role of	Marketin	g innovatio	n?)
46.I think automation					
plays a crucial role in the					
marketing pipeline.		$\overline{\Box}$			
47.As for					
me,Implementing new					
marketing tools and					
methods can help	2				
streamline the marketing	12				
funnel of an organization.					
48.I think new marketing	Sox C				
method involving			d		
significant changes in	S PTT		5		
product design or					
packaging, product			1		
placement, product	\$3) 39 (C				
promotion or pricing help					
generate new leads faster.	26		ED)		
49.I think marketing			NGOS		
innovations help customer			3 KUUU		
needs better, open up new			DIR.	N	
markets, and increase the			ONS.		
firm's sales.			71.5.		
50.I think rebranding is			V// 6		
one innovative marketing			S		
to launch a product and	Per 1		S		
interest potential	ิงกล้อง	โดยีราใ	°//		
customers.	164	เสยง			

	Likert Scale				
Factors					
	Strongly	Disagree	Neutral	Agree	Strongly
	Disagree	8		8	
					Agree
Economic performance	(How do yo	u measure	Economic	performan	ce?)
51.I think Corporate		$\overline{\mathbf{n}}$			
leadership should focus on					
achieving their economic					
goals to all costs.					
52.I think The economic	2				
performance of a firm is a	Ŷ				
function of its success in					
producing benefits for its					
owners.			4		
53.In my	S. ATT	NYYYYY C	3		
opinion,Economic					
performance can be	30	S NE	1		
achieved through					
product/service					
innovation.			20)		
54.I think Shareholders			N. OB		
and investors use			AN SION		
economic performance to			5122		
gauge financial		311-2	- <u>San</u> ta		
performance.			515		
55.I think Corporate	VOR		N//°61		
leadership should properly			2		
use RoE. RoA. the Price-	28 CUL		5		
Earnings ratio, and	ิงกลัง	5.50%	8		
Tobin's O for performance	17962	เลยง			
evaluation.					
Environmental performar	nce (How	do vou me	asure Env	ironmental	
performance?)	(1201)				
56.I think Companies					
should focus more on					
reducing resource					
consumption. waste					
generation and emissions.					

Part 4: Sustainable Business Performance

		1		
57.As for me ,Reporting				
environmental				
performance can have a				
positive impact on sales				
58.I think Investors are				
increasingly looking at the				
environmental				
performance of businesses				
when they make				
investment decisions.				
59.In my	/ \			
opinion,Companies should				
certify by corporate				
environmental				
performance assessment				
standards such as				
International Organization	00000000000			
for Standardization (ISO).		/		
60.I think Companies		5		
should use green indicator		5		
systems at all stages of the	30 R 03			
		(
manufacturing process.				
manufacturing process. Social Performance	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process.Social Performance61.I think Leaders and	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
 manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always 	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
 manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, 	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders.	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
 manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization 	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of its portfolio or	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of its portfolio or organizational structure.	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
 manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of its portfolio or organizational structure. 63.I think Leaders must 	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
 manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of its portfolio or organizational structure. 63.I think Leaders must work to making an 	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of its portfolio or organizational structure. 63.I think Leaders must work to making an organization's social	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)
 manufacturing process. Social Performance 61.I think Leaders and companies should always commit to transparency and mission fulfillment, and its practical benefits to industry stakeholders. 62.I think Organization leaders should always identify and improve lower performing areas of its portfolio or organizational structure. 63.I think Leaders must work to making an organization's social mission a reality, 	(How do you measu	ure Social I	Performanc	e?)

64.I think Companies			
should focus on economic,			
social, environmental,			
voluntariness, and			
stakeholder.			
65.I think Companies			
should focus on the			
concepts, practices, and			
effects of corporations'	A		
connections with people,			
institutions, organizations,	/ \		
communities, societies,			
and the environment.			

Part 5: Executive Incentive

(What do you think are the influencing factors of executive Incentive?)

	Likert Scale				
Factors					
	Strongly	Disagree	Neutral	Agree	Strongly
	Disagree				Agree
66.I think Corporate			V COS)	
executives are often					
motivated by their			21BAG		
incentive compensation.		334			
67.I think Incentive plays			S		
a crucial role in 🛛 🌏			N// S		
motivating executives to					
align with company's	28 CTI		S		
goals.	6hor	5 5 5 1 2	8		
68.I think Companies	1961	เลยง			
should use short- and					
long-term incentive					
schemes to keep					
executives motivated.					

69.I think Companies				
should focus on both				
monetary and non-				
monetary incentives for				
executive leadership.				
70.I think Bonuses and				
other forms of incentive				
compensation are an				
effective motivator of		A		
executives to achieve ever		$\overline{\uparrow}$		
higher earnings per share.		/ \		
71.I think Corporate				
executives are often				
motivated by their				
members of the	行			
management team.	Č.			
72.I think Corporate				
executives are often			4	
motivated by their		MYYYY C	5	
creation of shareholder				
value.	- AU (1	

Thank you for your time. Have a good day!





Q1: How do you think resilient leadership affects enterprise innovation?

Q2: How do you think resilient leadership affects sustainable business performance?

Q3: How do you think enterprise innovation affects sustainable business performance?

Q4: In your opinion, what role does enterprise innovation play in the impact of the leadership on sustainable business performance?

Q5: In your opinion, what role does Executive initiative play in the impact of resilient leadership on enterprise innovation and sustainable business performance?



Biography

Name – Surname	Nan Shuhua				
Date of Birth	August 5, 1983				
Address	Room 1607, Unit 2, Building 2, Liantai Wan Tai City, Xiangyang Street, Xunyang District, Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province, China				
Education	Business Administration, Jiangxi Normal University, 2013				
Experiences Work	Department of Business Administration, Gongqing College, Nanchang University (2007present)				
Telephone Number	86 13970245102				
Email Address	nan_s@mail.rmutt.ac.th, 13970245102@163.com				
A THUR A					